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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Yuguo, aged 66, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 16 August 2017 and was appointed as the Chairman of the
board of directors on 22 September 2017. He was also appointed as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee of the Company on 24 July 2018.

Since |19 September 2018 and 16 June 2020, Mr. Li has been an executive
director and chief executive officer of Future Bright Mining Holdings
Limited (“Future Bright"), a company listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (Stock
Code: 2212) respectively, in which Mr. Yang Xiaogiang (a Non-Executive
Director of the Company) is a non-executive director and Mr. Liu Yan
Chee James (an Executive Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company) is an executive director. He has been a non-executive director
of Shengjing Bank Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 2066)(**'Shengjing Bank”) since July 2013 and
the vice chairman of the board of directors of that bank from June 2014 to
February 2018. He has been the chairman of Liaoning Huibao International
Investment Group Co., Ltd.* (EZEBERRIKESEBR QA since
June 2013 and the chairman of Beijing Jiutai Group Co., Ltd.* At R L& &
BB PR A F]) since May 1993. Prior to that, he successively worked at the
planning bureau of the China Association for Science and Technology (F
Bl B2 173€) as principal staff, deputy chief and chief of the accounting
division from August 1983 to October [992.

Mr. Li graduated from Jiangxi University of Finance and Economics

(formerly known as Jiangxi Institute of Finance and Economics* (T 78 81 4%

1)) (Jiangxi, PRC) in July 1983, majoring in industrial accounting.

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESERE

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James, aged 50, was appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company on 26 April 2017 and was appointed as the Chief
Executive Officer of the Company on | August 2018.

He has over 20 years of experience in finance and accounting. Since 8
March 2018, Mr. Liu has been an executive director of Mindtell Technology
Limited, a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
8611). He has been an executive director of Future Bright (Stock Code:
2212) since 9 August 2019, in which Mr. Li Yuguo (an Executive Director
and the Chairman of the Company) is an executive director and the chief
executive officer and Mr. Yang Xiaogiang (a Non-Executive Director of
the Company) is a non-executive director. He was also the chief executive
officer of Future Bright from 26 October 2018 to 16 June 2020. He was
an independent non-executive director of Luen Wong Group Holdings
Limited, a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code:
8217) between March 2016 and December 2017. He was the sales director
and licensed representative of Tung Shing Securities (Brokers) Limited from
September 2010 to October 2015, and KGI Asia Limited and KGI Futures
(Hong Kong) Limited from October 2004 to September 2010.

In February 1994, he graduated from Dalhousie University in Canada with
a Bachelor of Commerce.

Ms. Guo Yumei, aged 52, was appointed as an Executive Director of the
Company on 18 April 2018. She was also appointed as a member of the

Remuneration Committee of the Company on 24 July 2018.

She has been an executive director and legal representative of Beijing
Qiaofeng Commercial and Trading Co., Ltd* (At RBELHEBR R A, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, since February 2018. Ms. Guo
currently also serves as director of Guangxi Huatai Mining Industries Co.,

Ltd* (RAAEFHEEAR QA

Ms. Guo graduated from Party School of CPC Beijing Municipal Committee®
AERTIZER) in July 2008,

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESERE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Yang Xiaoqiang, aged 49, was appointed as a Non-executive

Director and the Vice Chairman of the Company on |3 September 2018.

Mr. Yang has been a non-executive director of Future Bright (Stock Code:
2212) since 19 September 2018, in which Mr. Li Yuguo (an Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Company) is an executive director
and the chief executive officer and Mr. Liu Yan Chee James (an Executive
Director and the Chief Executive Officer of the Company) is an executive

director.

Mr. Yang has been appointed as director and general manager of Shenyang
Tairong Property Development Company Limited* (/&% 2= 58 5 HhE 7
BEHMRA7A] since September 2010. He held similar positions in other

companies for more than 20 years.

Mr. Yang obtained a bachelor's degree in industrial automation from the
Shenyang Mechanical Engineering University* (B T 2 K& in
1994 and obtained a master degree in civil and commercial laws from the

Shenyang Normal University in 2001.

Mr. Huang Yilin, aged 52, was appointed as an Executive Director of
the Company on 23 January 2015 and was appointed as Chief Executive
Officer on 16 August 2017. He resigned as Chief Executive Officer and was
re-designated from Executive Director to Non-executive Director of the

Company with effect from | August 2018.

Mr. Huang graduated from The Institute of Finance and Economics of Radio
and Television* (BEARBI4EZT) in 1992 and is engaged in management
related works since graduation. During the past years, Mr. Huang was the
general manager of Shantou Sanye Plastic Company Limited* (ILZE™ =
EBRABRAR]), Shenzhen China Investment Company Limited* (&3]
MHEEE AR A F]), Shenzhen Rihuisheng Group Company Limited* (%
I BEER L E B A F]) and Shenzhen Hongxun Investment Company
Limited* ORYITEFIREBR A F]), and has extensive theoretical

knowledge and practical experience in corporate modern management.

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESERE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ba Junyu, aged 65, was appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company on 24 July 2018.
He was appointed as the chairman of Remuneration Committee of the

Company on | August 2018.

Mr. Ba is an external supervisor of Shengjing Bank (Stock Code: 2066)
since February 2018. He was an independent non-executive director of
that bank from June 2010 to February 2018. Mr. Li Yuguo (an Executive
Director and the Chairman of the Company) is a non-executive director
of that bank. Mr. Ba has been a professor at Shenyang Ligong University*
(EP5IE T KE) since September 2001, and served as principal, professor
and researcher of the social economy research institute of Shenyang Ligong
University from September 2001 to May 2009. He serves as a professor at
the School of Law and Ideology of Shenyang Ligong University since May
2009. Prior to that, he served as an associate professor and the head of
the economic research institute at Shenyang University from April 1996 to
August 2003. From August 1985 to April 1996, he served as a vice dean,
deputy principal and associate professor of the market economy research
institute at Shenyang Institute of Finance and Economics. He used to work
at the teaching and research office at Shenyang Accounting School* (J&F5
& E4) as deputy director, director and lecturer from August 1982 to
August 1985.

Mr. Ba graduated from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics
(formerly known as Liaoning Institute of Finance and Economics* (i & Bt
#EEBTY) (Liaoning, PRC) in July 1982, majoring in commercial enterprise
management. He has been a researcher as accredited by the Personnel

Office of Liaoning Province since August 2008.

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESERE

Mr. Zhu Xueyi, aged 67, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director, the chairman of the Audit Committee and
a member of each of the Remuneration Committee and Nomination

Committee on |3 September 2018.

Currently, Mr. Zhu is a professor and the head of the Research Institute
of Resource Economics and Financial Accounting at Nantong Institute of
Technology and a guest professor at the University of Jinan. After working
in journalism from 1974 to 1976, Mr. Zhu embarked on his education
career at the School of Management at China University of Mining and
Technology. Mr. Zhu was gradually promoted to the position of vice dean
of the School of Management at China University of Mining and Technology
from 1999 to 2007. In 2007, he became the head of the Research Institute

of Finance and Accounting at China University of Mining and Technology.

Mr. Zhu obtained an accountancy degree at Jiangsu University of Finance
and Economics in 1983 and obtained a master’s degree at Renmin

University of China in 1992.

Mr. Zhu has been an independent director of a Shenzhen-listed company,
Jiangsu Wuyang Parking Industry Group Co., Ltd.* (TERFLFIZEHES
FERMH AR AT (Stock Code: 300420) and the chief financial expert
of Huai Hai Holding Group* (E&SIZEREE) since 2017. He was an
independent director of a Shenzhen-listed company, Saimo Electric Co,,
Lid. (BEBERKMHBR AT (Stock Code: 300466) from 2011 to 2016

Mr. Zhu has been a vice chairman of Xuzhou Auditing Society* (4R &

T2 ) and a vice chairman of Xuzhou City Accountant Association* (&

MR EETRIHE) since 2000

*  For identification purpose only
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

ESERE

Mr. Zhu has published more than 500 articles on accounting. He was
appointed by various units above provincial level, such as Jiangsu Province
Social Science Fund, Ministry of Education, Ministry of Finance to host
nearly 30 significant national projects including national natural science
fund and national social science fund. In recognition of his contribution,
provincial departments awarded him with nearly 30 prizes, e.g. Science
Advancement Prize, Philosophy Society Achievement Award, Excellent
Teaching Achievement Award, etc. He was also awarded as a national
excellent teacher in 1989 and the "“Excellent Accounting Worker” in Jiangsu

Province in 2006.

Mr. Wong Chung Man, aged 61, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director and a member of each of the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the Company on
24 July 2018.

Mr. Wong worked as a marketing manager in Tse Sui Luen Jewellery
Company Limited during the period between 1986 and 1990 and as a
general manager of Anju Jewelry Ltd. between 1990 and 1992. Mr. Wong
was the director and president of Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (China) Ltd.
during the period between 1992 and 2001 and was the director of Fullnew
International Ltd. during the period between 2001 to 2008. Thereafter, Mr.
Wong worked as the general manager of Enzo Jewelry Holdings Limited
from 2008 to 2009 and then as a consultant at Shenyang Success Real
Estate Development Co. Ltd.* (&[5 TN FEHERZ AR A F]) between
2009 and 2017.

Mr. Wong graduated from Waseda University of Tokyo, Japan in 1985,

*  For identification purpose only
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEARE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company recognises the importance of maintaining a high standard of

corporate governance with an aim to protect the interest of shareholders.

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code contained in
Appendix 4 (the “"Code”) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (“Listing Rules™). During the year ended 3| March
2020, the Company complied with all applicable provisions of the Code

except for the deviations as stated below:

Code Provision A.1.3

Under Code provision A.1.3, notice of at least 14 days should be given for a
regular Board meeting to give all directors an opportunity to attend. For all
other Board meetings, reasonable notice should be given. Due to practical
reasons, |4 days’ advanced notifications have not been given to all meetings
of the Board. Reasons have been given in the notifications in respect of
those meetings of the Board where it was not practicable to give |4 days’
advanced notification. The Board will use its best endeavours to give |4

days’ advanced notifications of Board meeting as far as is practicable.

Code Provision A.1.8

Under Code provision A.1.8, the Company should arrange appropriate
insurance cover in respect of legal action which may be taken against the
Directors. The directors’ and officers’ liability insurance maintained by
the Company has expired on 20 May 2018. As the Company has not yet
reached an agreement with an insurer regarding the terms and insurance
premium of new insurance policy, the insurance cover in respect of legal
action which may be taken against the Directors has not been in place since
21 May 2018. The Company liaised with various insurance companies and
brokers during the year and will continue to liaise with them to arrange

appropriate insurance cover for the Directors and officers.

10 Asia Resources Holdings Limited | T2/ & RIZEAR AR A 7]
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

TEERRE

Code Provision A.6.7

Under Code provision A.6.7, independent non-executive directors and
other non-executive directors, as equal board members, should give
the board and any committees on which they serve the benefit of their
skills, expertise and varied backgrounds and qualifications through regular
attendance and active participation. They should also attend general
meetings to gain and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders. Due to other business engagement, three Independent
Non-Executive Directors were unable to attend the annual general meeting
of the Company held on 4 September 2019, and two Non-Executive
Directors and three Independent Non-Executive Directors were unable to

attend the special general meeting of the Company held on 3 March 2020.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the Company

and oversees the Group's business strategic decisions and performances.

Board Composition

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises three Executive
Directors, Mr. Li Yuguo, Mr. Liu Yan Chee James and Ms. Guo Yumei; two
Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Yang Xiaogiang and Mr. Huang Yilin; and
three Independent Non-Executive Directors, Mr. Ba Junyu, Mr. Zhu Xueyi
and Mr. Wong Chung Man. Mr. Li Yuguo is the chairman of the Board and

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James is the chief executive officer of the Company.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company are persons
with academic and professional qualifications in the fields of accounting and
appropriate expertise. They provide strong support towards the effective
discharge of the duties and responsibilities of the Board. Each Independent
Non-executive Director gives an annual confirmation of his independence
to the Company and the Company considers these directors to be

independent under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

EEARE

Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted the board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance and as an essential
element in maintaining strategic objectives and sustainable development of
the Group. All appointment of the Board members will be based on merits
against objective criteria and with due regards for benefits and balance of
diversity on the Board. The Board diversity will be considered in terms of,
among other things, gender, age, professional experience and qualifications
and educational and cultural background, and any other factors that the
Nomination Committee may consider relevant and applicable from time
to time towards complementing and extending the skills, know-how and

experience of the Board.

Meetings
Details of Directors’ attendance records at the Board meetings and general
meetings of the Company during the year ended 3| March 2020 are set out

below:

Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Li Yuguo FRELSE
Mr. Liu Yan Chee James 2BBEE
Ms. Guo Yumei REErt
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Yang Xiaogiang BREE
Mr. Huang Yilin BRNEE
Independent Non-executive Directors BUKGITES
Mr. Ba Junyu BEFEE
Mr. Zhu Xueyi REELE
Mr. Wong Chung Man EBiREAE
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Apart from regular board meetings of the year, the Board will meet on
other occasions when a board level decision on a particular matter is
required. The Directors receive details of agenda items for decision and
minutes of committee meetings in advance of each board meeting. The
Board has reserved for its decision or consideration on those matters
covering corporate strategy, annual and interim results, directors’
appointment, succession planning, risk management, major acquisitions,
disposals and capital transactions, and other significant operational and
financial matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated
by the Board to the management include the preparation of annual and
interim accounts for board approval before public reporting, execution of
business strategies and initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation
of adequate systems of internal controls and risk management procedures,

and compliance with relevant statutory requirements, rules and regulations.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

All the Independent Non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of
three years. In addition, all Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at the annual general meetings pursuant to the Bye-laws of

the Company.

According to the Company’s Bye-laws, any director appointed by the Board
to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the first general meeting of
Members after his appointment and shall be subject to re-election at such
meeting; and any director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual general

meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors are continually encouraged to update themselves with legal
and regulatory developments, and the business and market changes to

facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.

All Directors are requested to provide the Company with their respective

training records pursuant to the Code.

During the year, the Directors have confirmed their participation in
appropriate continuous professional development activities by ways of

attending seminars or self-reading as set out below:

Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Li Yuguo FREILSE
Mr. Liu Yan Chee James 2RBEE
Ms. Guo Yumei REELT
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. Yang Xiaogiang BNk E
Mr. Huang Yilin BRMEE
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHTES
Mr. Ba Junyu BEFEE
Mr. Zhu Xueyi REEEE
Mr. Wong Chung Man EBREE

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
|0 to the Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors,
all Directors confirmed that they had fully complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 March
2020.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee of the Company currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors and one Executive Director, and
is currently chaired by Mr. Li Yuguo. Its primary duties include reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members in accordance with the Board
Diversity Policy, assessing the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on relevant matters

relating to the appointment or re-appointment of Directors.
The Nomination Committee held one (1) meeting during the year ended

31 March 2020. The attendance of each member of the Nomination

Committee at the meeting during the year is set out below:

Committee members

EZEERE

Mr. Li Yuguo (Chairman) FRELE(ERE)
Mr. Ba Junyu BEFEE

Mr. Zhu Xueyi REBERSTE

Mr. Wong Chung Man E=MXSEE

During the year, the Nomination Committee has reviewed the structure
and composition of the Board, reviewed the Board Diversity Policy,
discussed the causal vacancies for the resigned Directors, assessed
the independence of Independent Non-executive Directors and made

recommendations on the appointment and re-appointment of Directors.
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Nomination Policy

The Nomination Committee may invite nomination of candidates from
Board members for its consideration. The Nomination Committee may
also put forward candidates who are not nominated by Board members.
The factors in assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate for the
position of director include, inter alia, reputation for integrity, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience that are relevant to the
Company's business and corporate strategy, willingness to devote sufficient
time to discharge his duties as Board member and other directorships
and significant commitments, diversity of the Board, and such other
perspectives relevant to the Company's business. The Nomination
Committee shall make recommendations for the Board's consideration and

approval.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee of the Company currently comprises three
Independent Non-executive Directors and one Executive Director, and
is currently chaired by Mr. Ba Junyu. Its primary duties include making
recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy and structure
for all remuneration of Directors and senior management, reviewing the
remuneration package and recommending salaries, bonuses, including the
incentive awards for Executive Directors and senior management, and
ensuring no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own

remuneration etc.
The Remuneration Committee held one (1) meeting during the year ended

31 March 2020. The attendance of each member of the Remuneration

Committee at the meeting during the year is set out below:

Committee members

ZEEME

Mr. Ba Junyu (Chairman) BEFEE(FE)
Ms. Guo Yumei REMHELZL

Mr. Zhu Xueyi KREBRTE

Mr. Wong Chung Man HmP X E
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During the year, the Remuneration Committee has considered and
reviewed the terms of the appointment letters of the Directors with
reference to various factors including salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Company and desirability
of performance-based remuneration. The Remuneration Committee
considers that the existing terms of the appointment letters of the
Executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and Independent Non-
executive Directors are fair and reasonable. Details of the remuneration

policy of the Directors are set out on page 58 of this report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee of the Company currently comprises three
(3) Independent Non-executive Directors and is currently chaired by
Mr. Zhu Xueyi. Its primary duties are to review and supervise the financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control system of the
Group and its effectiveness, and review and monitor the integrity of
financial statements of the Company and the Company's annual report and

interim report.
The Audit Committee held three (3) meetings during the year ended 31

March 2020. The attendance of each member of the Audit Committee at

the meetings during the year is set out below:

Committee members

ZEEME

Mr. Zhu Xueyi (Chairman) KREBEREE(EE)
Mr. Ba Junyu BEFEE

Mr. Wong Chung Man | EE
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During the year, the Audit Committee has reviewed with management the
accounting standards and practices adopted by the Group, and discussed
auditing, internal control, risk management and financial reporting matters
including the Group's audited financial statements for the year ended 3|1
March 2019 and the unaudited financial statements for the six months
ended 30 September 2019 respectively. In June 2020, the Audit Committee
reviewed the Group's audited financial statements for the year ended 3|

March 2020 prior to recommending them to the Board for approval.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for the corporate governance matters of the
Company. The duties of the Board include, inter alia, (i) to develop,
review and implement the policies and practices of the Company on
corporate governance; (ii) to review, monitor and implement the policies
and practices of the Company in compliance with the legal and regulatory
requirements; (iii) to develop, review, monitor and implement the code
of conduct applicable to Directors and employees; and (iv) to review and
implement the compliance with the Code and disclosure in the Corporate

Governance Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 3| March 2020, the remuneration paid/payable to
the Company's auditors, Messrs. Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited, is set out

as follows:

Services rendered

FriR AR %
Audit services RER
Non-Audit services (Note) IR BBRTE (A aE)

Note:  The Audit Committee is of the view that the auditors’ independence was not affected
by the provision of these non-audit related services during the year ended 3| March

2020.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility to prepare financial
statements for each financial year which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. In preparing the accounts for the year
ended 31 March 2020, the Directors have adopted suitable accounting
policies which are pertinent to its operations and relevant to the financial
statements, made judgements and estimates that are prudent and

reasonable, and have prepared the accounts on the going concern basis.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for overseeing the Company's risk management
and internal control systems. To facilitate the effectiveness and efficiency
of operations and to ensure compliance with relevant laws and regulations,
the Group emphasizes the importance of a sound risk management and
internal control systems which are also indispensable for mitigating the
Group's risk exposures. The Group'’s risk management and internal control
systems are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance
against material misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of

failure in operational systems and fulfillment of the business objectives.

The risk management and internal control system are reviewed on an
ongoing basis by the Board, but in any event no less than once per year, in
order to make it practical and effective in providing reasonable assurance in
relation to protection of material assets and identification of business risks.
The Board is satisfied that, based on the information furnished to it and on
its own observations, for the year ended 31 March 2020 and up to the date
of this report, the risk management and internal controls of the Group are

satisfactory, effective and adequate.

The Group is committed to the identification, monitoring and management
of risks associated with its business activities and has implemented a
practical and effective control system which includes a defined management
structure with limits of authority, a sound cash management system and
periodic review of the Group's performance by the Audit Committee and

the Board.
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During the year under review, the Board has engaged an external
professional firm to conduct the annual review of the risk management
and internal control systems of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2020. The review has covered financial, operational and compliance control
and some recommendations were provided in the internal control review
report. All recommendations are properly followed up by the Group.
Therefore, the Board considered that the risk management and internal

control systems are effective and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY’S TRAINING
During the year ended 31 March 2020, Mr. Wu Ho Wai has received over
fifteen (15) hours of relevant professional training to refresh his skills and

knowledge.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening a Special General Meeting

Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the
Company carrying the right of voting at general meetings can send a written
requisition to the Board or the Company Secretary to request a special

general meeting (“SGM").

The written requisition should be deposited at the principal place of
business of the Company in Hong Kong at Room 2601, 26/F., West Tower,
Shun Tak Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong, for the
attention of the Company Secretary. The written requisition must state the
resolution(s), accompanied by a statement of the matters referred in the

proposed resolution(s) and signed by the shareholders concerned.

The identities and eligibility of the requisitionist(s) will be verified with
the Company’s branch share registrar and upon its confirmation that the
requisition is proper and in order, the Company will proceed to convene
a SGM within twenty-one (21) days of the deposit of the requisition. The
actual SGM shall be held within two (2) months after the deposit of the

written requisition.
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Making Proposals at Shareholders’ Meeting
Shareholders who wish to make a proposal at Shareholders’ meeting shall
follow the procedure under the paragraph headed “Convening a Special

General Meeting” to request for the convening of a SGM.

Procedures for Nomination of Directors for Election

Shareholders who wish to nominate a person to stand for election as a
director at general meetings shall lodge the following documents at the
Office or the head office, Room 2601, 26/F, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong, provided that
the minimum length of the period, during which such documents are given,
shall be at least seven (7) days and that the period for lodgment of such
notice(s) shall commence no earlier than the day after the dispatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such election and end no later

than seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting:

(i) notice in writing signed by the shareholder of his intention to

propose such person for election (“Nominated Candidate™);

(i) notice in writing signed by the Nominated Candidate to be

proposed of his willingness to be elected; and

(i) the biographical details of the Nominated Candidate as required
under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing Rules for publication by the
Company.
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AMENDMENT TO CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENT

During the year ended 31 March 2020, there were no significant changes to

the Company’s constitutional document.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company discloses relevant information to shareholders through
the Company's annual and interim reports, notices, announcements and
circulars as well as the general meetings. The general meetings allow

directors to meet and communicate with shareholders.

To further promote effective communication, the corporate website is
maintained to disseminate Company announcements and other relevant

financial and non-financial information electronically on a timely basis.

ENQUIRIES TO THE COMPANY

We always welcome Shareholders’ view and input. Shareholders and other
stakeholders may at any time address their concerns to the Company
Secretary, Mr. Wu Ho Wai by mail, facsimile or email. The contact details
are as follows:
Address: Room 2601, 26/F, West Tower, Shun Tak Centre,
[68-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
(852) 3102 0899

Email: info@asiaresources899.com.hk

Facsimile no.:
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
EEERAEEEENRR DN

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Asia Resources Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | hereby
present to the shareholders of the Company the annual report and audited

consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

For the year ended 31 March 2020 (the “Year”), the revenue from
continuing operations of the Group was approximately HK$201,510,000.
The revenue for the Year was mainly attributable to the handover of
properties in Dalian and start-up of sales of bottled water products. For
the Year, the Group recorded revenue from sales of properties and
sales of bottled water products of approximately HK$201,242,000 and
HK$268,000 respectively.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the revenue from continuing
operations of the Group was approximately HK$32,760,000 which was

attributable to trading business.

Cost of Sales

For the Year, the Group's cost of sales from continuing operations was
approximately HK$288,754,000 of which the costs of properties and
bottled water products sold were approximately HK$288,565,000 and
HK$ 189,000 respectively.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the cost of goods trading was
approximately HK$31,732,000.

Gross Loss

The Group recorded a gross loss from continuing operations of
approximately HK$87,244,000 for the Year. The gross loss was mainly
attributable to loss on sales of properties in Dalian due to higher
development costs arising from the delay of property development and
downturn of the property market in Dalian resulting in a drop in selling

price.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded a gross profit
from continuing operations of approximately HK$1,028,000 from trading

business.
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Other Gains

For the Year, the Group recorded other gains of approximately
HK$27,950,000 (2019: HK$1,908,000). The increase was mainly due to
compensation and interest income relating to termination of acquisition of

Shenyang properties.

Other Losses
For the Year, the Group recorded other losses of approximately
HK$60,825,000 (2019: HK$334,000). The increase was mainly due to

exchange loss derived from depreciation of Renminbi.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses primarily consist of agency fee, promotion
fee and advertising expenses, which were approximately HK$9,653,000 for
the Year (2019: HK$5,918,000). The increase was mainly due to sales of

properties in Dalian and start-up of sales of bottled water products.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses primarily consist of directors’ emoluments, other
staff costs and benefits, depreciation, legal and professional fee and other
general office expenses, which were approximately HK$35,267,000 for the
Year (2019: HK$32,947,000). The increase was mainly due to increase in

the number of staff.

Material Impairment Losses

For the Year, the Group provided impairment losses for intangible assets,
deposits paid, completed properties held for sale and properties under
development of approximately HK$46,932,000 (2019: Nil), HK$92,873,000
(2019: HK$1,087,000), HK$25,348,000 (2019: HK$72,821,000) and
HK$28,033,000 (2019: HK$66,440,000) respectively.

These impairment losses arose mainly because the values of the
corresponding assets of the Group in the PRC are adversely affected by the
Sino-US trade dispute and the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19") pandemic.
Details are set out in the paragraph headed “BUSINESS REVIEW" of this

section.
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Share of Results of Associates
Share of losses of associates was approximately HK$9,572,000 (2019:
HK$17,152,000). Decrease in losses was because the associates have a

significant growth in sales and a decrease in production costs in the Year.

Loss Attributable to Owners of the Company

The Group recorded a loss attributable to the owners of the Company of
approximately HK$338,784,000 for the Year (2019: HK$158,640,000). The
increase in loss was mainly due to (i) the gross loss from sales of properties
in Dalian; (ii) the impairment loss on properties under development;
(i) the impairment loss on completed properties held for sale; (iv) the
impairment losses on deposits paid; (v) impairment losses on intangible

assets; (vi) share of losses of associates; and (vii) exchange losses.

Basic and diluted loss per share from continuing and discontinued

operations for the Year was HK$0.045 (2019: HK$0.022).

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group continuously focuses its effort on its core business including

water business, property development and property investment business.

Affected by Sino-US trade dispute and COVID-19 pandemic, the PRC's
economic growth has slowed down, Renminbi has depreciated and the
values of assets in the PRC are impaired. The Group also suffered a

significant impact on its core business from these factors.

Water Business

The Group recorded a loss from water business segment of approximately
HK$57,739,000 for the Year (2019: HK$1,912,000). The loss mainly
comprised (i) impairment loss on intangible assets; and (ii) operating

expenses.
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Water Production and Sales

The Group holds 20% equity interests in Hong Kong Spring Water Ding
Dong Group Company Limited (“Spring Water Ding Dong”) which has a
wholly-owned subsidiary in Guangxi (“Guangxi Spring Water Ding Dong").
Guangxi Spring Water Ding Dong possesses a water procurement permit
for production and sales of bottled water and is currently in operation in

Guangxi.

During the Year, the Group shared losses of associates of approximately
HK$9,572,000 (2019: HK$17,152,000), which were mainly caused by the
depreciation of property, plant and equipment and amortization of water
procurement permit. Losses decrease was because Guangxi Spring Water
Ding Dong has a significant growth in sales and a decrease in production

costs in the Year.

On 4 April 2019, the Group entered into a supply agreement with Guangxi
Spring Water Ding Dong to procure bottled water products for trading.
Guangxi Spring Water Ding Dong is beneficially owned as to 80% by
Mr. Li Yuguo, a substantial shareholder, the chairman and an executive
Director of the Company. Details of the supply agreement are set out in
the announcement of the Company dated 4 April 2019. During the Year,
the Group recorded revenue from sales of bottled water products of
approximately HK$268,000 and gross profit of approximately HK$79,000.

The gross profit margin was approximately 29.5%.

Water Mining

The Group holds 67% equity interests of Good Union (China) Limited
which has a wholly-owned subsidiary in Hunan. It possesses a water mineral
licence for exploitation of mineral water in Hunan. Due to the outbreak
of COVID-19 since January 2020, the construction works of factory are
suspended and delayed. We have been actively communicating with the
local government authorities and contractors in order to resume the
construction works as soon as possible. We expected the construction
works will be resumed in the second half of 2020 and will be completed in

mid-2021. The production is expected to commence in late 2021.
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The Group reviewed the fair value of the water mining licence as
at 31 March 2020 with reference to a valuation report issued by an
independent qualified valuer and an impairment provision of approximately
HK$46,932,000 (2019: Nil) was made for the Year. Details of the valuation
method and key assumptions and the impairment assessment are set out in

notes 3 and |9 to the consolidated financial statements.

In accordance with the sale and purchase agreement dated 23 May 2017,
the vendor, who is currently the minority shareholder of Good Union
(China) Limited, has committed a production volume guarantee on Hunan
project from 2019 to 2028. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 23 May 2017. The vendor was not able to satisfy the
production volume guarantee for the year 2019 since production has not
commenced yet. The Group is currently negotiating with the vendor for the
compensation of 2019. The Group may engage other professionals to verify

the amount of compensation.

Property Development and Property Investment Business
The Group recorded a loss from property development and investment
segment of approximately HK$272,534,000 for the Year (2019:
HK$117,845,000). The loss is mainly comprised of (i) gross loss on
sales of properties in Dalian; (i) impairment losses on properties under
development and completed properties held for sales located in Dalian; (iii)
impairment losses on deposits paid for property investments in Yantian,
Beijing and Zengcheng of Guangdong Province; (iv) exchange losses; and

(v) operating expenses.

Property Development

Dalian Properties

Our indirect wholly-owned subsidiary in the PRC, Dalian Chuanghe
Landmark Co Ltd.* (KEAIFMEH AR AT (“Dalian Chuanghe”),
engages in the development of urban land for residential usage in Dalian
and plans to develop 55 buildings on the said land with 2| buildings in the
first phase (“Phase I"") and 34 buildings in the second phase (“‘Phase II").

*  For identification purpose only
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Phase |, named “Xin Tian Jia Yuan”, has been completed in March 2019.
There are 21 buildings established in Phase | with total saleable area of
approximately 42,540 square metres including 4 eight-storey apartments
(INEE), 9 garden villas (F55) and 8 garden houses (H#ERIZEE). Dalian
Chuanghe commenced to handover the properties to buyers in April 2019.
For the Year, approximately 30,723 square metres of properties have been
handed over and revenue of approximately HK$201,242,000 (2019: Nil)
was recorded. As at 31 March 2020, Dalian Chuanghe had sale contracts
with contract amount of approximately RMB48,264,000 with gross saleable
areas of around 6,611 square metres. The properties under these sales

contracts are expected to be handed over in the near future.

For Phase Il, there are 34 buildings with aggregate saleable area of
approximately 69,000 square metres. Due to the outbreak of COVID-19,
we have re-scheduled the development of Phase Il and the construction of

Phase Il is expected to commence in around 2021.

Since the Sino-US trade dispute and COVID-19 pandemic led to the
slowdown of economic growth and drop in assets price in the PRC, the
selling price of Xin Tian Jia Yuan was adversely affected. Besides, the delay
and long period of property development caused higher development
costs. Therefore, the Group suffered a gross loss of approximately
HK$87,323,000 from sales of properties and further impairment losses
were recognised on completed properties held for sale and properties

under development.

The Group reviewed the market value of the completed properties held for
sale and properties under development as at 31 March 2020 with reference
to a valuation report issued by an independent qualified valuer using market
approach in the assessment of the valuation. Provision for impairment
losses of approximately HK$25,348,000 (2019: HK$72,821,000) and
HK$28,033,000 (2019: HK$66,440,000) were made for the Year for
completed properties held for sale and properties under development

respectively.
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Property Investment

Yantian Properties

(A) The Group entered into an acquisition agreement on 24 June 2014, a

(B)

supplemental agreement on |5 April 2015, the second supplemental
agreement on |2 July 2016, the third supplemental agreement on
7 May 2017 and the fourth supplemental agreement on 3 May
2018 to purchase the property at a consideration of approximately

RMB 100,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$ 126,000,000).

The property comprises 46 units of Jinma Creative Industry Park
(formerly known as “Kingma Information Logistic Park™) which is
situated at Depot No. 2, 3rd Road and Shenyan Road Intersect, Inner
Logistic Park, Yantian Bonded Area, Yantian District, Shenzhen City,
the PRC* (1 BRI &8 FH [ B8 AR AR T (2 )00 B 1A = 5% % BR B
PR AZME R — SR #EYS) (“Jinma Creative Industry Park”) with a total

gross floor area of approximately 8,699 square metres.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had obtained physical possession
of the property and paid conditionally refundable deposit in the
aggregate sum of RMB90,000,000 in accordance with the payment
terms stated in the sales and purchase agreement. The remaining
balance of the consideration of approximately RMB10,000,000 shall
be paid within 30 days from the date on which the relevant building
ownership certificates are issued in favour of the purchaser which is an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company (the “Jinma Industry
Park Purchaser”). The vendor shall register the title of the property
under the name of the Jinma Industry Park Purchaser on or before 31

December 2018 (or such other date as may be mutually agreed).

The Group entered into the second acquisition agreement on
I5 May 2015, a supplemental agreement on |2 July 2016, the second
supplemental agreement on |7 May 2017 and the third supplemental
agreement on 3 May 2018 to purchase additional property at a
consideration of approximately RMB65,100,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$81,400,000). The property comprises 30 units
of Jinma Creative Industry Park with a total gross floor area of

approximately 5,400 square metres.

*  For identification purpose only
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As at 31 March 2020, the Group had obtained physical possession
of the property and paid conditionally refundable deposit in the
aggregate sum of RMB60,000,000 in accordance with the payment
terms stated in the sales and purchase agreement. The remaining
balance of the consideration of approximately RMB5, 100,000 shall be
paid within 30 days from the date on which the property has been
registered under the name of the Jinma Industry Park Purchaser. The
vendor shall register the title of the property under the name of the
Jinma Industry Park Purchaser on or before 31 December 2018 (or

such other date as may be mutually agreed).

(C) The Group entered into the third acquisition agreement on
10 November 2015, a supplemental agreement on |7 May 2017
and the second supplemental agreement on 3 May 2018 to
purchase additional property at a consideration of approximately
RMBI101,600,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$122,000,000). The
property acquired, being a single-storey reinforced concrete building
designated for office and storage uses located at Block 2 of Jinma
Creative Industry Park with a total gross floor area of approximately

4,957 square metres.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had obtained physical possession
of the property and paid conditionally refundable deposit in the
aggregate sum of RMB100,000,000 in accordance with the terms of
payment stated in the sales and purchase agreement. The remaining
balance of the consideration of approximately RMB 1,600,000 shall be
paid within 30 days from the date on which the property has been
registered under the name of the Jinma Industry Park Purchaser. The
vendor shall register the title of the property under the name of the
Jinma Industry Park Purchaser on or before 3|1 December 2018 (or

such other date as may be mutually agreed).

For Yantian Properties (A), (B) and (C), as at the date of this report, the
vendor has still not registered the titles of the properties under the name of
the Jinma Industry Park Purchaser. The approval from the PRC government
authority for issuing the building ownership certificates remained pending.
In May 2020, the Company received a letter from the vendor requesting for
an extension of the deadline to 31 December 2020 for handling the matter
of building ownership certificates. The Company has engaged a PRC law

firm to negotiate with the vendor to resolve this matter.
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The Group reviewed the market value of Yantian Properties (A), (B) and
(C) as at 31 March 2020 with reference to a valuation report issued by an
independent qualified valuer using market approach in the assessment of
the valuation. A provision for impairment loss on deposits paid for Yantian
Properties of approximately HK$5,358,000 (2019: Nil) was made for the

Year. Details of the impairment assessment are set out in notes 3 and 25(i).

Beijing Properties

The Group entered into an acquisition agreement on 28 February 2017
to purchase (a) office premises with a gross floor area of 8,335 square
metres and (b) underground car park with a gross floor area of 3,100
square metres located in Phrase Il of Beijing Convention and Exhibition
International Port (Exhibition Centre Ancillary Facilities) Project* (1t &
RERERERERIEEE % = 8) for a consideration of approximately
RMB220,000,000 (subject to adjustment).

As at 3| March 2020, the Group paid the consideration of
RMB200,000,000 in accordance with the payment terms stated in the sale
and purchase agreement. The remaining balance of the consideration of
approximately RMB20,000,000 shall be paid upon the execution of the
pre-sale agreement between the vendor and the purchaser, an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company and the building ownership
certificate having been obtained by the purchaser. In May 2020, the
Company received a letter from the vendor explaining the reasons of delay
in construction works and requesting for an extension of handover of the
properties. Due to the outbreak of COVID-19, the construction works
have been suspended and not yet resumed. The vendor will resume the
construction works as soon as possible and make best efforts to complete

the construction on or before 31 December 2020.

The Group reviewed the market value of Beijing Properties as at 31
March 2020 with reference to a valuation report issued by an independent
qualified valuer using market approach in assessment of the valuation. A
provision for impairment loss on deposits paid for Beijing Properties of
approximately HK$19,057,000 (2019: Nil) was made for the Year.

*  For identification purpose only

REEZ2EBFB Y S ERMGER TS AT
BEMEANGBERS  FHETHEDE
A BRORZEZZEF=A=+—H
ZTIBEE - RAFE  tEEMEMH
B3 & BB R B B 18 495,358,000 L (= &
— N ) o REFT MBI AMEIR
25() °

St/
RZE—+F A -+ N8B KEBFZW
i - UREHARY220000,0007T (7] F
AR BEMNIEREERRERERERE
HEE=-MzBEEEMERS3THKZ
MAEYER () BRETE A3 I00FF K2
R EES -

RIEBE-_ZTE=-A=+—H AEBERRERE
ERaml SR ERITREGEARE
200,000,000t ° LB & E 49 AR %20,000,000
TEREFEE A (AR —REEZEE2ENE
RE)ELEEREREFCRISEEMER
BRI RZZBE_ZFRHA  NRREE
EFEEEIRERZREAREERE
RWMEZEH - AREEECOVID-19 - HiEE
TREIETEHARME - EAFBRATE
MTERMERETE  IREAB IR
E-TF+_A=1+—HLZHET -

REBMBEF LA BRI ERDATISET A
HEMDENGERS  FETIERMER
—T-TFEZAZ+—AzHIBERE - BA
FE It EMERIANRSBERES
184919,057,0008 L(ZF—H, : £) o

Annual Report 2020 ¥

31



32

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ STATEMENT, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION

AND ANALYSIS
EEERAEEEENRR N

Shenyang Properties (Terminated)

The Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement on |2
October 2017 to purchase the properties at a total consideration of
RMB625,000,000 (subject to adjustment). The properties comprise
Floors 7 to 35 of Building T3 situated at 46 Nanjing North Street, Heping
District, Shenyang City, Liaoning Province, PRC with a gross floor area of
approximately 34,754.58 square metres, while the gross floor area of office

is approximately 30,480.96 square metres.

On 24 April 2019, a termination agreement was entered into between
the vendor and the Group to terminate the sale and purchase agreement
in relation to the acquisition of Shenyang Properties. The vendor shall
refund the total amount of deposits of RMB562,500,000 (the “Refund
Amount”) paid by the Group, together with a monetary compensation of
RMB 11,250,000 on or prior to 24 October 2019, details of which are set
out in the announcement of the Company dated 24 April 2019.

On | November 2019, the Group further entered into a supplemental
agreement with Mr. Li Yuguo, a substantial shareholder, the chairman and
an executive Director of the Company and the ultimate beneficial owner
of the vendor, pursuant to which Mr. Li Yuguo agreed to take up the
responsibilities to repay the Refund Amount and the related compensation
and interests to the Group and provide his personal assets as securities.
The Group agreed to extend the repayment date to 24 April 2020, with an
interest rate of 5.25% per annum. Details of the supplemental agreement
are set out in the announcement of the Company dated | November
2019.

On 29 April 2020, the Company published an announcement on the event
of default in relation to the payment of the Refund Amount and related
compensation and interest accrued thereon. On 8 May 2020, the Company
set up a special committee, with 3 independent non-executive directors
as members, to handle the repayment and/or the recovery of the Refund
Amount. The Company has engaged independent legal advisors to work
with the Special Committee and the Special Committee will seek other
professional advice so as to take appropriate actions to recover the Refund
Amount or enforce the securities if necessary. Details of the event of
default and the Special Committee are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 29 April 2020 and 8 May 2020 respectively.
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Up to the date of this report, the Group has received a partial payment
of the Refund Amount and related compensation and interest of
approximately HK$16,900,000. The Group will continue to negotiate with
Mr. Li Yugo and will consider all possible ways to recover the Refund

Amount and the related compensation and interests.

Zengcheng Properties (Terminated)

Reference is made to the announcements of the Company dated 15
April 2015, 5 June 2015, 27 August 2015, I5 June 2016 and |8 January
2017 in relation to the acquisition of certain properties located in Jinma
Waterfront Square* (£ F/KFEH). Given that the vendor failed to
deliver the physical possession of the properties within the timeframe
specified in the acquisition agreements, the Group served a termination
notice to the vendor on |8 January 2017 and demand the refund of the
consideration in the amount of RMB274,000,000 pursuant to the terms
and conditions of the acquisition agreements and the payment of an
additional sum representing not less than 3% thereof as compensation
(details of which were disclosed in the announcement dated |8 January
2017). As at 31 March 2020, the Group has received an aggregate sum
of RMB212,000,000 as partial refund of the paid consideration and the
payment of compensation. The Group’s legal advisors has issued demand
letters to the vendor for the repayment of the remaining balance of the
paid consideration and the related compensation. Up to the date of this
report, no reply has been received from the vendor. The Group is closely
following up the repayment status and considering to take further legal

action against the vendor if appropriate.

After reviewing the past repayment history, and the behaviour of the
vendor, the Directors are of the view that there is difficulty in debt
collection because the repayment ability of the debtor is adversely affected
by (i) the economic downturn; and (ii) the COVID-19 pandemic which
affected the cash flow of the debtor. As a result, the outstanding refundable
amount of approximately HK$68,458,000 has been fully provided for the
year ended 3| March 2020 (2019: HK$1,087,000).

*  For identification purpose only
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Trading Business

The Group strives to seek profitable trading business in order to enhance
the diversity of our business and increase revenue. For the year ended 3|1
March 2019, the Group traded electric wires in Hong Kong on one-off and
trial basis and recognised a revenue of approximately HK$32,760,000 and
a gross profit of approximately HK$397,000. During the Year, the Group
traded bottled water products in the PRC on an one-off and trial basis as
set out in the subsection headed “Water Production and Sales” above. Due
to the outbreak of COVID-19 in early 2020, our sales plan has been hugely
affected and only minimal sales were recorded in 2020. The Group will
consider, depending on the actual market circumstances and opportunities,
to identify new sources of general merchandises and engage in trading

business in Hong Kong, the PRC or elsewhere.

Response to outbreak of COVID-19

Since mid-January 2020, COVID-19 spread widely in the PRC. Facing
the grim situation of the COVID-19 outbreak, the Group has, in a timely
manner, put in place numerous precautionary measures and procured
essential protective supplies to ensure the health and safety of all its
employees in different regions. At the same time, during this critical period,

the Group has proactively taken steps in ensuring stable operations.

The Group is coordinating with various parties from time to time and takes
swift actions whenever necessary. It actively discusses with the vendors
and customers on the effect of delay in the delivery due to the traffic
restrictions imposed by the PRC government authorities. The Group also
implements various flexible working arrangements for its staff. The Group
has used, and will continue to use, its best endeavors to mitigate the

adverse impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on the Group.
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The Group will closely monitor the development of COVID-19 and ensure
the safety of employees and stable operations. As and when appropriate,
the Group will adjust its measures and plans for epidemic prevention,
operations and business development accordingly. The Group will make

timely disclosure on any significant matters which may arise in the future.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group is committed to the long term sustainability of the environment
and communities in which it operates. As a responsible corporation,
the Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations regarding
environmental protection, health and safety, workplace conditions and
employment has adopted effective measures to achieve efficient use of

resources, energy saving and waste reduction.

Compliance with Laws and Regulations
During the year ended 31 March 2020, there was no incident of significant

non-compliance with any relevant laws and regulations for the Group.

Relationship with Suppliers, Customers and other
Stakeholders

During the year ended 31 March 2020, there were no material dispute
between the Group and its key stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and Shareholders. The Group will
continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good relationship

with each of its key stakeholders.

PROSPECTS

Despite the short-term economic downturn resulting from, inter alia, the
Sino-US trade dispute and COVID-19, the Directors are optimistic about
the economic development of the PRC in the long run and the demands
for water products and properties in the PRC will remain strong and
sustainable. The Group will continue to strengthen its competitive strength
in its core business, i.e. water business, property development and property
investment business and look for appropriate business and investment
opportunities in these areas. The management also remains open for other

business opportunities whenever the same arise.
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SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS
As at 31 March 2020, the Group had significant investments in equity
securities classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss. The

details are set out as follows:

BEARE

RZE-_ZTF=ZA=+—H8 ~&EHEED
HASBEREATEARZEREENSE
ABABHIEE - FBOT -

640 Infinity Development Holdings 1,000,000 0.17% 610
Company Limited
ERSRIRERAT
47 Shenyang Public Utiity Holdings 13,100,000 216% 3930
Company Limited
ERLARRERNARAT

110 70 1.20% 0.03%

(1795) 2135 T4.78% 0.10%

4540

(1,685) 285 100.00% 0.13%
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Brief description of the principal business and the future prospect of the BEZEREFEZEQRTRMUMER REB
investee companies based on the information published by those investee ZNRIEEEBRARAEHTOT ¢

companies are set out below:

Name of investee company Principal business and future prospect

REBBRLQAEH FEEBRRRAR

Infinity Development Holdings That company is principally engaged in the manufacturing and sales of adhesives,
Company Limited primers, hardeners, vulcanized shoes adhesive related products used by the footwear

manufacturers and acting as the sales agent for adhesive used in the production of
electronic products.

ERERERARAA ZAREENEEENHERERMERANBYE - BRE - B - wER
HEMRAERARREHEEES FEMMANBRE -

As disclosed in the interim results announcement of that company for the six months
ended 31 March 2020, in view of the current epidemic effect upon the global, it is
difficult to predict how long it will last. The market currently adopts a wait and see
approach to the epidemic effect. As such, it is more difficult for the Board of the
company to predict the sales performance of the Company in 2020. Due to the global
demand for footwear still growing continually, more stringent requirement from the
manufacturers for the quality of adhesives which would gradually eliminate industry
players with less competitiveness, the demand for the use of environmental water-
based adhesive products by footwear brands and manufacturers still growing, the effect
of the previous regional deployments of the Company has become prominent under
the changes in the market. The Company has been maintaining good relationships with
our prestige customers for a number of years. As such, the Board of the Company
expects that the growth of the Company's sales in the medium to long term will remain
stable. The Company will devote necessary resources to further increase its market
share if appropriate.
BOZARBE_Z_ZEF=A=1T—HIEXNEANFEREERMGIRE  ER
BRARTHERNOTZE  HUEABEAMSHES A - mBHEKBEANRITH
ERMFFHERE - At - AATEFSER/BEUNENAEEAR T _TFH
HEXE BN E2RERFTRNHELE  WERYBHANREERERE
& WEBRFOHEENTES BEREHEOBA - BIE M2 R EGE R HERRR
IKEBHBIER FRIMFEE R - ARFZAMENREMBRBETSEETE
ERK - RRABZFRARFNEERPEFRIFOBRF - Fit - ARAES
SEHAARBPRANHFEERRSEFTRTE - ARARRALTNERAE—F
RAEMSEAE(HER) o
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Shenyang Public Utility Holdings
Company Limited
BB NRERKRNHBRAR

That company’s principal businesses is construction of infrastructure and development
of properties.

ZRTNETEEBEEWRMBEIRYELRE -

As disclosed in the annual report of that company for the year ended 31 December
2019, the Company will actively cope with the severe economic environment locally
and abroad, stabilise existing businesses and strictly monitor operational risks. At the
same time, it will actively explore projects with higher development prospects and

optimise resource allocation to enhance the Group's overall capabilities.

HBUZARNBE_ZT-—NFT _A=T—HLFENFHRMAEE - AT KER
EHBEASNRIEHNQERE  RERAEBRBERERZERR - A - L&

BHAMEAERASNER REBLERDE - LT AEEEEEN -

The Directors believe that the future performance of the equity securities EEMRE AEEMB B LT ARIR
of those companies listed on the Stock Exchange held by the Group will be REH ARKBBEZERBLBERE  BEX
affected by the overall economic environment, capital market conditions, mHERR - REEZEBEMKREBRRANE

= =

investor sentiment and the business performance of the investee BERAMTE EEGBETREBSKAR
companies. The Board will continue to look for attractive investment SINW PR RBREEE R IREKS -
opportunities which can generate better returns to its shareholders from B EXFIHEEIN AEEREEZE-_ZE-F
time to time. Save as disclosed above, there were no other significant FEA=tT—HUEFELRETHMERK
investments by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2020. & o

DIVIDEND

iz 2.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year EETEBERNEBE T _TF=A=1—

ended 3| March 2020 (2019: Nil).

ALFEEZRBEBRE(ZT—NEF &) -
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FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES OF THE GROUP REBZEETH
Placing of Shares on 3 August 2018 R-ZE-NENA=ZHEER K

The net proceeds (net of all relevant costs and expenses) from placing RZZE-NFNA=H  REENEELES
of shares under specific mandate on 3 August 2018 were approximately &1 2 RS s B R 58 (NPT B Bk AN 2 B
HK$316,500,000. Details of the placing of shares were set out in the ) #7$316,500,0008 7T © BLE D < 15 #
announcements of the Company dated 17 April 2018 and 3 August 2018 RAEARRBA-_ZT—N\FUA++tBENK -
and the circular of the Company dated 5 June 2018. E-NFENAZHZRAMARRRRIBER
ZE-NFXALBZBEHA -

Up to 31 March 2020, the Group had used the net proceeds as follows: HE-_ZE-_EF=-FA=+—H XEEDE
RFEFIBFRENT -

Remaining
balance of
Utilisation net proceeds

up to as at
Intended use of Original allocation of ~ Actual use of Actual allocation of 31 March 31 March
net proceeds net proceeds net proceeds net proceeds 2020 2020
BE R-ZoEF
—Z-%% =A=t+-H
ZA=t-B FENEER
ARz RERE FERARRZRELE FERERECERAR FEREREZRRIE EER ZEE
% of net % of net
HK$’million proceeds HK$’million proceeds HK$’million HK$’million
FrEREFE FEREFE
BEAR Bak BEER BOk BEAT BEER
Capital expenditure on the 56.0 |7.7% Capital expenditure on the 56.0 17.7% 56 50.4
production facilities of production facilities of
Hunan Xintian Hunan Xintian
MEHHLEREL HEMBLEREL
EXRX CUNGEY
Potential acquisition of 2130 67.3% Acquisition of Shenyang 2130 67.3% 2130 -
business or companies Properties
EREBRATYWE RERRNE
Working capital of the Group 475 [5.0% Working capital of the Group 475 15.0% 29.7 178
rREEEES AEE7EEES
3165 100.0% 3165 100.0% 2483 682
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With a view to putting the Company's resources to a better use, the
Board had therefore temporarily re-allocated the aforesaid unutilised
net proceeds for the use of acquisition of the Shenyang Properties.
As disclosed in the announcements dated 24 April 2019, | November
2019, 29 April 2020 and 8 May 2020, the acquisition of the Shenyang
Property had been terminated and the Group will consider all possible
ways to recover the Refund Amount of RMB562.5 million and related
compensation and interests. The Board will deploy the unutilised net
proceeds of approximately HK$68.2 million back to the capital expenditure
on production facilities of Hunan Xintian and working capital of the Group
as and when appropriate after taking into account the market environment

at the material time.

The unutilised net proceeds for the use of the capital expenditure on the
production facilities of Hunan Xintian is expected to be used between
September 2020 to late 2021 and that for the use of working capital will

continue to be used on the daily operations of the Group.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Total equity attributable to owners of the Company decreases from
approximately HK$2,213,608,000 as at 31 March 2019 to approximately
HK$1,811,528,000 as at 31 March 2020. The decrease arose from the loss
attributable to owners of the Company. There were no other material

change in the capital structure of the Group during the Year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$2,115,424,000 (2019: HK$2,720,466,000) which was financed
by current liabilities of approximately HK$190,585,000 (2019:
HK$371,716,000), non-controlling interests of approximately
HK$ 102,189,000 (2019: HK$118,690,000) and shareholders’ equity of
approximately HK$1,811,528,000 (2019: HK$2,213,608,000).
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As at 31 March 2020, the Group's current ratio was approximately 5.6
(2019: 2.6). Current ratio is calculated based on current assets divided by

current liabilities.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group's gearing ratio was nil (2019: Nil). Gearing

ratio is calculated based on total borrowings divided by total equity.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS OR DISPOSALS

The Group has no material acquisition or disposal during the Year.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Details of significant subsequent events are set out in note 45 to the

consolidated financial statements.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATION IN EXCHANGE
RATES

The Group is mainly exposed to fluctuation in the exchange rate of
RMB, arising from relevant group entities’ monetary assets and liabilities

denominated in foreign currency for the Group's operating activities.

The Group currently does not have a foreign currency hedging policy
to eliminate the currency exposures. However, the management closely
monitors the relevant foreign currency exposure from time to time and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposures should the need

arise.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

The Group has a total of approximately 55 (2019: 47) employees in Hong
Kong and the PRC as at 31 March 2020. The total staff cost (staff salaries,
directors’ emoluments and other staff costs) for the year ended 31 March
2020 amounted to approximately HK$14,792,000 (2019: HK$9,638,000).
Remuneration packages are generally structured according to market
environment and individual performance. Apart from the mandatory
provident fund and statutory retirement benefits, the Group also provides
medical benefits and subsidises employees in various training and

continuous education programs.
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CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT
LIABILITIES

Save and except those disclosed in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any capital commitments and

contingent liabilities as at 31 March 2020.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

Save and except those disclosed in note 39 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have other financial guarantee contracts as
at 31 March 2020.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

Save and except those disclosed in note 21 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any charges over the Group's assets as
at 31 March 2020.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my gratitude to our shareholders and business associates for their ongoing
support and extend our appreciation to our management team and staff

members for their contributions in the year.

By order of the Board

Li Yuguo

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEFWRE

The Directors of the Company present their annual report and the audited

consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in note 42 to the

consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive

income on pages 74 to 75.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”), pursuant
to which the Company may distribute dividends to the shareholders of
the Company by way of cash or shares. Any distribution of dividends shall
be in accordance with the Articles of Association of the company and the

distribution shall achieve continuity, stability and sustainability.

The recommendation of the payment of any dividend is subject to the
discretion of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend will be subject
to the approval of the Shareholders. In proposing any dividend payout, the
Board shall also take into account, inter alia, the Group's earnings per share,
the reasonable return in investment of the investors and the shareholders
in order to provide incentive to them to continue to support the Group in
their long-term development, the financial conditions and business plan of

the Group, and the market sentiment and circumstances.

The Dividend Policy will be reviewed from time to time and there is no
assurance that a dividend will be proposed or declared in any specific

periods.

The Board does not recommend the payment of final dividend for the year
ended 3| March 2020.
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SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 March 2020, the total number of issued ordinary shares of the
Company was 7,61 1,690,000 (2019: 7,611,690,000). Details of the share
capital of the Company are set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial

statements.

SHARE OPTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, no share option has been granted,
exercised or cancelled. A total of 99,620,000 share options have lapsed. As

at 31 March 2020, there were no outstanding share options.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group'’s business during the year ended 31 March 2020
are set out in the paragraph headed "BUSINESS REVIEW” under “BOARD
OF DIRECTOR’S STATEMENT, MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND
ANALYSIS” which forms part of this Directors’ Report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s has identified the principal risks and uncertainties in the
industries in which the Group operates. The risks and uncertainties may
affect the operations and results of the Group. The principal risks and

uncertainties include but not limited to the followings:

(1) Risks relating to property market in the PRC
The Group's businesses and prospects are largely dependent on
the performance of the property market in the PRC. The property
market in the PRC is affected by a number of factors, including,
inter alia, changes in social, political, economic and legal environment,
as well as changes in the government's financial, economic, monetary,
industrial and environmental conservation policies. The Group is also
susceptible to changes in economic conditions, consumer confidence,
consumption spending, and changes in consumption preferences.
Therefore, the Group continues to implement its strategies to
develop and strengthen penetration and coverage different regional
markets thereby reducing its dependence on specific markets. The
Group's operation is subject to a number of risk factors specific to

property development and property investment.
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(2)

(3)

4)

Risks relating to water business in the PRC

The Group could be affected by change in consumer preferences,
perception and spending patterns relating to bottled water. The
growth in demand for bottled water products in the PRC has been
driven in part by the overall growth in the PRC economy and
disposable income of consumers. Any macroeconomic changes in the
PRC that adversely affect consumer consumption for the beverage

products could have a material adverse effect on our business.

Risks relating to business operation

Management of internal and external business operation of the Group
may be subject to a series of risks, such as increase in production
cost and raw material cost, rise in labour cost, insufficiency of internal
management procedure, non-compliance of key staff members and
default by suppliers. In spite of measures formulated by the Group
for managing such risks, any unforeseen circumstances may adversely

affect the operating results of the Group.

Financial risks

The Group's activities are exposed to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, cash flow and fair value interest
rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk
management framework focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the
Group's financial performance. Details are set out in note 3 to the

consolidated financial statements.
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(3)
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), the contributed
surplus of the Company is available for distribution to shareholders.
However, a company shall not declare or pay a dividend, or make a

distribution out of contributed surplus, if:

(i) itis, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they

become due: or

(i) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than the
aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital and share

premium accounts.

The Company has deficit at 31 March 2020 which comprises contributed
surplus of approximately HK$180,030,000 less accumulated losses of
approximately HK$2,054,752,000. Accordingly, the Company has no
reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 31 March 2020.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2020 are set out in note |7 to the

consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors of the Company during the year ended 31 March 2020 and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Li Yuguo

Mr. Liu Yan Chee James
Ms. Guo Yumei

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yang Xiaogiang
Mr. Huang Yilin

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ba Junyu

Mr. Zhu Xueyi

Mr. Wong Chung Man
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In accordance with Bye-Law 87(1) of the Company's Bye-laws, Ms. Guo
Yumei, Mr. Huang Yilin and Mr. Ba Junyu will retire by rotation at the
forthcoming annual general meeting, and, being eligible, offer themselves

for re-election as Directors at the annual general meeting.

The term of office of each of the Independent Non-executive Directors is
three years subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the annual

general meetings as required by the Company's Bye-laws.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has any unexpired service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group
within one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory

compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debenture
of the Company

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
("SFO")), as recorded in the register maintained by the Company under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Companies as set out in Appendix |0 (the “Model
Code”) to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock

Exchange (the “Listing Rules™) were as follows:
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Long positions in shares, underlying shares and RALGREG - HEKRGREREZ
debentures of the Company HE

Li Yuguo Beneficial owner 2,268,000,000 29.80%
FxH ESEEA
Yang Xiaogiang Beneficial owner 354,820,000 4.66%
O ESEEA
Liu Yan Chee James Beneficial owner 104,800,000 1.38%
21R% ESBEA
Huang Yilin Beneficial owner 70,000 0.00%
BRM ESEEA
Wong Chung Man Beneficial owner 1,650,000 0.02%
B ESEEA
Note: Wit -

The percentages calculated are based on the total number of issued shares of the Company of ZEADLHIREARNRR-_ZE-_ZF=—A=+—HBZE
7,611,690,000 Shares as at 31 March 2020. BT 48 207,61 1,690,000 AR 1A 5T ©
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, none of the Directors or
the chief executives of the Company or their associates had any interests
or short positions in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on |4 January 2002
(the 2002 Share Option Scheme”) had been terminated on 9 August 201 |
and a new share option scheme (the “201 | Share Option Scheme’) was

adopted by the Company on 9 August 201 I.

2002 Share Option Scheme

As at 31 March 2020, there were no outstanding share options under 2002
Share Option Scheme.
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During the year under review, the details and movements in the share ROBEFER  BIE_ZZ -FEKRETD

options granted under 2002 Share Option Scheme are as follows: CEBEREZFERESHET
Number of share options
BREHE

Adjusted

exercise price Outstanding at Lapsed during Outstanding at

Date of grant Exercisable period per share | April 2019 the year 31 March 2020

R=B-1% Ro2-%F

LRESR mA-H ZA=t-H

Rt AH M T8 WA REREN HATE
HK$
i

Category |: Director
Ehl- %

Zhang Xianlin (Note) 12 Jul 201 [2Jul 2011 = 11 Jul 2021 1.775 140000 (140,000) -
REM(IZ) “E——#+f+-f —E——EtRft-RE
Sl =

Total for Director 140,000 (140,000) -
B3t

Category 2: Employees
A= BB

Employees 12Jul 2011 [2Jul 2011 = 11 Jul 202 1,775 80,000 (80,000) -
[E8 “E——ELft-B -“E-FLft-HE
“F--F+At+-H

Total for Employees 80,000 (80,000) -
ER4

Total for all categories 220,000 (220,000) -
iRkl by

Note: Resigned with effect from | August 2018. M BEME 8T N\FENA-BRER-

The closing price of the Company’s shares quoted on the Stock Exchange RARIBROAREBR(ZZE——F A+ =

on the date of grant of 12 July 201 | was HK$0.07| (adjusted to HK$1.775 B)REBEAZ P WA BR0.0718 T (R

upon capital reorganization became effective on 3 June 2013). = RNAZABRERENERER
1.775%87T) °
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2011 Share Option Scheme —E——FERENE
Reference is also made to the circular of the Company dated 2 August MR ARRHAZE—N\FENAZH
2018. On 31 August 2018, an ordinary resolution was duly passed by the 2K NZE-NFNA=+—HB  —1E
shareholders at annual general meeting of the Company, approving, inter TRRZRERADNR ZRERBF R FER
alia, to refresh the scheme mandate limit under the 201 | Share Option RIERBB  UHEEFRFE)EHAR
Scheme of the Company adopted on 9 August 201 1. The refreshed AR - E——FNAALBRH 2 T ——
scheme limit as at 31 August 2018 was 761,169,000. FHERETBIET 28R ERSE - R_F
—NFENA=T—RAZEEHHERES
761,169,00017 ©

As at 31 March 2020, there were no outstanding share option under 201 | RZE_ZTEF=-_A=+—H —T——FE
Share Option Scheme. [ #E 5T B T8 T U B A AR 1 AR AT 2 B AR A o

During the year under review, the details and movements in the share REBEFERN  RE_ZS—— FERETS
options granted under 201 | Share Option Scheme are as follows: EREZEREZFBERESHNT

Number of share options

BRERE
Outstanding at
Exercise price I April  Lapsed during  Outstanding at
Date of grant Exercisable period per share 2019 the year 31 March 2020
RZE-1% R-2-2F
1 mA-A ZR=+-H
R A yid | HALTE REAKN HATTE
HK$
AL
Category I: Directors
Bhl- &%
Chan Shi Yin, Keith (Note i) -~ 20 Apr 2015 20 Apr 2015 - 19 Apr 2025 0395 27,000,000 (27,000,000) -
REB(WE) “E-REMA-TA CE-RFMA-THE
“Z-RENATAR
28 Sept 2016 28 Sept 2016 - 27 Sept 2026 026! 53,000,000 (53,000,000) -

2 EAAZHNE ZE-REAAZTNARE
“E-RFENAZTLE
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Zhang Xianlin (Note i) 26 Aug 2014 26 Aug 2014 - 25 Aug 2024 0352 200,000 (200,000) -
REM(Hti) “E-PFENAZ+RA ZE-RENAZTEE
“ECRENAZTEA
30ct 2014 30ct 2014 - 2 Oct 2024 0520 1,000,000 (1,000,000) -
—T-mE+A=A “T-mE+AZAZE
“ERETAZA
20 Apr 2015 20 Apr 2015 - 19 Apr 2025 0395 500,000 (500,000) -
“F-RFNA-THE —Z-RfNA-tHE
ZEZRENATIA
28 Sept 2016 28 Sept 2016 — 27 Sept 2026 026 5,000,000 (5,000,000) -

“E-REAACHNE ZE-RENAZTAREZE
“E-RFNAZTLE

Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse 26 Aug 2014 26 Aug 2014 - 25 Aug 2024 0352 200,000 (200,000) -
(Note i) “T-UENAZTAE —Z-EENB-1EE
DER W) “R-MENAZTEA
30ct 2014 30ct 2014 -2 Oct 2024 0520 1,000,000 (1,000,000) -
“Z-mETAZA “T-ME+A=RE
“R-METAZA
20 Apr 2015 20 Apr 2015 - 19 Apr 2025 0395 500,000 (500,000) -
“E-RfMAZTHE ZE-REMACTEE
“ZZRENMATAR
28 Sept 2016 28 Sept 2016 - 27 Sept 2026 026! 5,000,000 (5,000,000) -

“E-AERRZTAR SE-AEAASTNAE
“E-AEAAZHER

Total for Directors 93,400,000 (93,400,000 -
£
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Number of share options

BRERE
Outstanding at
Exercise price I April  Lapsed during  Outstanding at
Date of grant Exercisable period per share 2019 the year 31 March 2020
RZE-NF R-2-%F
8k mA-A ZR=+-B

R A% Gy i@ LESd REAXR WARTE
HK$
BT
Category 2: Employees
BA- &S
Employees 26 Aug 2014 26 Aug 2014 - 25 Aug 2024 0352 500,000 (500,000) -
E& ZE-MENAZTARE ZE-EENAZTAREE
“E-mENAZTIA
30ct 2014 30ct 2014 -2 Oct 2024 0520 1,000,000 (1,000,000) -
“E-EE+A=A “T-mETAZRZE
“E-METAZR
28 Sept 2016 28 Sept 2016 - 27 Sept 2026 0261 4,500,000 (4,500,000) -
ZE-NEAAZTNE ZE-REAACTARE
ZRNENAZTER
Total for Employees 6,000,000 (6,000,000 -
EE&s
Total for all categories 99,400,000 (99,400,000 -
FrEER At
Notes: Hiat -

(i) Retired with effect from 31 August 2018.

(i) Resigned with effect from | August 2018.

The closing price of the Company’s shares quoted on the Stock Exchange
on the respective dates of grant of 26 August 2014, 3 October 2014, 20
April 2015 and 28 September 2016 were HK$0.345, HK$0.520, HK$0.395
and HK$0.255 respectively.

() BEE AZE\FNASt+—BREER-

RARIBOHRELHBB (DR AT —NE
NAZ+ "B - ZFE—WHF+A=H =%
—RFNA-Z+HEZZE—F~"FEALAZ+tN
H ) R B R BT AT 3R 2 W T B 5 Bl /£0.345 758
JC ~ 0.520 7T ~ 0.3958 7T &0.2554 T °
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed above in respect of the Directors’ interests in securities
and share options, at no time during the year ended 31 March 2020, was
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debt securities (including debentures) of, the

Company or any other body corporate.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2020, so far as was known to the Directors and the chief
executives of the Company, the following persons (other than any director
and chief executives of the Company) who had interests or short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO, or as recorded in the register to be kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange:

Long positions in shares and underlying shares of the
Company

Name of shareholder Capacity

BRERER %)

Li Yuguo Beneficial owner
FEHE BERmBEEA

Note: The percentages calculated are based on the total number of issued shares of the

Company of 7,61 1,690,000 Shares as at 31 March 2020.
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Save as disclosed above, the Company had not been notified and is not
aware of any other person who had an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO
as having an interest of 5% or more in the issued shares capital of the
Company as at 3| March 2020.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no contracts of significance
to which the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended 31 March 2020.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Sale of Bottled Water Products

On 4 April 2019, Beijing Qiaofeng Commercial Trading Company Limited*
(AERBEMEBR AR (the "Purchaser”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and Guangxi Spring Water Ding Dong Beverages Company
Limited* (BFARKITEEmBARA

controlled by Mr. Li Yuguo, the Chairman, an Executive Director and a

Al) (the “Supplier”), a company

substantial shareholder of the Company, entered into the agreement,
pursuant to which the Supplier has agreed to supply, and the Purchaser has
agreed to procure, bottled water products. For details, please refer to the

announcement of the Company dated 4 April 2019.

Termination of the Acquisition of Properties

The purchaser, Asiaciti Investment Limited, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company entered into sale and purchase agreement
on 12 October 2017 (the “Sale and Purchase Agreement”) with the
vendor, EE B EZBFR/AF], to purchase the properties comprising
Floors 7 to 35 of Building T3 situated at 46 Nanjing North Street, Heping
District, Shenyang City, Liaoning Province, PRC under the Shenyang
Commodity Housing Pre-sale Permit No. 16122 for a total consideration
of RMB625,000,000 (subject to adjustment). The vendor was a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability and beneficially owned by
Mr. Li Yuguo (“Mr. Li"), a substantial shareholder, the Chairman and an

Executive Director of the Company.

*  For identification purpose only

BEXFREESN  RoE-BFZ A= —
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On 24 April 2019, the vendor and the purchaser entered into a termination
agreement (the “Termination Agreement”), pursuant to which, (i)
the parties have mutually agreed to terminate the Sale and Purchase
Agreement and no parties shall have claims against each other; and (ii) on
or prior to 24 October 2019, the vendor shall refund a total amount of
RMB562,500,000 paid by the purchaser (the “Refund Amount”) and shall
pay a lump sum of RMBI 1,250,000, being 2% of the Refund Amount, to the

purchaser as monetary compensation.

On | November 2019, the purchaser and Mr. Li entered into a
supplemental agreement (the “Supplemental Agreement”), pursuant to
which, Mr. Li agreed to take up the responsibilities to repay the Refund
Amount and the related compensation and interests to the purchaser. The
purchaser agreed to extend the repayment date to 24 April 2020, with an
interest rate of 5.25% per annum. On 22 January 2020 and 27 February
2020, the purchaser and Mr. Li agreed to extend and further extend the
long stop date for the Supplemental Agreement to 29 February 2020 and
|5 March 2020 respectively.

The Supplemental Agreement (as amended by the two subsequent
agreements) constituted a connected transaction under Chapter [4A
of the Listing Rules. The Supplemental Agreement was approved by the
independent shareholders at the special general meeting of the Company
held on 3 March 2020.

Details of the above transactions were disclosed in the announcements of
the Company dated |2 October 2017, 24 April 2019, | November 2019,
22 January 2020, 27 February 2020, 29 April 2020 and 8 May 2020 and
the circulars of the Company dated 22 January 2018 and 6 February 2020

respectively.
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CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group had not made any
charitable donations (2019: Nil).

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The directors’ and officers’ liability insurance maintained by the Company
has expired on 20 May 2018. As the Company has not yet reached an
agreement with an insurer regarding the terms and insurance premium of
new insurance policy, the insurance cover in respect of legal action which
may be taken against the Directors of the Company has not been in place
since 21 May 2018. The Company will continue to liaise with the insurer on
the same.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in respect of convertible bonds and share options in
notes 3| and 33 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements that will or may result in the Company issuing shares or that
require the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may result
in the Company issuing shares were entered into by the Company during

the year ended 3| March 2020 or subsisted at the end of the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the revenue attributable to the
Group's largest customer accounted for approximately 1.0% (2019: 99.2%)
of the Group’s total revenue and the revenue attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for approximately 4.7% (2019: 100%) of

the Group's total revenue.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the costs incurred in respect of the
Group's largest supplier accounted for approximately 50.5% (2019: 100%)
of the Group’s total cost of sales and the costs incurred in respect of the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 73.4% (2019:
100%) of the Group's total cost of sales.

At no time during the year ended 3| March 2020, did a director, an
associate of a director or a shareholder of the Company, which to the
knowledge of the directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital, have an interest in any of the five largest suppliers or

customers of the Group.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 3| March 2020, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed

securities.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The remuneration policy of the employees of the Group is formulated on
the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. Apart from the
mandatory provident fund and statutory retirement benefits, the Group
also provides medical benefits and sponsored employees in different

training and continuous education program.

The remuneration of the Directors of the Company are determined, having
regard to the Company's operating results, individual performance and

comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to
Directors and eligible employees, details of which are set out in note 33 to

the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s Bye-
laws, or the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company to offer

new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2020, save as disclosed below, none of
the Directors or any of their respective close associates has engaged in any
business that competes or may compete with the business of the Group or

has any other conflict of interests with the Group.
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with 100% interest

Name of Director/ Name of

Associate company

BEE HMBALR NCIEE

Mr. Li Yuguo BEEREEXARAA
FERELE RIRE

CHANGE OF INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS
Public criticism on certain directors

On 20 January 2020, the Stock Exchange has issued a statement with public
criticism against Mr. Huang Yilin and Mr. Liu Yan Chee James to the effect
that the aforesaid directors to have breached Rule 3.08(f) of the Listing
Rules by failing to exercise sufficient skill, care and diligence in respect of
the Company’s acquisition of a spring water mine business. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Stock Exchange dated 20 January

2020 and the announcement of the Company dated 23 January 2020.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the year
ended 31 March 2020.

AUDITORS

A resolution to re-appoint Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited and to authorise
the Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed at the 2020 annual

general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Li Yuguo

Chairman

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020

Nature of interest

in the company

ROFzEHEME

Ultimate beneficial owner

=HEBA
A 100%ER

Business of

the company

DEEE

Principally engaged in
property development,
property leasing and sales
BUREVFRER
MERME MIHE

EEEREE
HETFEENEHMT

R-F-TE—A—+8  BRFHEER
oA R B BB A SR AR TR - i

HEEERARAR A QA YE B R
XBEITRANZEE  EENYVITENE

T &R EMRAE08(NIK - BRIFES -
BLHAMXBMA_TS_TF—A=T+

BZAHBRALNGEHAE - -_THF—H
T+ =B2ZAM

E%@%%&%
ARFEBRBE-F-FE=A=t+—AL
R R HATHIRE -

% B
FRABBEHNEBHERA A RERE
FEEREFH L —EREEBR_F_F
FREAFAE RS -

RERESEE

FE

ZXH

BE —ZE_ZEFXA-FNH

Annual Report 2020 ¥

59



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BN 2B AR

STEISEHABRAT

LAU | 2IEREZEEE =]
LAU & AU YEUNG C.P.A. LIMITED

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
ASIA RESOURCES HOLDINGS LIMITED

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Asia Resources
Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 74 to 222, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 March 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows
for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,

including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“"HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong

Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to

provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) BB EIE (&)

How our audit addressed the key audit

Key audit matters matter

HAREETER BBt NAEEZERETEE

Recoverability of properties under development and completed properties held for sale

BRERPURRFFELEZEERYR 2 TR E M

Refer to Notes 21 and 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

2R E M HRR M2 K22 -

The Group had approximately HK$218,330,000 of properties under Our procedures in relation to management's
development and HK$99,265,000 of completed properties held for sale assessment of recoverability of properties

as at 31 March 2020. under development and completed properties
R-F-_FF=RA=1+—H0 BEXEFEEETYHEA218330000  held for sale included:
BILRFHELE 2 B &R 4999,265,000/8 7T HPENEREHERTYMELFELEZ

BEREKYME 2 R EMEMEZFHE B R 212
Management assessed the recoverability of properties under FFets
development and completed properties held for sale based on an

estimation of the net realisable value of the underlying properties. This * Assessing the reasonableness of

involves considerable analyses of estimated costs to completion and key assumptions and estimates in

management’s assessment, including:

c AMEEERIREERIGHRMETHNE

committed contracts and expected future sales price based on prevailing

market conditions such as current market prices of comparable standards B BT

and locations.

ERERBEBAYEZGAAERFETLERTYERSELE * expected future sales prices which
ZEERMEZAENE - BHPRERET RAER 2K we compared to contracted sales
AREREE TR (PN E L REERE 28 A E) 2 BHA prices of the underlying properties or
HEE Y KB A - current market prices of properties of

comparable standards and locations,
where applicable; and

- REHAREEEEBENENGLD
EERAELRFERUEMED
ERTTHE(ER)ETHE : &
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters

HAREETER

R ETSHGE)

How our audit addressed the key audit

matter

BBt NAEEZERETEE

Recoverability of properties under development and completed properties held for sale (continued)

BREDYERBEHEZCERYE 2 TRE ()

If the actual net realisable values of the underlying stock of properties
fluctuate from those values estimated as a result of changes in market
condition, material reversal of or provision for impairment losses on

properties under development and completed properties held for sale

may result.
HEMMEFENERTZRFERATREEMEZFATEET
[ BIFTRESI BB ABERPMERFIEHE ZC B M ERERE
[l B Sk

Due to the significance of properties under development and completed
properties held for sale, the estimation uncertainty and management
judgement, we considered this a key audit matter.
HRERTHERFELEZEZXMENEEN - B THEE
MR EEEHE - RAR AU ERETFE -

* anticipated costs to completion
and committed contracts which we
compared to latest approved budgets
on total construction costs and checked
to supporting documentation.

« BETINAEANNERKAER
BB ARERNAREETHER
REERAXM -

We found that management’s assessment
of recoverability of properties under
development and completed properties held
for sale is supported by the available evidence.
BACERFEEEHRRTYENBELE
Z BER R AT AR REA T B 1R
AR ©
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters

HAREEER

EREITSEHGE)

How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

BEMNEANAEEZRARESNSR

Impairment assessment of water mining licence included in intangible assets

FFABFEEE 2 BKEZBEN G

Refer to Note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHERE M IEMARMEI9 ©

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amounts of the water mining licence
included in intangible assets was approximately HK$327,200,000.
R-ZB-BF=ZA=+—RH FABEREEZFKEZREAERY
327,200,000/ 7T °

As detailed in note |9 to the consolidated financial statements,
commercial production of bottled mineral water has not yet commenced
during the year.

R E ISR MG 19FT A - M AE R OK A B 2 A E N F R R
% o

The Group is required to consider any indication of impairment on the
water mining licence at the end of each reporting period. Management
determined the recoverable amount of the water mining licence based
on the fair value estimated by an independent external expert who used
multi period excess earnings method, in which key assumptions included
expected price of bottled mineral water, net profit margin and discount
rate.
EREARNERERREBFKETARETR - REBILINGE
REAZ BB LM B ZAFEETNEIERRBERERE
RIRZTEHIER - MR REFBR) - BEEETHRKEZAIREE
Ll
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Our procedures in relation to impairment

assessment of water mining licence included:

BEOKEAE 2 RER S ZIEF B2

* Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology, key assumptions and
estimates used based on general conditions
of the bottled mineral water industry;

o REBMEBRRKITEZ —BIRRFE FT
EAMMBERZE  TERZRMGES
B

* Evaluating the competence, capabilities,
objectivity and independence of the
management's expert; and
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) RSt E1E ()

How our audit addressed the key audit

Key audit matters matter

HAREEER BEMNEANAEEZRARESNSR

Impairment assessment of water mining licence included in intangible assets (continued)

FFABREEE 2 BFKEZBERN ()

This area was significant to our audit due to the significance of the * Checking the key assumptions including
balances, and the fact that management’s assessment of the recoverable expected price of bottled mineral water,
amount of the balances involved significant judgement. net profit margin and discount rate against
HRBRBIFTEAREEENARB 2 I RE SRS REAHE industry data.

HEHEREZEZER - - BRUTXBEBEERIEZERR(BERER

RIKZTERER - MR RIFRE) -

We found that the key assumptions were

supported by the available evidence.

BRPEEEXI2HERIDAEAK -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED) RSt =1E ()

How our audit addressed the key audit

Key audit matters matter

HAEETER BN ETNAEEZBERENSE

Impairment assessment of interests in associates

REE DTz R ER L

Refer to Note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.
SHRA B BREK W -

The Group has 20% equity interests in Hong Kong Spring Water Ding Our procedures in relation to management'’s
Dong Group Company Limited and its wholly-owned subsidiary in impairment assessment of interests in
Guangxi, which are presented as interests in associates under the equity associates included:

method. The principal activities of the associates are production and sales HMEREREEBE AR 2R FTERR
of bottled mineral water. As at 31 March 2020, the interests in associates B EMEF e

amounted to approximately HK$201,076,000 and the related share of

/|

losses of the associates was approximately HK$9,441,000. * Assessing the competence, capabilities,
EEEREEARKTREEFRATKEEAZEMNBAGZ objectivity and independence of the
0% HE - Wi ABREBE AR ZERZEY - BERRINEE management's expert;
EBREENHERRBRK RZE-_TF=A=1+—8 R - AMAEEERERZKE BN BB
E R A 2 R KI201,076,00078 T RAB B S G % B E R EIEIE AL KB

9,441,000/8 7T °
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters

HAEETER

Impairment assessment of interests in associates (continued)

REtE N8z R ET (&)

The management performed impairment assessment of interests in
associates with the use of valuation performed by an independent
professional external valuer based on the value in use calculation.
The valuation requires the application of significant judgement and
estimation by the management in determining the appropriate valuation
methodology, use of assumptions and judgements.
EEERNEE QR 2 B ETRENE - JIERBILE IR
ERMZEREBEFEEZGHZGAE HEFTZEEEERBERAL
KfhEr - WOREEE 2 BETE - ERERR LA -

R ETSHGE)

How our audit addressed the key audit

matter

BN ETNAEEZBERENSE

* Assessing the appropriateness of valuation
methodology, key assumptions and
estimates used based on the general
conditions of the bottled water industry;
and

o RBHREKITRZ —BARRFE A ER
MEESE  TEBRRRMEFESS
K

* Checking the key assumptions including
expected price of bottled water, gross
profit margin and discount rate against
industry data.

- BOXBEBEEHREIZRI(BEMEK
ZTEHER - EMERIFRE) -

We found that the key assumptions were
supported by the available evidence.

HPEEEXI2BERIDAEAK -
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

Key audit matters

BEETER

R ETSHGE)

How our audit addressed the key audit

matter

BN ETNAEEZBERENSEE

Impairment assessment on deposit paid for the acquisition of Shenyang Properties

RBBEBN R NNES ZBEF

Refer to Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.
SHRE B BREM LS -

As at 31 March 2020, the carrying amount of deposit paid for the
acquisition of Shenyang Properties (“Deposit Paid") and related
compensation and interest receivable (“Receivables”) were
approximately HK$614,053,000 and HK$26,583,000 respectively.
R-ZZE-ZEF=ZA=+—H  BRURBESYEINZS([EMEZ
T ) REENRUKIEER LB ([ RKH]) 2 REEBELOD BIRE
614,053,000/8 7T }226,583,0008 7T °

As detailed in note 25(ii) to the consolidated financial statements,
termination agreement was signed on 24 April 2019 to terminate the
transaction. Mr. Li Yuguo, the substantial shareholder, agreed to repay
the Deposits Paid and Receivables in a supplemental agreement on
I November 2019.

BANAR A B SRR M FE 25N PRl - RIEBHRER T — L F N A
“TMBET  UARIERS - EZTE-NEF T+ A BRI HHE
o TERRFERELERBEES RS REKK -

The Group is required to consider any indication of impairment on the
Deposit Paid and Receivables. Assessing the impairment of such assets is a
judgemental area which involved significant management’s judgement and
estimation in forecasting future economic conditions.
EEEAZEENES NERANEMBRETR - FHEREEZ
BB N B R B S TR RIR SR A O A th B B K B I A R FRORIR
HRAEEARDL ©
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Our procedures in relation to impairment
assessment of Deposit Paid and Receivables
included:
BAERC e RERYGRARER 212
Freds

* Assessing whether the fair value of
securities provided is sufficient to cover the
Deposit Paid and Receivables;

- FHEARHEZEFAROAFERT BN
EHD RS KKK

* Discussing with management and
evaluating available information about the
status of the substantial shareholder.

- REBRRNENEEIE BN MTE
R -

We found that management’s assessment of
recoverability of Deposit Paid and Receivables
is supported by available evidence.
HPEEEEREREMIRE REUKE AT
Wl E 2SS T AR K



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
BN 2B AR

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements and our

auditors’ report thereon (“Other Information™).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance

conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
Other Information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to

report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS
AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In preparing the consolidated
financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease

operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial

reporting process.
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BN 2B AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users

taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We

also:

* ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

70  Asia Resources Holdings Limited | T2/ & RIZEAR AR A 7]

R ELED R B AR B B IS IR AR R
E2EE

BB RRUGAMBERREBRL TR
FERPIFFR R M E B2 B AR AE
SAERE  THABERMER ZZEED
HE - RAER BTUESRRIRRER
ZE—NN\—(RBRPE)E0MGFRE - FRitkzoh
BERBEBEMERW - RPTERAREZA
BAREMEMALTA ERAREREE - &
BREERKFZRE  ETERERRE
BB EREIT R RERBMFEL
ERERBRM o $5 3R BR Al 7T 88 b AR S B AR
Sl MRAEFAMEFUERZFTHRA
EFESRAMTRREAEREXSZMH R
RFTER 2 EERE - RIBREZ $8RR RO AT
WRRBERX -

ERBEBEENENETERT ZBRES - &
PREM T EXHE - REFTHEXEREE -
BAIIL -

« BRI RFHEARRFFRERMEBRA
MBI FEERERRALZ AR
AARHITEAREF AR ELRR -
REBGE R MEE 2 ENRE  FRE
Mz RER - BRERFFAES SR
RoRE FRER ERRAIZER
M EBIERSIZ b - B R AE S IREBGF M
BYZBANBRBUL BB SNAREHE
RHRSERMER 2 EANFERRA 2 E

)
AA

< oo



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B A2 EN RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on

the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made

by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may

cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BN 2B AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair

presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the

group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT
BN 2B AR

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE R BT S I IS s R A
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL EeEE(E)

STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we WEEZETESBEBNEFIES - BT
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the L EIFH ARGV ERRNESRAE
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore B EMEKEEESEE - BIEZXEA
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report MEFRHMELEIE  BRIEEEERTAF
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or ARABEEELEE N ERFRNBER
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should T MREEEHERMBEHEREEE
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of ERMBAEARBREEN AR - B
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest PYRENEEREFBRBZEE -

benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent HERBY ZEMBENEZEEES AR

auditor’s report is Au Yeung Tin Wah. [HRZE o

Lau & Au Yeung C.P.A. Limited WG ETMEBAERAT
Certified Public Accountants HEZETRD

Au Yeung Tin Wah BEE R E

Practising Certificate Number: P02343 EFBEHES - P02343

Hong Kong, 29 June 2020 &8 —E-ZTFAZ+N1H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meBmkEAEERER

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

Continuing operations
Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross (loss)/profit

Other gains

Other losses

Selling and distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Share of results of associates

Provision for impairment loss on
intangible assets

Provision for impairment loss on
deposits paid

Provision for impairment loss on
properties under development

Provision for impairment loss on
completed properties held for sale

Provision for impairment loss on inventories

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries

Over-provision of land value added tax

Finance costs

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Loss for the year from
continuing operations

Loss for the year from
discontinued operations

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive income,
net of tax

Reclassification adjustments relating to
foreign operations disposed of during the
year

Share of other comprehensive income of
associates

Exchange differences on translating
foreign operations

Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax

FRSERK
YA
HEMRA

(£8)/EH

Hib Uy as

Hb 18

HE RO HFAX

TR
DIEBERE XS

B EERERBRRE
EffRe 2 BERERRE
BRAMEZREERRRE
FHEHL & 2 BRRME ZRE
gt
FEREEERE
aef=—gii) = PN 6

TR ERBRERE

BhE AR

BRBLAT R 18
B

FEEFRACERK 2
&8
FEEERIEXBZER
rEEBR

Htp 2 mE WK - BRBE

BRAFAELERIIERR
EM O ERE

DIEEE R R A M2
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Notes

Hrat

2020
—2-FF
HK$’000
FTERT

201,510
(288,754)

(354,920)

(63,661)

2019
—T-NEF
HK$'000
FET
32,760
(31,732)
1,028
1,908
(334)
(5918)

(32.947)
(17,152)

(1,087)
(66,440)
(72.821)

638
36,628
(14,314)
(170811
17,530
(153,281)
(6,112)

(159,393)

(9,520)
709

(71,062)

(79.873)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meBEmkEAEERER

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

2020 2019
—E-BHF —E-NEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hat TET FAT
Total comprehensive income AEEZEKZBE
for the year (239,266)
Loss attributable to: R
Owners of the Company RAFHEA A 16 (158,640)
Non-controlling interest VAR (753)
(159,393)
Total comprehensive income attributable to:  fE{F 2 UK S4B 58 ¢
Owners of the Company RATHEA A (239,191)
Non-controlling interest FEFEIRE (75)
(239,266)
HKS$
BT
Loss per share attributable to KATEEAEEERER
owners of the Company
From continuing and discontinued operations R BB S M BRI
~ Basic and diluted — EAREE l6 (0.022)
From continuing operations REAEFBELEER
— Basic and diluted — EAREE lé (0.021)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated MEM 2Pzt B2 S MBEHmETZ —285 -

ok

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
ara BRI R

Asat 3l March 2000 RZZE-_ZEF=A=+—H

2020 2019
—BBHF —E-NF
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
Hiat THERT FAET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEMERE 17 17,890 7616
Right-of-use assets FHREEE 18(a) 2,910 -
Intangible assets B EE 19 336,766 384,875
Interests in associates A NI 20 201,076 210517
Deposits paid DR 25 487,084 1,150,860
1,045,726 753,868
Current assets RBEE
Properties under development BRPYE 21 218,330 292,449
Completed properties held for sale BIEHEZEERYE 22 99,265 370,950
Inventories FE 23 299 _
Trade receivables Z 5 BRI 24 234 —
Prepayments, deposits and AR ~ ek
other receivables Hofth & U BR X 25 697,500 168,786
Amount due from an associate FEU —REtE N B 2 IAE 20 2,420 2,340
Financial assets at fair value BRATEAEREZ
through profit or loss CRIEE 26 yX:11 4540
Income tax prepaid AR ARG 248 248
Restricted bank deposits SRR HIBITIFER 27(a) 2,484 -
Bank balances and cash WITHBRRIRS 27(b) 46,063 127,285
1,069,698 966,598
Current liabilities REEE
Trade payables Z 5 EMRR 28 81,071
Other payables and accruals HAi EMBRR K EETE A 29 123,909
Contract liabilities AHBaE 166,272
Lease liabilities HEBE 18(b) -
Tax payable TR 464
190,585 371,716
Net current assets REBEEZFRE 879,113 594,882
Total assets less current liabilities EEAERTHERE 1,924,839 2,348,750
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e AR AR

Asat 3l March 2000 RZZE-_ZEF=A=+—H

2020 2019
—BBHF —E-NF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
Hiat THERT FAET

Capital and reserves BEXR#E
Share capital [N 30 76,117 76,117
Reserves s 36 1,735,411 2,137,491

Total equity attributable to RAAHEEARELERAR

owners of the Company 1,811,528 2,213,608
Non-controlling interest IR RE 102,189 118,690
1,913,717 2,332,298

Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Deferred tax liabilities EIEFIEAE 32 16,452
Lease liabilities HEBE 18(b) -
16,452
1,924,839 2,348,750

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for ZEGEVERREHESTeN T _FF
issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2020 and signed on its behalf by: NA-+HABEMEREETIREWYHUT AL

RREFERE
Mr. Li Yuguo Mr. Liu Yan Chee James
ZIEE%E BRBELE
Director Director
BF BF

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated MEMT 2Pzt BZ S MBEHmEzTZ —285 °

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARKEDR

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ARARAEARE
Attributable to
Convertible Share-based non-
Share Share Capital notes payment Special  Translation ~ Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve losses Subtotal interest Total
TERE HROAER FERER

Bx  EfER  EAER BEE  BxERE  BAER  EXRR  RMER hif it it
HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSO00  HKSOO  HKSOD  HKSOOD  HKSO0D  HKSO00  HKBOOD  HKFOOD  HK$00O
TRT TRT T Th Th T T ThR ThL ThR Th

Note 36(a) Note 36(b)
Hiit3se) Hiit3e(e)
At 1 April 2018 RZE-\ERA-A 1,585923 1,597,179 198350 72561 62,656 92926 (34693)  (1429830) 2145072 109492 2254564
Loss for the year FEEES - - - - - - SR (ISB6H) ) (1939
Other comprehensive income for the year A8 £ 1 2 MG - - - - - - (80,551) - (80,551) 678 (19873)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEE2 MAGAS - - - - - - (80,551) (158,640) (239,191) (75) (139.266)
Lapse of share options EREL Y - - - - (46,708) - - 46708 - - -
Transfer upon disposal of subsidiaries 1 EMBA A K ER - - - - - - - (9273) (9.273) 9273 -
Redemption of convertible bonds BETARES - - - (72.561) - - - 72561 - - -
Captal Reorganisation 2018 —E-\EREAR (1,826,806) - 1,826,806 - - - - - - - -
Transactions with owners in BiEREEAGHNERA
their capacity as owners: #1%5:
Issue of ordinary shares BTEER 317,000 - - - - - - - 317,000 - 317,000
At 31 March 2019 R=F-N§=B=1-H 76,117 1,597,179 2,025,156 - 15948 92926 (115244)  (1478474) 2213608 118690 2332098
Loss for the year TEEER - (338784)  (338,784)  (1,136)
Other comprehensive income for the year AEEEH2FRE (63,296) = (63,296) (365)
Total comprehensive income for the year AEF2 MAHAE (338,784) (402,080 (16,501)  (418,581)
Lapse of share options BIRELR 15,948
At 31 March 2020 R-ZB-85=A=1-8 16,117 1,597,179 2,025,156 - 92,926 (178,540)  (1,801,310) 1,811,528 102,189 1,913,717

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated MEM 2 st B S8 MBEHmEz 2 —285 -

&

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
AEREMER

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

2020 2019
“E-EF —E-NEF
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
izt TR FET
Cash flows from operating activities RELETBH2EERE
Loss before taxation BrIiAIE R
— Continuing operations —FEREER (359,824) (170811)
— Discontinued operations —BEREES - (6,112)
(359,824) (176923)
Adjustments for: NS
Interest income on bank deposits RITEFFSWA (342) (1,681)
Compensation relating to termination of BIFWEEEG M E 2 HE
acquisition of Shenyang Properties (12,610) -
Interest income relating to termination of BB Y% 2 B S WA
acquisition of Shenyang Properties (14,338) -
Dividend income A& B U A (7)) (26)
Finance costs RN 358 14,314
Amortisation of land use right 3150 A R A 203 150
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BENREBITE 1,512 1,623
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEEITE 2,751 -
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAREIE - 3,901
Fair value change on financial assets at fair value ~ ZAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss EREEZNTEE 1,685 327
Share of results of associates DEHE RN B EE 9,572 17,152
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEWE - HE RREZER - 214
Provision for impairment loss on intangible assets %/ & E R EE B E 46,932 -
Provision for impairment loss on inventories FEREEERE 967 -
Provision for impairment loss on deposits paid Efffze 2 RIEBERE 92,873 1,087
Provision for impairment loss on properties BRAMFREBERE
under development 28,033 66,440
Provision for impairment loss on completed BIENEZEERME
properties held for sale JREBERE 25,348 72,821
Over-provision of land value added tax 1 IR E R R R R (9,298) (36,628)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SERTMER

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

Operating cash flows before movements
in working capital
Decrease in properties under development

Decrease/(increase) in completed properties held

for sale
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade receivable
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables
Decrease in loan receivables
Increase in amount due from an associate
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables
Decrease in other payables and accruals
Decrease in receipts in advance
(Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities

Cash (used in)/generated from operations

Income tax paid

Cash payments for the interest portion of
the lease liabilities

Net cash (used in)/generated from operating

activities

Investing activities

Increase in restricted bank deposits

Increase in deposit for acquisition of
investment properties

Refund of deposits paid

Interest received

Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Acquisition of land use right

Dividend income

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Net cash inflow from disposal of subsidiaries

Net cash used in investing activities

Notes

it

EEACEPRICEE
RERE
ZRTOERD

REHMEZEERME
md/(4Ehn)

FEEM

B 5 REUERIE N
AR - ZE KA
FEMRBR TR (38 10)
EREFRD

JE YR B & ) B RIRSE A
BHRMNRHRORL), 1210
Hi R R ERRD

BAHRIER D

AHARBORD),/Em

EEXB(AR)/EERS
BIFAEH
ReXNEERENSHEY

KEEH(FR)/EERE
FH

R&EED
R HIRITEE
WEEIRB MR 2 RSB

BRRE ZER
2WFE
BEME  BELERE
Wb £ s 50 R A
BEMA
HENE - BENRE
ISR
HEMBARIZRERAFE 35

REESMARALFR
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2020
e
HK$’000
TR

(186,230)
106,441

149,766
(1,274)
(240)

27,645

(243)
(2,732)
(52,188)

(104,944)

(63,999)

(358)

(64,357)

(2,551)

(8,792)

(10,949)

2019
—ZE-NEF
HK$'000
FET

(37,229)
385,710

(443398)

(28,603)
51,501
(2,338)
41,979
(5.236)
(119,282)
173,867

116971
(515)

116,456

(388,061)
33,890
| 681
(1872)
(10,602)
26

130
33,175

(331,633)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SERIMER

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

Notes
izt
Financing activities MEEE
Interest paid BEARAE
Repayment of convertible bonds BB AR R R
upon redemption 31
Principal portion of lease payments HENRAEHMH
Proceeds from issue of new shares BT FTERE 30

Net cash (used in)/generated from financing RMETH(FA) EEZ

activities ReFHE
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents RekReSEMRDFHE
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year RNE¥ZH & KB4 SEY
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes HINGEE P R B Ep B &

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year NERZBAERAEEEY

Analysis of balances of cash and cash equivalents 3R & RIREEEMZ LD
Bank balances and cash RITHEB LR S

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated BERT 2 B st B RZ

financial statements.

2020
e
HK$’000
TR

(2,576)

(2,576)

(71,882)
127,285
(3,340)

48
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2019
—E-hF
HK$'000
FHT

(9.810)

(244,800)

317,000

62,390

(152,787)
281,922
(1,850)

127285

127,285

127,285
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

BB ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

GENERAL

Asia Resources Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability. Its shares
are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”). The address of the Company’s registered office is
disclosed in the corporate information of its annual report and its
principal place of business is Room 2601, 26/F, West Tower Shun Tak
Centre, 168-200 Connaught Road Central, Sheung Wan, Hong Kong.

The Company acts as an investment holding company, while its
subsidiaries (hereinafter the Company and its subsidiaries are
collectively referred to as the “Group”) are principally engaged in
property sales, investment operations and trading of bottled water in

the People’'s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars (HK$) and all amounts have been rounded to the nearest

thousand (HK$'000), unless otherwise indicated.

Certain comparative figures in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss have been reclassified to conform with current year's

presentation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR
For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF THE NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) New and amended Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) adopted by
the Group
The following new and amended standards that may be relevant
to the Group'’s operations have been adopted by the Group for
the first time for the financial period beginning on | April 2019.

HKFRS 9 (Amendments) Prepayment Features with Negative
Compensation

HKFRS 16 Leases

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or

2. BRG] REIETE BT

HEL([EBYBHREE

Al )
(a) KEEIRA 2 H 5T RASIEST

BEMBEHREZER ([ EEH
BHEZER )
THATEBEER-Z—NFMA
— BRI BRI E KR B A
BL AR SE BT B A B RO RT AT RS IS
TR -

BEBREEN  AABHENRMENEM
95 (BHTA)

FEnmRSEN  HE
£16%

HKAS 19 (Amendments)

HKAS 28 (Amendments)

HK (IFRIC) — Int. 23

Settlement
Long-term Interests in Associates and
Joint Ventures

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Ehaie
$19% (47%)

Eae
FE(15175)

e

FEET  BHAAE

REEDRRAELRY
RS
RN R

Amendments to HKFRS 3,
HKFRS |1, HKAS 12 and HKAS 23

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

Other than HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 and HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS
16”), the application of the above amended standards which are
effective for the financial period beginning on | April 2019 did
not have material financial effect to the Group for the current

and prior periods.

#EZEE)
-RBENR
ZT-RECE-+ BEUBREEUEN A
EEBNFERE  HBREENZT BA
SRR E T R B
EBE1F BT R

BREAS(BRMBREREBEE
) -REBEBRLBEVBERS
ERF 165 [HE ([ FEEVBHR
SFEAF 5% ]I A LN =
T-NENUA—ARKRNYTERARE
R B ET AR AR Mg &
HIR Y BB A RBERERNS B
@,
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For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF THE NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

(a) New and amended Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) adopted by
the Group (continued)

HKFRS 16 “Leases”

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC) — Int. 4
“Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”,
HK(SIC) |5 “Operating Leases — Incentives” and HK(SIC) 27
“Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal
Form of a Lease”. The standard sets out the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases
and requires lessees to account for all leases under a single on-
balance sheet model to recognise and measure right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities, except for certain recognition
exemptions. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from HKAS |7. Lessors continue to classify leases as
either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in
HKAS 17.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application of
I April 2019. Under this method, the standard has been
applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initial
adoption recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance
of accumulated losses at | April 2019, and the comparative
information for 2019 was not restated and continued to be

reported under HKAS 17 and related interpretations.
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For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF THE NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

(a) New and amended Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) adopted by
the Group (continued)

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified
asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.
Control is conveyed where the customer has both the right
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of the identified asset and the right to direct the use of the
identified asset. The Group elected to use the transition practical
expedient allowing the standard to be applied only to contracts
that were previously identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC) — Int. 4 at the date of initial application. Contracts that
were not identified as leases under HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) —
Int. 4 were not reassessed. Therefore, the definition of a lease
under HKFRS 16 has been applied only to contracts entered into
or changed on or after | April 2019.
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For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF THE NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

(a) New and amended Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) adopted by
the Group (continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating leases
Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for buildings and properties. As
a lessee, the Group previously classified leases as either finance
leases or operating leases based on the assessment of whether
the lease transferred substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group. Under HKFRS 16, the Group
applies a single approach to recognise and measure right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities for all leases, except for two elective
exemptions for leases of low value assets (elected on a lease-
by-lease basis) and leases with a lease term of 12 months or less
(“short-term lease”) (elected by class of underlying asset). The
Group has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases that at the commencement date, have a lease
term of 12 months or less. Instead, the Group recognises the
lease payments associated with those leases as an expense on a

straight-line basis over the lease term.

Impacts on transition

Lease liabilities at | April 2019 were recognised based on the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the incremental borrowing rate at | April 2019. The
right-of-use assets were measured at the amount of the lease
liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the lease recognised in the statement of

financial position immediately before | April 2019.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF THE NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

(a) New and amended Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) adopted by
the Group (continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating leases
(continued)

Impacts on transition (continued)

All these assets were assessed for any impairment based on
HKAS 36 on that date. The Group elected to present the right-

of-use assets separately in the statement of financial position.

The Group has used the following elective practical expedients
when applying HKFRS 16 at | April 2019:

. Applying the short-term lease exemptions to leases with
a lease term that ends within |2 months from the date of

initial application.

. Used hindsight in determining the lease term where the

contract contains options to extend/terminate the lease.

*  Applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with
reasonably similar characteristics when measuring the lease
liabilities at | April 2019.
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For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF THE NEW AND REVISED 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

(a) New and amended Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) adopted by

the Group (continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating leases

(continued)

Financial impact at | April 2019

The impacts arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 as at | April

2019 are as follows:

Assets

Increase in right-of-use assets

Decrease in prepayments

Increase in total assets

Liabilities

Increase in lease liabilities
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF THE NEW AND REVISED 2. FERAHII R EIETHBE

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

(a) New and amended Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) adopted by
the Group (continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating leases
(continued)

Financial impact at | April 2019 (continued)

The lease liabilities as at | April 2019 reconciled to the operating

lease commitments as at 31 March 2019 is as follows:

HEL([EBTBHREE
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HK$'000
Assets BE TR
Operating lease commitments as at R-ZE-NF=A=+-—HHEKE
31 March 2019 HEEE 6,061
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases  Ji : BRIE A ERHRTHEHRN
and those leases with a remaining lease —E-EF=A=1+—Hgk
term ended on or before 31 March 2020 ZRIRERZEHE 2 A -
6,061
Weighted average incremental borrowing rate RZZE—NFNA—B&IN#EFH
as at | April 2019 KB A RF 8%
Discounted operating lease commitments RZZE-NFHEA—BFRLEE
as at | April 2019 g AYE 5,542
Lease liabilities as at | April 2019 R-ZE-NFETNA—BNEEARE 5542

Summary of new accounting policies

The accounting policy for leases as disclosed in the annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 is
replaced with the following new accounting policies upon
adoption of HKFRS 16 from | April 2019:
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For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF THE NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

(a) New and amended Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) adopted by
the Group (continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating leases
(continued)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease. Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less
any accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Unless the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease
term, the recognised right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the estimated useful life

and the lease term.

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in

which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF THE NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

(a) New and amended Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) adopted by
the Group (continued)

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating leases
(continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is
not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the
amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of
interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there
is a modification, a change in future lease payments arising
from change in an index or rate, a change in the lease term, a
change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in

assessment to purchase the underlying asset.

Significant judgement in determining the lease term of contracts
with renewal options

The Group determines the lease term as the non-cancellable
term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be
exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the

lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Group did not have the option to renew its building leases,
therefore no renewal period was included as part of the lease
term.
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For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF THE NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

(a) New and amended Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) adopted by

the Group (continued)

HK (IFRIC) — Int. 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments”

HK (IFRIC) — Int. 23 addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often
referred to as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation
does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of HKAS
|2, nor does it specifically include requirements relating to
interest and penalties associated with uncertain tax treatments.
The interpretation specifically addresses (i) whether an
entity considers uncertain tax treatments separately; (ii) the
assumptions an entity makes about the examination of tax
treatments by taxation authorities; (iii) how an entity determines
taxable profits or tax losses, tax bases, unused tax losses, unused
tax credits and tax rates; and (iv) how an entity considers
changes in facts and circumstances. The interpretation did not

have any impact on the financial position or performance of the

Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF THE NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)
(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

The Group has not early adopted the following new HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective for the financial year
ended 3| March 2020:

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contract
HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business *

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an

(Amendments) Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture °
HKAS | and HKAS 8 Definition of Material !

(Amendments)
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and Interest Rate Benchmark Reform!

HKFRS 7 (Amendments)

HKFRS 16 (Amendments) ~ COVID-19 - Related Rent Concessions’

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2020

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the
acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual period

beginning on or after | January 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | June 2020

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after | January 2021

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined
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For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF THE NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued)

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) “Definition of a Business”

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional guidance
on the definition of a business. The amendments clarify that
for an integrated set of activities and assets to be considered
a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create output. A business can exist without including
all of the inputs and processes needed to create outputs.
The amendments remove the assessment of whether market
participants are capable of acquiring the business and continue
to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together significantly
contribute to the ability to create outputs. The amendments
have also narrowed the definition of outputs to focus on goods
or services provided to customers, investment income or other
income from ordinary activities. Furthermore, the amendments
provide guidance to assess whether an acquired process is
substantive and introduce an optional fair value concentration
test to permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set
of activities and assets is not a business. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from | April 2020. Since
the amendments apply prospectively to transactions or other
events that occur on or after the date of first application, the
Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of

transition.
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For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

2. APPLICATION OF THE NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”) (CONTINUED)

(b) Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (continued)

Amendments to HKAS | and HKAS 8 “Definition of Material”

Amendments to HKAS | and HKAS 8 provide a new definition
of material. The new definition states that information is material
if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could reasonably be
expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general
purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements. The amendments clarify that materiality will depend
on the nature or magnitude of information. A misstatement
of information is material if it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions made by the primary users. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from | April
2020. The amendments are not expected to have any significant

impact on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and the disclosure requirements of
the Companies Ordinance of Hong Kong.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to the years presented, unless

otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost basis except for certain financial instruments, which are
measured at fair values, as explained in the accounting policies set out

below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration

given exchange for assets.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated
financial statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-
based payment transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 or value in use in

HKAS 36.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESTHBEK(E)

(CONTINUED)

Basis of preparation (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements
are categorised into Level |, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which
the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and the
significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety,

which are described as follows:

. Level | inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within Level [, that are observable for the asset or liability, either

directly or indirectly; and
. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial
statements of the Company and entities (including structured entities)
controlled by the Group. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement

with the investee: and
. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts

and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of

the three elements of control listed above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3. TESTHBEK(E)

(CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control
over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the
subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to

control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to
the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests even

if this results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements
of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies into line with the

Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash
flows relating to transactions between members of the Group are

eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\ 7f ﬁﬁ#&%‘% Bﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred in a business combination
is measured at fair value, which is calculated as the sum of the
acquisition-date fair values of the assets transferred by the Group,
liabilities incurred by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised in

profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and the

liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value, except that:

»  deferred tax assets or liabilities and liabilities or assets related to
employee benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in

accordance with HKAS 12 and HKAS 19 respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangement of the acquiree or share-based payment
arrangements of the Group entered into to replace share-
based payment arrangements of the acquire are measured in

accordance with HKFRS 2 at the acquisition date; and

*  assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held for sale in
accordance with HKFRS 5 are measured in accordance with that

Standard.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

BB ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held equity
interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net of the acquisition-date
amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.
If, after reassessment, the net of the acquisition date amounts of the
identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum
of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised

immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net
assets in the event of liquidation may be initially measured either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of
the recognised amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured at
their fair value or, when applicable, on the basis specified in another
HKFRS.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement, the contingent consideration is
measured at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination. Changes
in the fair value of the contingent consideration that qualify as
measurement period adjustments are adjusted retrospectively, with
the corresponding adjustments made against goodwill. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period” (which
cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date) about facts and

circumstances that existed at the acquisition date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

BB ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Business combinations (continued)

The subsequent accounting for changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent consideration
is classified. Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is
not remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates in accordance with the corresponding gain or loss

being recognised in profit or loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the Group's
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is remeasured to fair
value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date when the Group obtains
control) and the resulting gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit
or loss. Amounts arising from interests in the acquiree prior to
the acquisition date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss where such

treatment would be appropriate if that interest were disposed of.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is incomplete by
the end of the reporting period in which the combination occurs,
the Group reports provisional amounts for the items for which the
accounting is incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
during the measurement period, and additional assets or liabilities
are recognised, to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if known,

would have affected the amounts recognised at that date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

,m< jﬁ&#ﬁ%§Mﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of
goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled

in exchange for those goods or services.

(i)  Sales of properties
Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the asset is
transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms of the
contract and the law that apply to the contract, control of the
asset may be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control

of the asset is transferred over time if the Group’s performance:

. provides all of the benefits received and consumed

simultaneously by the customer;

. creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls

as the Group performs; or

. does not create an asset with an alternative use to the
Group and the Group has an enforceable right to payment

for performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the

customer obtains control of the asset.

For properties that have no alternative use to the Group due
to contractual reasons and when the Group has an enforceable
right to payment from the customers for performance
completed to date, the Group recognises revenue as the
performance obligation is satisfied over time in accordance with
the input method for measuring progress, i.e. the costs incurred
up to date compared with the total budgeted costs, which depict
the Group's performance towards satisfying the performance

obligation.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\ 7f ﬁﬁ#&%‘% Bﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i) Sales of properties (continued)
Deposits and instalments received from purchasers prior
to delivery of the properties to the customers are contract

liabilities.

For property sales contract for which the control of the property
is transferred at a point in time, revenue is recognised when the
customer obtains the physical possession or the legal title of the
completed property and the Group has present right to payment

and the collection of the consideration is probable.

(i) Sales of goods
Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time
when control of the products is transferred to the customer,

generally on delivery of goods.

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less subsequent depreciation and any identified

impairment loss at the end of the reporting period.

Construction in progress represents property, plant and equipment
in the course of construction for production or for its own use
purposes. Construction in progress is carried at cost less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is classified to
the appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property assets, commences when the

assets are ready for their intended use.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M T

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost of other property, plant

and equipment over their estimated useful lives after considering

their estimated residual values, using the straight-line method, at the

following rates per annum:

Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20% — 25%
20% — 50%

12 /2% — 30%

Leasehold improvements

Motor vehicles

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected to arise
from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item) is included
in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the year in

which the item is derecognised.

Water mining licence
Water mining licence is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses. Water mining licence is amortised on a

straight-line basis over its estimated useful life.

Land use rights

The Group makes upfront payments to obtain operating leases of
land use rights. The land use rights are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment. The upfront payments of the land use
rights are recorded as assets. The amortisation of land use rights is
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the unexpired

period of the land use rights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

BB ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of water mining licence

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for water mining licence at each reporting date. Water mining licence
are tested for impairment when there are indicators that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. When value in use calculations are
undertaken, management must estimate the expected future cash
flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate the present values of those cash

flows.

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in the
financial and operating policy decisions of the investee but is not

control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated
in the consolidated financial statements using the equity method
of accounting, except when the investment, or a portion thereof,
is classified as held for sale, in which case it is accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 5. Under the equity method, interests in
associates is initially recognised in the consolidated statement of
financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise Group's
share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of the
associate. When the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds
its interest in that associate (which includes any long-term interests
that, in substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further
losses. Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

BB ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Interests in associates (continued)

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity
method from the date on which the investee becomes an associate.
On acquisition of the investment in an associate, any excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group's share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount of the
investment. Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment,
after reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss in the

period in which the investment is acquired.

The requirements of HKAS are applied to determine whether
it is necessary to recognise any impairment loss with respect to
the Group’s interest in associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is tested
for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset by
comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised in accordance
with HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of the

investment subsequently increases.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group,
profits and losses resulting from the transactions with associate are
recognised in the Group’s consolidated financial statements only to

the extent of interests in associate that are not related to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

BB ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Leases (applicable from | April 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or

contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract

conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period

of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach

for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value

assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments

and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying

assets.

(a)

Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the

estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings | to 3 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the
end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated

useful life of the asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Leases (applicable from | April 2019) (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease at the present value of lease payments to be made
over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price
of a purchase option reasonably certain to be exercised by the
Group and payments of penalties for termination of a lease,
if the lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do not depend on
an index or a rate are recognised as an expense in the period in

which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g.,
a change to future lease payments resulting from a change in
an index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to

purchase the underlying asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.

(CONTINUED)
Leases (applicable from | April 2019) (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c)  Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of machinery and equipment (that is
those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from

the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.
Leases (applicable before I April 2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease
transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the

lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term, except while another systematic basis
is more representative of the time pattern in which economic benefit
from the leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals a rising under
operating lease are recognised as an expense in the period in which

they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

BB ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s presentation currency. Each entity in
the Group determines its own functional currency and items included
in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the
entities in the Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
translated at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the
end of the reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or

translation of monetary items are recognised in the income statement.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,

respectively).

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries, jointly-
controlled entities and associates are currencies other than the
Hong Kong dollar. As at the end of the reporting period, the assets
and liabilities of these entities are translated into the presentation
currency of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end
of the reporting period and their income statements are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates for

the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of other
comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign operation is

recognised in profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the cash
flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong Kong dollars
at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout
the year are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted

average exchange rates for the year.

Retirement benefits costs

Retirement benefits scheme

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans (state-
managed retirement benefits schemes/the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme) are charged as an expense when employees have rendered

service entitling them to the contributions.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme") under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees employed under the jurisdiction of
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance. The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution scheme, the assets of which are held in separate trustee
administered funds.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Retirement benefits costs (continued)

Retirement benefits scheme (continued)

Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and its employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, with the employers' contributions
subject to a cap monthly relevant income of HK$30,000. The Group's
contributions to the scheme are expensed as incurred are vested in
accordance with the scheme’s vesting scales. Where employees leave
the scheme prior to the full vesting of the employer's contributions,
the amount of forfeited contributions is used to reduce the

contributions payable by the Group.

Pursuant to the regulations of the relevant authorities in the PRC,
the Group participates in the relevant social retirement benefit
schemes (the “PRC Schemes"”) whereby the Group is required to
contribute to the PRC Schemes to fund the retirement benefits of
the eligible employees. Contributions made to the PRC Schemes
are calculated based on certain percentages of the applicable payroll
costs as stipulated under the requirements in the PRC. The relevant
authorities of the PRC are responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to the retired employees. The only obligation of
the Group with respect to the PRC Schemes is to pay the ongoing

required contributions under the PRC Schemes.

The retirement benefit schemes contribution represents gross
contributions by the Group to the PRC Schemes operated by the
relevant authorities of the PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Retirement benefits costs (continued)
Share options scheme
The Company operates a share options scheme for the purpose of
recognition of significant contribution of and for the provision of
incentives to any directors, employees (whether full-time or part-
time), consultants, customers, suppliers, agents, partners or advisors
of or contractors to the Group or affiliates. The fair value of share
options granted to employee is recognised as an employee cost with
a corresponding increase in a capital reserve within equity. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the share options, the total estimated fair
value of share options is spread over the vesting period, taking into

account the probability that the options will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognised in prior years is charged/credited to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income for the year of the review, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve. On vesting
date, the amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of share options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate to the market price of
the Company's shares. The equity amount is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is transferred to
the share premium account) or the option expires (when it is released

directly to retained profits).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable

and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year.
Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income because it excludes items of
income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting

period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial
statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction

that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference

will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

I 14 Asia Resources Holdings Limited | T2/ & RIZEAR AR A 7]

3.

FTESHTBRGE)

'ﬁﬁ
BRAYIEREENRERELETIE
%ﬁo

RIE % 1E

IS FE B TB 0 IR A F 2 I AR B v M 5
H -BHRERMENTREEMFEZ
FERB IR 2 Wk EE - N
TEBEXTERBKAIHNR2ER - &
BIZAE2ERERMIEFTR - A&
B ARRESENRREHREHTE
SEE BT 2 HEAE -

EAFIE

BERAETDRNGAMBRRANEER
BEREEETEERBE AT RAA
%ﬁ%Z%%%%omkmﬁﬁﬁfﬁ
LT B BRI E B ZRMER - MIETH
TR B B RIBOR A] BE AT £ 36 8RR A s A R
BAMRERZB2BERTA T IAME
R HEREZRABENHPHER—
AT ERBRNLEREN 2R H 2
HibBEENAE(EHE RN AE
£ RIEREERBBETTHR -

EEFHIEB ERANM B QR k& QR
2&%%%%2%%&%%%%%%'
MAEBBENEHERER B -
AREBBERERBEEAENTRRK
AR - RIVERGR ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or

part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or
the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been

enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax
consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group
expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the

carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax for the year

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except
when they relate to items that are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred
tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the
initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included

in the accounting for the business combination.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business
combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The useful
lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the
useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there is an
indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a

finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Research and development expenditure

All research costs are charged to the income statement as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can demonstrate the
technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will
be available for use or sale, its intention to complete and its ability
to use or sell the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the project and the
ability to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these criteria

is expensed when incurred.

Deferred development costs are stated at cost less any impairment
losses and are amortised using the straight line basis over the
commercial lives of the underlying products not exceeding five to
seven years, commencing from the date when the products are put

into commercial production.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets with finite useful lives
to determine whether there is any indication that those assets
have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine
the extent of the impairment loss. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation
can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and consistent

allocation basis can be identified.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not
yet available for use are tested for impairment at least annually, and

whenever there is an indication that the asset may be impaired.

Inventories — properties under development

The cost of properties under development for sale comprises
specifically identified cost, including the acquisition cost of land,
aggregate cost of development, materials and supplies, wages and
other direct expenses, and an appropriate proportion of overheads
and borrowing costs capitalised. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price, based on prevailing market conditions, less
estimated costs of completion and costs to be incurred in selling the

property.

Properties under development are transferred to completed
properties held for sale upon completion of development activities,
which is when the relevant completion certificates are issued by the

respective government authorities.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Inventories — completed properties held for sale
Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Cost is determined by apportionment of the total
land and development costs attributable to the completed properties
held for sale. Net realisable value is determined based on prevailing

market conditions.

Inventories — merchandise

Merchandise are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value.
Cost is determined on the weighted average basis. Net realisable
value is based on estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to

be incurred to disposal.

Provision

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the

amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period
of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the

income statement.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the
consolidated statement of financial position when a group entity

becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair
value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition
or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial
assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised

immediately in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

BB ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently

measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model whose

objective is to collect contractual cash flows; and

*  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently
measured at fair value through other comprehensive income

("FVTOCI):

* the financial asset is held within a business model whose
objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows

and selling; and

*  the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal

amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL"), except that at the date of initial
application/initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of
an equity investment in other comprehensive income ("OCI”) if
that equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to

which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\ 7f ﬁﬁ#&%‘% Bﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets
(continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the

near term; or

* on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that the Group manages together and has a

recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging

instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset that
are required to be measured at the amortised cost or FVTOCI as
measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an

accounting mismatch.

(i) Amortised cost and interest income
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method
for financial assets measured subsequently at amortised cost.
Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except
for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired. For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the
effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit
impaired financial instrument improves so that the financial asset
is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the determination that the asset is no longer credit

impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

BB ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial assets

(continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL
Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being measured
at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as FVTOCI are
measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or losses
recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in
profit or loss includes any dividend or interest earned on the

financial asset.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial assets
which are subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 (including trade
receivable, other receivables, restricted bank deposits and bank
balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to

reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, I2-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion of
lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that are
possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general economic
conditions and an assessment of both the current conditions at the

reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
without significant financing component. The ECL on these assets
are assessed collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate

groupings.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a default

occurring since initial recognition.

(i) Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as
at the date of initial recognition. In making this assessment, the
Group considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available

without undue cost or effort.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

an\ 7f ﬁﬁ#&%‘% Bﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
Financial instruments (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into account

when assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal

credit rating;

*  significant deterioration in external market indicators of
credit risk, e.g. a significant increase in the credit spread, the

credit default swap prices for the debtor;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor's ability to meet its debt

obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the

operating results of the debtor;

* an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s

ability to meet its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the Group
presumes that the credit risk has increased significantly since
initial recognition when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable

information that demonstrates otherwise.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

BB ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

()

(ii)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

Despite the aforegoing, the Group assumes that the credit risk
on the Group’s financial assets has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial assets are determined
to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A financial asset
is determined to have low credit risk if (i) it has a low risk of
default; (ii) the borrower has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term; and (iii)
adverse changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the ability of
the borrower to fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations. The
Group considers a financial asset to have low credit risk when it
has an internal or external credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as

per globally understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the
criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk

before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers an
event of default occurs when information developed internally
or obtained from external sources indicates that the debtor is
unlikely to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without

taking into account any collaterals held by the Group).

124  Asia Resources Holdings Limited | T2/ & RIZEAR AR A 7]

FTESHTBRGE)

fﬂgﬂlﬂ (/ILE
L ERE ()

(i)

(i)

EERR Eﬁg_tﬁ(ft)
BEFELAE fﬁffﬁ%lﬂﬁ/‘
HEHBR H’?%ﬂﬁﬁ{:ﬁ
$’§I{E§f&ﬁ7}%1ﬂﬁ'}ﬁgﬂ E
F 96 HE R AR 0 A R ME IGO0 o {18 (i) E
BARBRIRE : ()& HRARE
RERREEAYNBREREET
R (i B & HI 48 7 | B AROR 17

EAANEE - R RDHISHETTZ
REGHESRERENRES - B

B TANEERRESRET SR
K- EEBTANANLINEEER
AP TIRERR | (RR 2RI MR
MmER)  IIAKEERZERT
AmEERRRE -

NEBTEHERAUBTEER
ﬁﬁﬁgibﬂﬁ’lﬁ ZERY AR :IIE/‘
HERRIELER] - HMERE A
TZAEBE SPA ] AIE@H%TJE&E%ELEL
RERE L o

BHEZE

RABEERREEMS + RAZ
EERBINBRIFNEHERETR
BEIEAT KA REAEREA(BIER
SE)EHMR(CTFARAEEFE
MEMERR) RN AEEERA
BEAENEM -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i) Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events of
default that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future
cash flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit impaired includes observable data about

the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the borrower;
(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past due event;

(c) the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or contractual
reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, having
granted to the borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider;
(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that financial

asset because of financial difficulties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

3( = u-I_BZﬁ(nE)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 3.
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued) DAL ERE ()

(iv)  Write-off policy (iv) MK FE
The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information WMEEHBARRZHFRNEARY
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty and B A 2 - B30 R R A A
there is no realistic prospect of recovery, for example, when the (PIINZSEFEH BRI EA
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered WERF) X EHREWERM
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade receivables, T AEcEANBEME (UK
when the amounts are over two years past due, whichever PREERE) AKEEMES

BMEE - HEZRZEARERL(WEE)
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SE KRR FE IR BIBIT o M
SHREAAR L RERF A o EAEHRWK
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occurs sooner. Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group's recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
constitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries

are recognised in profit or loss.

(v)  Measurement and recognition of ECL () TFERISEEERETE K ER

BHEEERMNGEREDARE
BB RER(BIHRZ RN
BREE) RBORREKE - 2
#IRTBE M BB KB R R RTHE T IR
FRE 2 BUBETT - WRLATRE1EE R
TEHAE - HHMEEBENGFR
BRERBELBERNE 2SR iR

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information. Estimation of ECL
reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is

determined with the respective risks of default occurring as the

weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at the effective interest rate determined at initial

recognition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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BB ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater for cases
where evidence at the individual instrument level may not yet be
available, the financial instruments are grouped on the following

basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's trade and
other receivables, finance lease receivables and amounts
due from customers are each assessed as a separate group.
Loans to related parties are assessed for expected credit

losses on an individual basis);

. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

. External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the
constituents of each group continue to share similar credit risk

characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying amount
of the financial asset unless the financial asset is credit impaired,
in which case interest income is calculated based on amortised

cost of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

3.

FTESHTBRGE)

THTA(E

Financial liabilities and equity instruments THEERKATA
Classification as debt or equity DB ETE R

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a group entity are
classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity

instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the group entity after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised at the

proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.
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Other financial liabilities Bz FAaE
Other financial liabilities (including trade payables, other payables EmepmaE(BEESEMNER
and accruals) are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the tENRIENETER) EBHER EI@?

effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised
cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of
the financial liability or where appropriate, a short period to the net

carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual
rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the
financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group continues to
recognise the asset to the extent of its continuing involvement and

recognises an associated liability.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

BB ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Financial instruments (continued)

Derecognition (continued)

If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised

borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity

is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of a financial asset other than in its entirety, the
Group allocates the previous carrying amount of the financial asset
between the part it continues to recognise, and the part it no longer
recognises on the basis of the relative fair values of those parts
on the date of the transfer. The difference between the carrying
amount allocated to the part that is no longer recognised and the
sum of the consideration received for the part no longer recognised
and any cumulative gain or loss allocated to it that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income is recognised in profit
or loss. A cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised in other
comprehensive income is allocated between the part that continues
to be recognised and the part that is no longer recognised on the

basis of the relative fair values of those parts.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in

profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at
call with banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the

consolidated statement of financial positions.

Contingent liabilities and assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because it is not
probable that outflow of economic resources will be required or
the amount of obligation cannot be measured reliably. A contingent
liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the notes to the
consolidated financial statements. When a change in the probability
of an outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, they will then be

recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. A contingent asset is not recognised but is
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
an inflow of economic benefits is probable. When inflow is virtually

certain, an asset is recognised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Discontinued operations

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s business,
the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly distinguished
from the rest of the Group and which represents a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively

with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal or
when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held for sale,

if earlier. It also occurs when the operation is abandoned.

When operation is classified as discontinued, a single amount is
presented on the face of the profit or loss, which comprises:

—  the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation; and

—  the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement to

fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the assets or

disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued operation.
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For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item reported
in the consolidated financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most senior
executive management for the purposes of allocating resources
to, and assessing the performance of, the Group's various lines of

business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products and services, the
nature of production processes, the type of class of customers, the
methods used to distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they share a majority

of these criteria.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

4.

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, management is required to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant.

Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only
that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The followings are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the

next financial year.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

Note 3 describes that depreciation is provided to write off the cost of
property, plant and equipment over their estimated useful lives, using
straight-line method. The estimation of useful lives of the depreciable
assets is based on the experience of the Group, and useful lives are
reviewed at each end of the reporting period based on changes in

circumstances.
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For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment

In accordance with HKAS 16, the Group estimates the useful lives of
property, plant and equipment in order to determine the amount of
depreciation expenses to be recorded. The useful lives are estimated
at the time the asset is acquired based on historical experience, the
expected usage, wear and tear of the assets, as well as technical
obsolescence arising from changes in the market demands or service
output of the assets. The Group also performs annual reviews on
whether the assumptions made on useful lives continued to be valid.
The Group tests annually whether the assets have suffered any
impairment. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash generating
unit is determined based on market value of the assets which require

the use of assumptions and estimates.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and the PRC.
Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for
income taxes. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit
issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in the period in

which such determination is made.

Net realisable value of properties under development

Valuation of properties under development are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value at the end of the reporting period.
Net realisable value is determined on the basis of the estimated
selling price less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
The directors estimate the net realisable value for properties under
development based primarily on the latest invoice prices and current
market conditions. In addition, the directors perform an inventory
review on a product by product basis at the end of each reporting
period and assess the need for write down of properties under

development.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at the
end of each reporting period. Indefinite life intangible assets are
tested for impairment annually and at other times when such an
indicator exists. Other non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not be
recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset
or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the
higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. The
calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on available
data from binding sales transactions in an arm'’s length transaction of
similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for
disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations are undertaken,
management must estimate the expected future cash flows from the
asset or cash-generating unit and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. Impairment
loss on intangible assets of approximately HK$46,932,000 (2019: Nil)

has been provided during the year.

Impairment of deposits and other receivables

The Group makes allowances on items subjects to ECL (including
deposits and other receivables (excluding prepayments and prepaid
other taxes)) based on assumptions about risk of default and
expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period as
set out in note 3 — Financial Instruments. As at 31 March 2020, the
aggregate carrying amounts of deposits paid and other receivables
(excluding prepayments and prepaid other taxes) amounted to
approximately HK$614,053,000 (2019: HK$93,154,000) (net of ECL
allowance of approximately HK$67,682,000 (2019: HK$1,088,000))
and approximately HK$5 1,265,000 (2019: HK$67,683,000, net of ECL
allowance of HK$4,445,000) respectively.
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For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)
Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with
a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The
IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available (such as
for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions) or when
it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the
lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary’s functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such
as market interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone

credit rating).

Valuation of share options

The Binominal Option Pricing Model and Black-Scholes Option
Pricing Model were applied to estimate the fair value of share options
granted by the Company and certain of its subsidiaries. These pricing
models require the input of highly subjective assumptions, including
the volatility of share price. The changes in input assumptions can

materially affect the fair value estimate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR IR AR M T

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

5A. Capital risk management

5. ®@T A
5A. B E g EHE

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while
maximising the return to stakeholders through the optimisation
of the debt and equity balance. The Group's overall strategy

remains unchanged from prior year.

As at 3| March 2020 and 2019, the capital structure of the
Group consisted of debt and equity attributable to owners of

the Company, comprising issued share capital and reserves.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
regularly. As part of this review, the directors consider the cost
of capital and the risks associates with each class of capital. Based
on recommendations of the directors, the Group will balance its
overall capital structure through new shares issues, as well as the

issue of new debt or the redemption of existing debt.

The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as

follows:
Total debts HBIETE
Shareholders’ equity AR R A
Gearing ratio BELRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5.

5B. Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets SHEE

Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFABZZ
profit or loss TREE

Amortised cost BEIHRL AR

Financial liabilities TREE

Amortised cost BEEHRR AR

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies
The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, other receivables, deposits paid, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss, amount due from an associate,
amount due from the substantial shareholder, restricted bank
deposits, bank balances and cash, trade payables, other payables
and accruals. Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in respective notes. The risks associated with these financial
instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these risks are
set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on

a timely and effective manner.
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Market risk

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that movement in foreign
currency exchange rate which will affect the Group's financial
results and its cash flows. The Group is exposed to foreign
currency risk arising from investments in subsidiaries primarily
with respect to RMB. Foreign currency risk also arises from
future commercial transactions, recognised assets and liabilities
and net investments in foreign operations, which are mainly

denominated in RMB.

As at 31 March 2020, if the Hong Kong dollars had weakened/
strengthened by 1% against the RMB with all other variables
held constant, pre-tax loss for the year would have been
HK$6,406,000 (2019: Nil) lower/higher, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gains/losses of the deposit paid for acquisition
of Shenyang Properties as disclosed in note 25(ii) to be refunded
and the related compensation and interest income receivable.
The Group currently has not entered into any contracts to
hedge its foreign currency risk. However, the management
monitors foreign currency exposure and will consider hedging

significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group's income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of change in market interest rates and the Group
has no significant interest-bearing assets except for amount
due from an associate, deposit paid, restricted bank deposits
and cash and cash equivalents, details of which have been
disclosed in notes 20, 25(ii) and 27. Due to the fixed interest
rate on amount due from an associate and deposit paid and
the insignificant bank interest income, management considers
that cash flow and fair value interest rate risks of the Group are
insignificant and therefore no sensitivity analysis is presented

thereon.
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For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)
Credit risk

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the counterparty to
a transaction is unwilling or unable to fulfil its obligation which
results in financial loss. The carrying amounts of restricted bank
deposits, bank balances, amount due from an associate, amount
due from the substantial shareholder, deposits paid, other
receivables and trade receivables included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represent the Group’s maximum

exposure to credit risk in relation to its financial assets.

The credit risks on restricted bank deposits and bank balances
are considered to be insignificant because the counterparties are

banks/financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by

international credit-rating agencies.

Trade receivables, deposits and other receivables (excluding

prepayments and prepaid other taxes)

For financial assets at amortised cost include other receivables,
deposits paid, trade receivables, amount due from the substantial
shareholder and amount due from an associate, management
makes periodic collective assessments as well as individual
assessment on the recoverability of deposits and other

receivables based on historical settlement records and past

experience.

Regarding the credit risk arisen from the deposits paid for the
acquisition of Shenyang Properties and related compensation
and interest receivable as detailed in note 25(ii), the Company
set up a special committee on 8 May 2020, with 3 independent
non-executive directors as members, to handle the repayment
and/or the recovery. The Company has engaged independent
legal advisors to work with the Special Committee and the
Special Committee will seek other professional advice so as
to take appropriate actions to recover the deposits paid and

related compensation and interest receivable or enforce the

securities if necessary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables, deposits and other receivables (excluding
prepayments and prepaid other taxes) (continued)

The Group considers the probability of default upon initial
recognition of asset and whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis throughout each
reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase
in credit risk, the Group compares the risk of a default occurring
on the asset as at the reporting date with the risk of default
as at the date of initial recognition. It also considers available

reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information.

Especially the following indicators are incorporated:
. internal credit rating;
. external credit rating;

*  actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to cause
a significant change to the borrower’s ability to meet its
obligations;

* actual or expected significant changes in the operating
results of individual property owner or the borrower;

. significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the property owner or the same borrower;
and

. significant changes in the expected performance and
behaviour of the borrower, including changes in the
payment status of borrowers in the Group and changes in
the operating results of the borrower.

The Group uses four categories for those receivables which
reflect their credit risk and how the loss provision is determined
for each of those categories.

5. &R TH(E)
5C. WHRBEZEERKF (H)

=EE (E)

EZRWER -~ e KA MERA
BE(TERFANTELA A
H) (%)

AEBEARONHERTSZ B

REA Rl - A E S AR

ERE SRR AR ERRY

BEEN - EAHEERRETE

ERMBARE SRS ARUAE

Bt SRR A I A B9 44 R SRR B

BERARE A AL MRAT IR - FBS

% B AR A LIRS -

UTFHEEEEHEE

¢ PEMEFREA

o MBI

o EBBEOTE RO EES
R~ BB RIS ERAT
AN BT B AR 3
RIS AR 2 B
MIBENEEE E AR

¢ ERIEEREFANGELR
RN E RN R EAR
ft:

EERA-ERANR LR
AEEERRBZEN &

© BERABHRERETREL

ERE( - DEEERERA
I 3RS B B TR AR B R
1t -

AEEHSRBRAD BLAR
R BIRBE A - BEER
E AR SHBIR BT -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5.

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables, deposits and other receivables (excluding

prepayments and prepaid other taxes) (continued)

A summary of the assumptions underlying the Group’s ECL

model is as follows:

Category
<Pzl

Performing

E®

Underperforming
2Pz

Non-Performing

TR

Write-off

Group definition of category

AEMEHHERBINER

Customers have a low risk of default and a

strong capacity to meet

EFPENRBRRIEEBRENELN

Receivables for which there is a significant
increase in credit risk; as significant
increase in credit risk is presumed if
interest and/or principal repayments are
more than 90 days past due
EYRRIBNEERBBEZEM : A2
R /S A BEFMBEBOK - AIRER
EERBEEIE M

Interest and/or principal repayments are

more than 365 days past due
AE R/ HHEEFAIBIBI6SK

Interest and/or principal repayments are
more than 3 years past due and there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery
Aek,/ XA BERQPBEIFEE
EIREF Uk [l
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ST HE(E)
5C. BBEEEEREREE (&)

=EEE (&

B EWIER - 1ee REM BN
(T BN KB R
1H) (&)
AEEEHEEEERAANEBER
LT

Basis for recognition of

ECL provision

BRRAFMEFEBRBRENER

I2 months expected losses. Where the
expected lifetime of an asset is less than
|2 months, expected losses are measured
at its expected lifetime
ARE+—EAANTEHER - BGREHTF
BHRRLNT _EARNEE - AHEE
ENBEFERTE

Lifetime expected losses

A ERENEE

Lifetime expected losses

EEFEMERER

Asset is written off



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

5. SRT HE (&)
5C. BIBEREEEERBE ()

(continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Trade receivables, deposits and other receivables (excluding

prepayments and prepaid other taxes) (continued)

The Group accounts for its credit risk by appropriately providing
for ECL on a timely basis. In calculating the ECL rates, the Group
considers historical loss rates for each category of receivables

and adjusts for forward-looking macroeconomic data.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group provides for credit losses
against deposits paid, other receivables (excluding prepayments
and prepaid other taxes), amount due from the substantial

shareholder and amount due from an associate as follows:

Basis for
recognition of

Expected  expected credit

Company internal credit rating credit loss rates  loss provision
BRRHEER

KAARBEETME BHEEERLE BRENER

Performing 0.1%-1.5% 12 month expected losses

L% 1EABAER

Non-Performing 100%  Lifetime expected losses

TR FEHNRHER

Total

3t

=B (&

B SRR -~ e KA MERA
B (T BREFENAERE M A
H) (%)
AEBRBNSHIRHEEREES
BRFAEBEERROMNE - &
AEEHEERER  AEENLE
BRKSRNESR BEER SRR
WHBBREENZBERE XL
KEITHE -

RZZE-ZEF=R=+—RH 41§
BmeMEe - EMEKRHIEACE
BREENFRAREMBEHNA) -
R Mo T 22 RS ERR IR I JE B 2 R )
FORFHEEEREN T

Carrying

Estimated gross Loss amount (net of
carrying amount allowance impairment
at default provision provision)
BORN REfE

e REAE  AEERRE (IREERH)
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000

TER TiExn T

694,321 694,321

67,682

762,003 67,682 694,321
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MBI

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5. £®TH (&)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies 5C. BRBEEAERBKE (E)
(continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERER (&
Trade receivables, deposits and other receivables (excluding BN - T2 kAW
prepayments and prepaid other taxes) (continued) E(TEEFHENHE R A M EHH
H)(#&)
The loss allowance provision for deposits paid and other RZEZZEF=—A=+—HHREHN
receivables as at 31 March 2020 reconciles to the opening loss e L H MR GIERT R A EE
allowance for that provision as follows: HEEREFYBERNERDT
Non-
Performing  performing Total
E%E TR st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT TR TR
Opening loss allowance as at | April 2018 ~ RZZE—N\FHA—HH
FNEBRE
Additional loss allowance FINERRE
Exchange realignment iR

Closing loss allowance as at 31 March 2019 RZZ—AF=A=+—HMNEXR

and opening loss allowance as at BEEBEIR-_Z-NF

| April 2019 MmA—-BRENEBREE 1,088 4,445 5,533
Transfer to non-performing BEETR (1,088) 1,088 -
Additional loss allowance FINBEERE 68,458 68,458
Written off HisE (4,260) (4,260)
Exchange realignment IE 5t 3% (2,049) (2,049)

Closing loss allowance as at 31 March 2020 W-ZE-ZTH=F=+—HKF
REBRE 67,682 67,682

As at 31 March 2020, the gross carrying amount of deposits paid, R-ZZE-_FF=A=+—H B
other receivables (excluding prepayments and prepaid other Be  HMERZREBE(TBEEN
taxes), amount due from the substantial shareholder and amount HEREMEMFEIE)  BREE
due from an associate was approximately HK$762,003,000 % B SR I LA K U B R B FRIB Y
(2019: HK$168,710,000) and thus the maximum exposure to BRE 4R E 4 5762,003,000%8 T (=
loss was HK$762,003,000 (2019: HK$168,710,000). Z—NF 1687100008 7T) » Btk

TH 5 ) £ 7= 5 1 LR 73 762,003,000
ABIT(ZF—L%F 168,710,000/
JT) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR IR AR M T

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

5. ERMTARGE)
5C.HBmBEREHERBEK)

(continued)

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with
the Board of Directors, which has built an appropriate liquidity
risk management framework to meet the Group's short, medium
and long-term funding and liquidity management requirements.
The Group manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash
flows and matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and

liabilities.

Liquidity table

The following tables detail the Group's remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables have
been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial
liabilities based on the earliest date on which the Group can be

required to pay.

The maturity analysis for non-derivative financial liabilities is

prepared based on the scheduled repayment dates.

The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.

ENE R

RPETRAREREGKETEE
e MEFRCRIYBEZIRD
ETRBREERE  WhEAKE
2R THERERHRERAD
BLEEFE AKEEBERR
EREEERDESCRAR - HEAZE
FHEEERARERREREYR
HemEERAGBZIHASEE

PN

TEES R
TERHAVNAEBTESRAR L
R A R AR - TRIGBER
AEEAXNEREBEZ&F AN
RERBEIANEARSRER
8 o

FTEERMABBEZINMA DR
BERERE MRS -

ZREREMNBRATHEERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MBI

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5. £®TH (&)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies S5SC.OBRBREZERERHE
(continued) (#&)

Liquidity risk (continued) B E R (4E)
Liquidity table (continued) HEESF ()

Weighted Total

average carrying

effective Total amount

interest Within Over undiscounted at year

rate | year I-2years 2.5 years Syears  cash flows ended

ik 337 RiTRA EX

BRAE -fR  -ERE  WERFE  EENL  RERE  4EKEE
% HK$000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$ 000 HK$000
TR T TEL T ThL TEL

As at 31 March 2020 it Jut 22

ZA=t-A
Non-derivative financial liabilities i £BEE
Trade payables BHENES
Other payables and accruals HfbERERR

E:TER
Lease liabiities HERE

137,331 137,883 137,129

Asat 31 March 2019 RN

ZR=t-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities 374 4REE
Trade payables BHENEN - 81,071 - - - 81071 81071
Other payables and accruals EERERR

EER - 123,909 - - - 123,909 123,909

204,980 - - - 204,980 204980
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For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

5C. Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

Other price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its investment
in listed equity securities. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk and return profiles. The Group's equity price risk is
mainly concentrated on equity securities quoted on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. In addition, the management
monitors the price risk and will consider hedging the risk

exposure should the need arise.

Other price risk — Sensitivity analysis
The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on

the exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date.

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower, the Group's loss
for the year ended 31 March 2020 would decrease/increase
by approximately HK$286,000 (2019: decrease/increase by
approximately HK$454,000). This is mainly due to the changes in

fair value of held-for-trading investments.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR IR AR M T

5. ERTR(E)
SC.OKRABREERZERHE

(%)

AE®EE

AEBRAKRER EHRAEZMA
AXBEAERER  EEERBE
FEETRAEREEHIKEEE
BEAHAR - AEEZRAER
RBREBETRETEHARSM
BR R 2 BANE S © Bhoh -
ERESERERRER  INERH
RREZRENEERER °

HEERER — SRS
AT BREEDITIRER RS B H
Z AR EIRRRRAETT o

THARAER EFATI10% - A&
EHzE—_T-_TF=-A=+—AL
FEZEBBERD, G IN41286,000
BIL(ZE—NF - B EME
4540008 7C) X EXIF[EEER
BEZNTEEETE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR IR R M EE
For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)
5D. Fair value
The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities are

determined as follows:

e the fair value of financial assets with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid markets are
determined with reference to quoted market bid prices;

and

*  the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities
are determined in accordance with generally accepted
pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis using
prices or rates from observable current market transactions

as input.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments
that are measured subsequent to initial recognition at fair value,
grouped into Level | to Level 3 based on the degree to which

the fair value is observable:

Level |1 quoted prices in active markets for the same

instrument (i.e. without modification or repackaging);

Level 2: quoted prices in active markets for similar assets or
liabilities or other valuation techniques for which all
significant inputs are based on observable market

data; and

Level 3:  valuation techniques for which any significant input

are not based on observable market data.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5. £®TH (&)

5D. Fair value (continued) 5D. 1A FE (&
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement RiFE BBk EEAERZ 2 FE
of financial position (continued) iTE ()
The following table show an analysis of financial instruments TRETEAFESRHIME D2
recorded at fair value hierarchy: SRt TE S
Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
EF—& -~ Jat E=R et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT

As at 31 March 2020 R-Z2-ZF
=A=+—H
Financial assets at fair value WA EFT AR
through profit or loss L EREE
As at 31 March 2019 R-ZB-h#F
=A=+-—H
Financial assets at fair value BRATER AR
through profit or loss ZEWMEE 4540 - - 4,540
There were no transfers between Level | and Level 2 in the PREFEAF—REF-_HH
both years. I R -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

5. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED) 5. £®TH (&)
5D. 22 -F(E (&)

5D. Fair value (continued)
Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position (continued)

There were no transfers into or out of Level 3 in the both years.

Fair value as at

RTSI R ZAFE

2020 2019
—EB-FHF —E—-hFE Fair value
Financial assets HK$’000 HK$'000 hierarchy
THMEE FERT TET DNRHESR
Listed equity securities In Hong Kong In Hong Kong Level |
classified as financial HK$2,855 HK$4,540
assets at FVTPL (note 25)
DR RFE REE REE F—R
FABSZERAREZ 2,855 7T 4,540/ 7T
ETRAES (Hra25)
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REGEH BRI RAER 2 A FE

FTE (&)

PR 4R 2 A S A58 = Ak

BE=AEH -

Valuation techniques
and key inputs
AERLREZHARME

Quoted bid prices

in an active market

WGBS 2 RE

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXATABERARE

N/A

TERA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

,m< jﬁ&#ﬁ%§Mﬁ

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's operating segments are identified on the basis of internal
reports which provides information about components of the Group.
These information are reported to and received by the chief operating
decision maker ("*CODM") for the purpose of resource allocation and

performance assessment.

The Group has the following continuing operating segments during

the year. These segments are managed separately.

(1) For water business, the CODM regularly reviews the
performance of the water business in the PRC. These operations
have been aggregated into a single operating segment and

named “Water business’.

(2) For property development and investment business, the CODM
regularly reviews the performance of the property development
and investment business. These operations have been
aggregated into a single operating segment and named “Property

development and investment”.

(3) For trading business, the CODM regularly reviews the
performance of the trading business. These operations have
been aggregated into a single operating segment and named

“Trading of goods”.

o EER

AR EAEE S FIRIRGE WA RE S8
RBARBLABSRERED - K5
AHERHTLE >M%uz
BREE) LEAEN - AOEABR
SHERE -

FR - AEEHEE TIHELEDE -
ZEDBIDZERNEIRE -

() BKEBME  TELERKETE
PP BEKEBHRR - ZFX
BEAALER [KEBI2E—K

M/'\*E °

2 BUEBREREXRBME T2
BERREETHRTMEER K
BEBHRR - ZFEXHBEAFL
2R MEBRRIREIZE—KE

N K
D8 e
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EHRAESRBHRR - ZFX
BEAMHLEES [BmEBERD I ZE—
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MBI

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. DHEER(E)

Segment revenue and results Vox--l, ONET
The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results by T AEREBZARES B ZWMARE
reportable segments: B2 -
For the year ended 31 March BE=ZA=+—HLEE
Continuing Operations
b5 EEE]

Water Property development

business and investment Trading of goods Unallocated Consolidation

KR NX3RRRE BREs AR g

W0 09 0 WS W0 NG 00 WG 00 009
TECEF CENF CBCEF CENF CECEF CS0E CB0%F STk C3C%E CToE
HKS'000  HKSOOD  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSOOD  HKS'00  HKSO00  HK§'000  HKSOO
Tar  TEr TR TAr  TEr TEr  TEam TAr T TEn

Sals to extemal custoners WBEERE S 201,510  [RET0G
Total revenue sl IV 201,510 33029
Segent resuls AREE . (33073) WURXEG)

Fair value loss on finandal assets at farvalue -~ RATEEFABRSBEEL

through proft or loss ATERE (1,665) EA)]
Central adrministration costs HRAHAE (17,936) EOIES)
Loss on disposal of subsicares HENBLTEE o (3900)
Share of results of asociates PHERELAEE (HAN (1715
Finance cost BERK N (143149

Loss before taxation hiiEE X (176923)

Revenue reported above represents revenue generated from external N EREZWAERBITRERF Z I
customers. There were no inter-segment sales during the year. A FAWESEMZHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group'’s assets and liabilities by

reportable segments:

ASSETS
Segment assets

Unallocated corporate assets

LIABILITIES
Segment liabilties

Unallocated corporate liabilities

gE
RAELREE

7 EER(HE)

T HEERARE
UTFAREEEEREBERTEED R
BH 2 A

ZECEE CEF

LUKIPA 1,496,306

Continuing Operations
RREEEY
Property development
and investment Trading of goods Consolidation
NRRRRRE BmEs Fa

2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

ZEIEE CT-NF ZBIEE “TNF ZECEE _TNF

HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HK§000  HK$00
thr  TEr TEr TEr  TEn

1,964,633 PRI 1,867,325 RWRIRNIX!
248,099 |EEZIMLL

m 1720466

(342076) B (164,197) RNENED)
(@7,510) JCEE

(201,707) [EEAEE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued)
For the purposes of assessing segment performance and allocating
resources between segments, the directors of the Company monitor
the results, assets and liabilities attributable to each reportable
segment on the following basis:

All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than unallocated
corporate assets (mainly include property, plant and equipment, bank
balances and cash that are used by the investment holding companies
and other receivables that are receivable by the investment holding
companies).

All liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than
unallocated corporate liabilities (mainly include lease liabilities,
deferred tax liabilities and other payables and accruals borne by the
investment holding companies).

Other segment information

6.

2EER(HE)

T HEEREE(A)
RIFEHERRR S BEORER2 A
O+ 7R VAT A B AR A
UHESELEE  AERAM -

PMBEBEEANRERREDE  BASD
EEXEE(XZ2EEVE BEER
B WEERARSH ZRITHEBREER
T RIRE R R ARz B Al R
FOIN

PRBEREHDEERREDE KA
EtXBE(T2ERHEERE BT
MIRAERREER AT MAE 2 H M
e AR FEET B RS ©

Continuing Operations

REREER
Water Property development
business and investment Trading of goods Unallocated Consolidation
*EH NEBERRE Bngs £ &
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
ZRoRE CTNF CRC%F CTNF ZB-%F CTNF CBI%F CTNF CR0BF TN
HK$'000  HK$000 HK$'000  HKS000 HK$'000  HKS000 HK$'000  HKS000 HK$'000  HK$000
Tén TAr TEr TEr TEn TEr  TRn  TEn  TEn  TEn
Additions to property, plant and equipment  E59% - BERRE A 12,546 1872
Depreciation HE (692 ICNIR)]  (163)
Other gains Hhla 1790 IIKH] 1908
Other losses Ak Be]  (60,825) (339)
Provision for impairment loss on intangible & ZEHEBERE
assets - ) -
Provision for impairment loss on deposits 24 zAEEBEE
pad N (92,873) )
Provision for impairment loss on properties  %ER#1% 2 HEFERE
under development B (28,033) E(SEZ0)
Provision for impairment loss on completed  #{rit &7 2 %m %2
properties held for sale HEEERE B (25,348) IUARID))
Provision for impairment loss on inventories & HEEERE - (967) -
Over-provision of land value added tax THEER AEEE B 9298 EEEIYSL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

DRER (&
#h BB EH
AEEERELENECE - FERE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.
Geographical information

The Group operates in two principal geographical areas — the PRC

and Hong Kong.

The Group's revenue from external customers and information about

its non-current assets by geographical location are detailed below:

a o

AEBEBINBEP ZWARBREEI
MBEE(RMEMES D) 2 &R Fl
o

Revenue from

external customers Non-current assets

REPBEFHIWA ERBEE
2019 2020 2019
BT —TNF BB —_ZTNF
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET FHET
The PRC =8 - 1,042,776 1,753,247
Hong Kong EBE 33,029 y X' 1{] 621
33,029 1,045,726 |,753,868

Information about major customers

No customer contributed over 10% of total revenue of the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2020.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, revenue of HK$32,760,000
was derived from sales of goods to one customer. This customer
contributed over 0% of total revenue of the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2019.

FTEEFEH
HE-_ZE-_ZF=-F=+—HIEFE "
MEZEPEAEEBUKAI0%LA L -

HE-_ZT—hF=ZA=+—HILFE "
WA 32,760,000 TR B — BB P )
EmiEE BEZET-NF=A=1+—
HIEFE  ZEBEPEAEEBLBAI0%
PAE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Are SRR MR
For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

7. REVENUE

An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows:

Continuing operations BERKEXER
Revenue from contracts with customers REEZEFSHZWA
Sales of goods SRR
Sales of properties MEHE

Performance obligations
Information about the Group'’s performance obligations is summarised

below:

Sales of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied upon handover of the
properties. There were no transaction prices allocated to the
remaining performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied)
as at 31 March 2020.

Sales of goods
The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery of goods. All of
the Group's revenue from sale of goods was recognised at the point

in time when control of the products was transferred to customers.

156 Asia Resources Holdings Limited | T2/ & RIZEAR AR A

7.

A
AEBNEEEZMAD T :

2020 2019

= —F-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TET
(Restated)

(&cE5)

268 32,760
201,242 -

201,510 32,760

BHYEE
FRASENENEEERBAMT

WEHE
BHEETRIEMERER - R T
EEZA=T-"BHEIREHRTED
BECREKRSEEDENK)HIZXHIE °

B &

BHEETRINEREER - AEBPT
BRmHEENBARERIENEEET
B PRIy R B JERE AR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

8. OTHER GAINS 8. Hfthlz
2020 2019
—ECEF —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEx THETT
Continuing operations BEKEXER
Interest income on bank deposits RITFRFEMA 1,681
Dividend income from financial assets at BAFEFABZZ
fair value through profit or loss TRIEEZRBUWA 26
Sundry HEIH 201
Compensation relating to termination of RIEW RIS Y3 2 B
acquisition of Shenyang Properties -
Interest income relating to termination of RIEW RS Y3 2 RS
acquisition of Shenyang Properties -
1,908
9. OTHER LOSSES 9. H
2020 2019
—ECEF —F-AfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET TR
Continuing operations HERKEER
Compensation relating to delay of EEREYHEZHE
handover of properties -
Exchange loss, net &R EEFE (174)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE  HEMREEIE
equipment (160)
(334)
10. FINANCE COSTS 10. B & BN
2020 2019
- g —E-AfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
Continuing operations HEREER
Interest on convertible bonds ARRESFE |31l
Interest on lease liabilities HEBEZFE -
14,314
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MBI

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

| 1. LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 1. BRELETES IS
2020 2019
22 —T-hEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
Fi#tx THE5T

The Group’s loss before taxation from  ANEEZHELEELRRBAT

continuing operations is arrived at EBREIANKRTIEEES

after charging: H
Directors’ emoluments (note 2) ExMe(HiEi2) 3,043
Other staff costs HAh 8 TR 5,561
Other staff's retirement benefits scheme BB T ZiRKE T8I

contributions 667
Total staff costs BTN 9,271
Auditors’ remuneration ZEAN B &
— audit services — 2 BUR 960
— non-audit services — I ERT 756

I, 716

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  #)% « B L REITE 1,525
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEETE -
Amortisation of land use right o $h {55 R A 4 5H 150
Minimum lease payments under operating leases #&X&fE T~ 2 &ZIEHEE 5 2,486
Lease payment not included in the measurement WA A EAEAENHEE

of lease liabilities (note 18(c)) (KT 18(c)) -
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair value BRATERAEBR 2SR

through profit or loss BEZNTHEER 327
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e PR

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

2. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 12. EEB €
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the directors were as ENSENEBUES BN T :
follows:
Retirement
Salaries and benefits scheme
Directors’ fees other benefits contributions Total
- E2 HEREMEN RIEATHHR A%

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
S = L DL S S = T S
HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000  HK$O000  HK$'000  HK$000
TR TET  TER  TEL  FER TAT  FER  TAR

Executive directors: HTEE !
Mr. Li Yuguo (Chairman) FEREE(FR)
Mr. Liu Yan Chee James BHrE
Ms. Guo Yumei REfar
Mr. Huang Yilin ERMEE

Mr. Chan Yuk Sang (note i) REEREL)
Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith (note i)~ BREF B4 (Aiati)

Non-executive directors: FHTES:

Mr, Yang Xiaogiang BIEEE
(Vice chaiman) (B1#E)
Mr. Huang Yilin BRMEL
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MBI

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) |2. {4 (&)

Retirement
Salaries and benefits scheme
Directors’ fees other benefits contributions Total
E2he HERHMER RIER B o

2020 219 2020 209 2020 209 2020 209
TRORE TN CECRF CZE0F CRCRE TR CRCRE CTONR
HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HK$000

Téx TEr TEx  TEr  TEx  ThAr  TEn  TAn

Independent non-executive ~ BUFHTEES :

directors:
Mr. Ba Junyu BETEE
Mr. Zhu Xueyi REERE
Mr. Wong Chung Man EAiD i

Mr. Zhang Xianlin (note ii REMLEM i)
Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse (note iy) - SBE & 4 (H/22iv)

Mr. Ng Ping Yiu (note v) hRBEE (M)
468
2,320
Notes: Bt -
0] Mr. Chan Yuk Sang resigned on 6 December 2018. 0] REELENR-T—/\F+ANBEIE -
(i) Mr. Chan Shi Yin, Keith retired with effect from 31 August 2018, (i) BEEEER-Z-N\FNA=+RARE-
(i) Mr. Zhang Xianlin resigned with effect from | August 2018. @iy REMEER_T—NFNA—HEHL -
(iv)  Mr. Kwok Hong Yee, Jesse resigned with effect from | August 2018. (v HEREER-FZ-NFNA-HEBRIE-
(v)  Mr. Ng Ping Yiu resigned with effect from |3 September 2018. vy BERREER-F-/\FALAT=ABIT-
During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, no emoluments REBEE-_ZF_FTFR-_FT-NAF=A
were paid by the Group to the directors as an inducement to join, or ZH-HEFER AREHSEIMT
upon joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office. None of EEMSERBEZMAIRMAREE
the directors has waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during ReReHIMBHE RBEE-_ZT-F
the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019. FRZIZB-NF=ZA=1+—HILFE
W B E S R KR B R EE AL ] B
%o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

|3. EMPLOYEES’ EMOLUMENTS 13. [EEBN&
(a) Five highest paid individuals (a) ZEBBFAL

The aggregate emoluments of the five highest paid individuals for
the year included 2 (2019: 3) directors of the Company, whose
emoluments are included in note |2 above. The emoluments for

the remaining 3 (2019: 2) individuals are as follows:

Salaries and other benefits e REARET
Retirement benefits scheme contributions iR KIE K5t 2 4 3

The emoluments of the remaining 3 (2019: 2) individuals fell

within the following bands:

AEERERRFALZHSEEE
BARAMA(ZE-NF  =R)&E
= HMeFBEN DX - £
T=R(ZF—NEF : MA) ALHB
BT

2020 2019
g% -—T-hE
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH THT
1,783

35

1,818

BTI=B(ZF-NF: MB)AL
ZHENFIATEHE :

Number of individuals

A
2020 2019
—ECEF —E—NF
HK$Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 Z T2 1,000,0008 70
HK$ 1,000,000 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,0007% 7T £ 2,000,000/ 7T
2
(b) Senior management of the Group (b) XEBFZEREEE

During the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the senior management
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. None of them has waived or
agreed to waive any emoluments during the year ended 31
March 2020 and 2019.

REBEE_Z_TFR=_T—NF=
A=+—HLFER AEEHE
TN TaREEEMSERARKEM
AR INAR SR B B 2 525 sk BB
HE REE-Z-_ZTFR=Z
—NE=ZA=+—HLFER ' &
LENEXRERETAMS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

14. TAXATION

Continuing Operations

Current tax:
— Hong Kong Profits Tax

— PRC Enterprise Income Tax

Total current tax expenses
Deferred income tax:

— Decrease in deferred tax liabilities (Note 32)

Credit for the year

1 4. Fi18
JFEREEK
2020
—E-BHE
HK$’000
FET
ENEASE1E -
—EBFEH
—h B EFER
BNEAT 185 Sx 48 58
EEFTER
—EERIEE R (HE32)
REFEES

Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% (2019:

16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising in Hong Kong for the

year ended 31 March 2020.

Subsidiaries in the PRC are subject to the PRC Enterprise Income Tax
at 25% for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019.
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2019
—T-NEF
HK$'000
FET

23

23

(17,553)

(17,530)

BE-_ZE-_ZTF=A=1+—HILFE "
EREBEEZHFTERB AN B BB R
165%( —Z—NE 1 165%) BEEEF

5% -

BE_Z-_2FK_F—NLF=HA
—+—HLEFE  FEZHBARAER

25% R BB RPTISHL o



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

14. TAXATION (CONTINUED) 14, 5118 (&)

Continuing Operations (continued) #,#E"%E‘Mﬁﬁ(g)

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of tax RZEZZF=A=+—AK=ZZ—A
losses amounting to RMB41,59 1,000 and RMB37,800,000 as at 31 F=ZA=+—H UERSESFIR/A
March 2020 and 31 March 2019 respectively, that will expire within E # 41,591,000 71: )52 A R # 37,800,000
5 years for offsetting against future taxable profits. The tax losses of T BEERERRERIEEE - EH
HK$107,498,000 as at 31 March 2020 (2019: HK$102,351,000) are TE B 18 18 70 7R TR 1 4F I ) DA S R 2R
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits in EBRbaR R -_TEF=F=+—
Hong Kong. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised as it is not H - /&#107498000 BT (=ZF— N
considered probable that taxable profits will be available against which 1 102,351,000 A 7T) 2 BIEEE A #
the above tax losses can be utilised. IR AR RN BB 2 ERBUR R o

BRI EIRR R EBA LR EERE
2 ERBUGE N - B B FE R AT

BEE -
The tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss before AEEZHRBEATHEGER KEM
taxation per consolidated statement of profit or loss and other FHERER ZBRATEESERENOT ¢

comprehensive income as follows:

2020 2019
e —T-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Loss before taxation (from continuing MREIRIEIE(RBFELE
operations) ES 9 359,824 170,811
Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of 16.5% 1Z&EEFISHHE16.5%
(2019: 16.5%) ZE-NF 1 165%)
AR ZBIE 28,184
Tax effect of share of result of associates Sakfabis /NG
KEIBBTE (2,830)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for R IEM S TNEM
tax purposes Xz RBTE (21,706)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tax BB S BER
purposes Was 2 B 2 9,294
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised REWRZHHIE
BBz METE (3,388)
Unrecognised deferred tax arising from ERNEHEE Y
temporary difference RNERIELETIE (1,947)
Utilisation of tax losses previous not recognised @) i 5¢ Al K ERERR < THIE &5 18 105
Tax reduction TRIEHR, 20
Tax effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries ~ fEE M AARER AL & 2 I B
operating in other jurisdictions NATRABE BB E 9,798
Tax credit for the year REFHIEE L 17,530
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLlDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

|5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 15. BRI
For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group disposed of the BE-_ZT—NWF=—A=+—BIFE -
properties in Hangzhou and iron mining business operated in REBEERMMZMERREEEE
Indonesia (“Disposal Group”). 2 EERRER ([ BEHER]) -
As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated || July BANRBEHA-_ZE—NFLA+—H
2018, having considered the keen market competition and the AT EE %&%F}%QE'JZFD LS
challenging environment, risks associated with the possible default by e mkEl 2 IRE - ERRARIGEEN 2
the borrowers, decline in lending interest rates, and opportunities for HERR - WER R TEAREMEF
other new and more profitable businesses, management has resolved &EﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁjAbj}Z%ﬂ&%@ IR
to cease the operation of its money lending business. R PR E UE TS o
For the year ended 31 March 2019, the results and cash flows of BE-_Z—NWF=ZA=+—HIFE -
money lending business and the Disposal Group are treated as WEEBERLEEFN 2 EZERBSRE
discontinued operations and analysed as follows. WRBEKEEBLSFTAT o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR IR AR M T

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

|5. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 15. ER LXK (R)
(CONTINUED)
Analysis of discontinued operations BERIEBZ T
2019
—T-hEF
HK$'000
FHET
Loan interest income B A B BA 269
Administrative expenses TR (1,788)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries LEMRBAREE (4,539)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEDE  WMENMKEER (54)
Loss before taxation BREGATEE (6,112)
Taxation AL -
Loss for the year from discontinued operations REBDRILEB ZEE (6,112)
Loss for the year from discontinued operations INTALTEEERFEED
attributable to: RILET  EE -
Owners of the Company KABHEE A (6,052)
Non-controlling interest R (60)
(6.112)
There was no discontinued operation for the year ended 31 March HE_Z-_TF=-"HA=+—HIEFE "
2020. BEDRIEES -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

15. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(CONTINUED)

Analysis of discontinued operations (continued)

The Group’s loss for the year from
discontinued operations is arrived
at after charging:

Directors’ emoluments (Note |2)

Staff costs

Staff's retirement benefits scheme contributions
Total staff costs

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Minimum lease payments under operating leases

Cash flows from discontinued operations:
Net cash used in operating activities
Net cash generated from investing activities

Net cash generated from financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Net cash outflow

There was no discontinued operation for the year ended 31 March

2020.
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15. B4R IEZE75 (4F)

AEBEAEECRIEEL
BRI RIRT
BEBEN

EE=Me(MiF12)

BT RA

8 T ZRREFIFT S

B TR A4
ME - WE LR ETE
REHE T 2 ERENK

RECRLERZRESRE
RERBMAZREFHE
RELTHELEZRS FH
METHELE RS FR

ReMReFEM IR FE
SNEFE R BB E

BRe s

HERIERBZ DI (&

2019
—E-AfF
HK$'000
THET

155
204

367
98

874

(139)
130

©)

©)

BE_T-_TF-A=1t—HLFE"
BEC R ILER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

16. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO l6. ZNEEARD T EEAELE
OWNERS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE REE
YEAR
From continuing and discontinued operations KEGEEEXBRERILES
The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to the owners KAaEE AEEERERNSERE
of the Company is based on the following data: AT 8RR E -
2020 2019
= —F-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT FAT
Loss - SE =]
Loss for the year from continuing operations ViN/NEIE ¥ DN el
attributable to the owners of the Company REBHEBELSEEBZER (152,588)
Loss for the year from discontinued operations  ZK/A &) A A JE(Y
attributable to the owners of the Company REZERIEEKZ EE (6,052)
(158,640)
2020 2019
g g 222 —E-NEF
’000 Shares '000 Shares
TR T
Number of shares idvip 4=
Weighted average number of shares for the REFTE SR ERZF) 2 ’H
purpose of basic earnings per share (Note) miEFEE B8 (HE) 7,611,690 7,177,443
Note: ez -
The basic and diluted loss per share from continuing and discontinued operations are the BRI R R R B A REER AT R
same for the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019, as the effect of the share options RESBMEBRZAET  QUBE-—T-FF
and convertible notes would be anti-dilutive and were not included in the calculation of RZZB-NFZAZT-AULFEREFEGER
diluted loss per share. BRELIEES 2 BREARBEEEHER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M T

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

16. LOSS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO 6. NEERATEEAELE

OWNERS OF THE COMPANY FOR THE
YEAR (CONTINUED)

From continuing operations

The calculation of basic loss per share from continuing operations
attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the following

data:

Loss for the year from continuing operations KARHEEABGAREE
attributable to the owners of the Company BECEER 2 EBR
From discontinued operations

There was no basic loss per share from discontinued operations
for the year (2019: HK$0.084 cents), as there was no loss for the
year from discontinued operations attributable to the owners of the
Company (2019: HK$6,052,000). The denominators used are the
same as those detailed above for both basic and diluted loss per

share.

The basic and diluted loss per share from discontinued operations are
the same for the year ended 31 March 2019, as the effect of the share
options and convertible bonds would be anti-dilutive and were not

included in the calculation of diluted loss per share.
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KEFBEERTE
AREEEAEERBECEEB2ER
EARBRTIRIEA TR -

2020 2019
— —E-hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FET
(152,588)

KE BRIEET

BHRARRHEA AL EEIEAFEDL
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) AFEMERIEEBLETRE
AEHE(ZZT—NF : 0.084781l)  Frfi
ARS8 EXFHR AR ESRER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

|7. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. 9% - BERRE
Furniture,
fixtures
and office Leasehold Motor  Construction
equipment improvements vehicles in progress Total
i RER HE
BRERE LSS RE ERIR ag
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT THL TAL TAL
Cost: A
Asat | April 2018 R=E-NEMA-A 2226 7789 3947 671 14,633
Additions b 450 381 - 1,041 1,872
Disposals HE (431) (1427) (365) - (2223)
Exchange realignment EHAE (118) (408) (230) (42) (798)
As at 31 March 2019 and R-B-NF=A=1-HER
I April 2019 “E-A¥MA-A 2,127 6,335 3352 1,670 13,484
Additions BN 102 - 160 12,284 12,546
Exchange realignment ERAE (120) (398) (228) (433) (1,179)
As at 31 March 2020 R-B-E5=fA=+-H 2,109 5,937 3,284 13,521 24,851
Accumulated depreciation RHARERAE:
and impairment:
Asat | April 2018 R-E-NEMA-A 847 2946 2624 - 6417
Charge for the year FRYE 345 824 454 - 1,623
Eliminated on disposals L E R (300) (1,306) (266) - (1,872)
Exchange realignment EHAE (37) (107) (156) - (300)
As at 3| March 2019 and R-E-NE=A=1-AR
I April 2019 “E-N¥MA-A 855 2357 2656 - 5,868
Charge for the year ERTE 798 347 1,512
Exchange realignment R (1712) (186) (419)
As at 31 March 2020 R-E-EF5=f=1-H 2,983 2,817 6,961

Carrying amounts: REE
As at 3| March 2020 R=B-Z2§ZA=t-H 2,954 467 13,521 17,890

As at 3| March 2019 RZE-NE=A=+-H 1,272 3978 696 1,670 7616
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M T

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

18. LEASES 18. &
The Group as a lessee FEBERABA
The Group has lease contracts for buildings with lease periods of | to AEBEEHERR —E=FNEFHME
3 years. B&4 -
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) ZAEELEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the AEEFEREEEANFTANERERE
movements during the year are as follows: REBINT :
Offices
N
HK$'000
TET
As at | April 2019 R_E-NFMHA—H 5726
Depreciation e (2,751)
Exchange adjustment bE 3 (65)
As at 31 March 2020 RZE-_EF=A=+—H 2910
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

18. LEASES (CONTINUED) 18. % (%)
The Group as a lessee (continued) KEBIEREAENA ()
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEERE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements HEABEREANNERENLES N
during the year are as follows: T
2020
—EZEHF
HK$’000
THERT
As at | April 2019 R_E-NFMHA—H
Interest expense MEFXZ
Payments R
Exchange adjustment b
As at 31 March 2020 WR-ZZE_ZEF=A=+—H
Analysed into: DR
Current portion BVERER
Non-current portion FERNERES
(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are () PREZTHEIAZHEHESTEWOT :
as follows:
2020
—EZEHF
HK$’000
THERT
Interest on lease liabilities HEEEBENE 358
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets FRAEEENERS 2,751
Expense relating to short term leases REHIE SR S (GEATTERFA )
(included in administrative expenses) 228
Total amount recognised in profit or loss RIBZR R 2 B5E 3,337
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AR MBI

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 19. BIEEE

Water

Land use mining

right licence
(Note i) (Note ii) Total

T EAE Rk E
(Ktezi) (Kratii) gt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TET TET

Cost: A
As at | April 2018 RZZT—N\FMOA—H - 374,699 374,699
Additions HIR 10,602 - 10,602
Exchange realignment [E 5, 3% I (287) (276)
As at 31 March 2019 and R-B-hE=ZA=+-BRK 10613 374,412 385,025
I April 2019 —E-hFMA—-A

Exchange realignment IE 5 3% (709) (280) (989)

As at 31 March 2020

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment:
As at | April 2018

R-E-ZEH=A=1+—H

R BERRE

R-ZF—\FHA—H

9,904

374,132

384,036

Amortisation for the year F N 150 - 150

As at 31 March 2019 and R-B-AE=ZA=+-HRK 150 - 150
I April 2019 “E-NFNA—H

Amortisation for the year F N

Impairment loss for the year FRRERERE 46,932 46,932

Exchange realignment bE S R (15)

As at 31 March 2020

Carrying amount:
As at 31 March 2020

As at 31 March 2019

R-E-ZEH=A=1+—H

RREE
R-E-ZEH=A=1+—H

R-Z-NF=A=t—H
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

9. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

0}

(i)

Land use right represents the right to use the land for water exploitation activities in
Hunan. The land is located at 4 F8 %7 B3T3 5 28 = S B ER A AL The land

use right is valid for 50 years.

Land use right is amortised on a straight-line basis over its lease term. The lease term

of the land use right is 50 years.

Water mining licence represents the right to conduct water exploitation activities
in Hunan. The subsidiary, ¥R %7 H = $85& R /KHPR A 7] had entered into an
agreement with Hunan Government to grant the subsidiary a water mining licence
for exploitation of mineral water for 5 years. The subsidiary has the priority to
extend the mineral water mining licence afterwards. The mine is located at 4 %7
& = 38, The subsidiary has the exclusive rights and authorities to manage and

arrange all activities in the mining area.

Water mining licence is amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful
economic life. The useful economic life of the water mining licence was estimated
with reference to the validity of the operation licence held and the productions
plans of the Group. No amortisation was provided for the year ended 3| March

2020 as commercial production has not yet commenced during the year.

The Group is required to assess any indication of impairment on the water
mining licence at the end of each reporting period. The Group has completed its
annual impairment test for the water mining licence. The recoverable amount of
the water mining licence was determined based on multi period excess earnings
method which uses sum of discounted present value of the projected annual excess
earnings. As at 31 March 2020, the recoverable amount of the water mining licence
is referenced to valuation report issued by AP Appraisal Limited, an independent
qualified valuer. This valuation uses cash flow projections based on financial

estimates covering a twenty-year period.

Bret

0}

(in
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AS506F o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MBI

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

19. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 9. ML &EE (&)

The key assumptions and discount rate used in the annual excess

earnings calculation are as follows:

AR (A%)

Net profit margin (% of revenue)

Long term annual growth rate used to RAREERERE
extrapolate cash flow HREAFEERE
Pre-tax discount rate TR IR &

The net profit margin is based on management’s expectation and
experience in bottled water market, adjusted for expected efficiency

improvements and expected increase in production.

The long term growth rate is the growth rate used to extrapolate the
cash flows beyond the ten-year period are based on the estimated
growth rate taking into account the industry growth rate and the

medium or long term growth target of the Group.

The discount rate is before tax and reflects specific risks.

The value assigned to the above assumptions reflect past experience
and are consistent with management plans for focusing operations in
these markets. The management believes that the assumptions are

reasonable and achievable.
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2020 2019
—ECER —ZT-NF

24.34%-
30.15% 20.07%

3% 3%
31% 16%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

At the beginning of the year
Share of post-acquisition losses and other
comprehensive income during the year,

net of dividends received

At the end of the year

Amount due from an associate

Notes:

(i) Amount due from an associate is unsecured, interest-bearing at 10% per annum (i)

and repayable within one year.

(i) The Group holds 20% equity interests in Hong Kong Spring Water Ding Dong
Group Company Limited (“Spring Water Ding Dong") and its wholly-owned
subsidiary in Guangxi (“Guangxi Spring Water Ding Dong”). Guangxi Spring Water
Ding Dong possesses a water procurement permit for production and sales of

bottled water and is currently in operation in Guangxi.

20. A& N Bl 2R

2020
—EEHF
HK$’000
FExT
F4) 210,517
FARASHBEREIER
HEfp 2w
BRI E
FR 201,076

2020
—E-%F
HK$’000
TExT

st -

2019
—E-NF
HK$'000
FHT

226,960

(16,443)

210,517

2019
—E—NF
HK$'000
FHET

JREUT— R & A B 2 BRI AR SRR 21 0%5F

FEEHE - WEAR—FREE -

B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MBI

For the year ended 31 March 200 HE T "TF =ZA=+—HULFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 20. NEFE N Bl 2 fEm ()

Notes: (continued) Mt - (ﬁﬁ)

(i) (continued) @iy (%)
The Group completed its annual impairment test for interests in associates, Spring AEEFBAERAIEEeHEEENR - =%
Water Ding Dong by comparing the recoverable amount to the carrying amount ERZZE-NFZA=ZT-HZEHE =
as at 31 March 2020 and 2019. The Group engaged AP Appraisal Limited, an ARER ﬁ%’“ SRR Z R 2 FERE
independent qualified valuer, to carry out a valuation of the interests in associates AR AEEDEZRB LA SR ERMAP
as at 31 March 2020 and 2019 based on the value-in-use calculations. This valuation Appraisal Limited * AfE BEEERELE
uses cash flow projections based on financial estimates covering a ten-year period. PR B _TER T -NF=A=+—H

ZEE DR B ETTHE o EETDRR
BTFHzMBEENBRSRBIRAE -

The key assumptions and discount rate used in the value-in-use calculations are as ARFEREBEAEZEBRE NN KT
follows: mr
2020 2019
—EC-BE —ENF

Gross margin (% of revenue) ERE(WA%) 29.85%-34.79% 59.73%
Long term annual growth rate used to extrapolate cash flows AREERSRENREFERERE 3% 3%
Pre-tax discount rate FiAnir I = 12% 13%

Gross margin is the average margin as a percentage of revenue over the ten-year EMER BT FIEBEBGEREE D LA F T
forecast period. It is based on the current sales margin levels with adjustments B HTVZE AT ERRK FRITHRE - LA
made to reflect the expected future price adjustments in bottled water product REUREKERNTERHRRERFE - B2
which management does not expect to be able to pass on to customers through EEHTEEREREDERTE, -

price changes.

The long term growth rate is the growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows RERESAREEBB TFHNRER
beyond the ten-year period are based on the estimated growth rate taking into BMERE  DUGFEREAEE 1
account the industry growth rate, past experience and the medium or long term BITHERE  BELREBMERRANPR
growth target of the associates. B E Bt ESH

The discount rate is before tax and reflects specific risks. HrIR 2 TR AT I [ B E R LB o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(i)

(continued)

A decrease in the long term growth rate by 2% would cause the recoverable
amount of the interests in associates decrease by approximately HK$36,205,000.
A decrease in gross profit by 10% would cause the recoverable amount of the
interests in associates decrease by approximately HK$33,734,000. An increase
in the discount rate by 2% would cause the recoverable amount of the interests
in associates decrease by approximately HK$71,681,000. In the opinion of the
Directors of the Company, any reasonably possible change in the key assumptions
on which the recoverable amount is based would not cause the cash-generating

unit's carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount.

The value assigned to the above assumptions reflect past experience and are
consistent with management plans for focusing operations in these markets. The

management believes that the assumptions are reasonable and achievable.

Details of the Group's associates, which were held indirectly by the

Company at the end of reporting period, were as follows:

Form of Place of Class of shares/
business incorporation/  registered
Name of associates and structure  operation capital held
AL/ KEZRG/
BELTER EBRARRR EEE EMEAEH
Hong Kong Spring Water Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary
Ding Dong Group Rl BB L
Company Limited
BARKTREERRAA
Guangxi Spring Water Ding Dong  Incorporated The PRC Registered
Beverages Company Limited*  FE AL ‘:F [SER]

HEULS L ING

*  For identification purpose only

i}

20. RERE R Az s (4
B ()

g)

pil

iy (#)

ROHRE TR G EBRBE DR R
#) 7] W 2] & BB AL > 4936,205,0007 7T © EFIT
B 10%E EH NS AR 2 B IR E &
BER D #933,734,0008 7T o T K % e
EHA R DR 2 R ) AU E B K
71,681,000 7T  AARIEERAFERAMNE
ERJ[ZAEMEGEAEEHHITEEBRS
AEBMAREERBEAKREGE -

HRELHRBRREERPBELR  WHE
EEFEINRERETMH 28— F
BEERGEZERRRAENTT -

AEEBERB(RARARNESHRE
BERB)ZHBWT

Proportion of nominal value of

paid capital/registered Principal
capital held by the Group activities
AEERRZEARE
HE/EREXZEDL IRER
2020 2019
i “FNF
20% 20%  Investment holding and
water business
REBRIKET

20%  Production and sales of
bottled water
EERBERREK

Annual Report 2020 F ¥

177



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MBI

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED) 20. REEE ARl 2 (8)

Summarised financial information in respect of the Group's associates REBHERNNHE ST -_TEFR
for the year ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 were set out below E-NEFZA=T—BLEFEZHBEE
which represents amounts shown in the respective financial BEHESHN T BEEBE R TS
statements of the associates prepared in accordance with HKFRSs. BB mEERRR 2 S BB ERE
The associates are accounted for using the equity method in the NFTRZ &5 - BERAESS MBKR
consolidated financial statements. KA IETER -

2020 2019

ZEIBE —TNF
HK$°000 HK$'000
TR FET

Current asset RENEE 33,925
Non-current asset FRBEE 106,871 121,515
Current liabilities mBRIE 177,632 210,426
Revenue PN 17,712
Loss for the year REFEE (47,862) (85,760)
Other comprehensive income HAth 2 E W 658 3,544
Total comprehensive income P EW R (47,204) (82.21¢)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information to T EERBERREE T BREA
the carrying amount of the interests in associates recognised in the RIS N Rl n L REE 2SR -

consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

20. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)

Net liabilities of the associates

as at acquisition date

Proportion of the Group’s ownership

interests in associates

Cost of investments in associates
Unlisted in Hong Kong
Valuation adjustment from acquisition
Goodwill
Share of post-acquisition losses and other

comprehensive income, net of dividends

NSl
BRZAEFER

i

AEBRBERR 2B kR
El

oL

BB E N R Z AR
FEBEAELD
Wiz HEHE
kS
TMERBEREBREEMEE
Yeas - FORRE WA B

received
Carrying amount of the Group’s interests in IRES B A B &
associates NRZ w2 BREE
There is no commitment and contingent liabilities under the L
associates. & o

2020
SE i
HK$°000
Tt

(33,841)

(6,768)
210,217
31,443

(33,816)

201,076

20 Rt E N NTBl 2 RS (E)

2019
—T-NEF
HK$'000
FET

(33.841)

20%

(6,768)
210217
31,443

(24,375)

210,517

EAR T UMEMRERAAR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MBI

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

2|. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 21. BRPYIZE
2020 2019
i —E-AfF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FiET

Properties under development BRPYE 307,694 358,956
Less: provision for impairment WO ERE (89,364) (66,507)

218,330 292,449

Properties under development are the residential properties located ERAVMEDCNPERESMNFES
in Beibu District, Jinshitan, Jinzhou New District, Dalian, the PRC AELtHR o HEECERTEED
under development for sale. E

As at 31 March 2020, the balance included land use rights of RZZE_ZTFE=A=+—H #EH
approximately HK$ 113,130,000 (2019: HK$121,229,000). FEH 113130000 L (Z T — N F -

121,229,000 70 ) = b FA#E o

For the year ended 31 March 2020, additional provision for HE_Z_ZF=A=+—HILFED
impairment was recognised to reflect the decrease of net realisable HRBEIN R ERE - UREERFY
value of properties under development. EMRIERFEE D
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

21. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 21 B AYE ()
(CONTINUED)
The Group's properties under development at their book values are AEEZERPYEZRAEEBRAE T
analysed as follows: N
2020 2019
—2-%F —T-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Located in the PRC, held on: HERERE
Leases of between 10 and 50 years NFI0Z505FHFH AT 292,449
As at 31 March 2019, land use right of approximately RZE—hF=ZA=+—8 "%
HK$ 121,229,000 was pledged to a bank for a recurring loan granted 121,229,000 7 7T, 2 + 30 {5 A # 2 K 17
to a third party. The pledge was released during the year. For the TRIT ERE-ZFERBRERZE
details, please refer to note 39(4). R’ ZEREEREAFANRR - FI155

2B 5E39(4) °

22. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 2. FEHEZ2EERYE

2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FiExT FHBT

Completed properties held for sale BIEHEZ2EERYE 162,005 497,839
Less: Provision for impairment OB R (62,740) (126,889)

370,950
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MBI

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

22. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 2. FEHEZEERYE(E)
(CONTINUED)

The completed properties held for sale were located in the PRC FHEAETRHELRE 2B BN WELR
under medium-term lease. Completed properties held for sale which PR BHERREBESET —@AREK
are expected to be recovered in more than twelve months after the B HERECEERMEDS B AR
reporting date are also classified under current assets as it is expected BEE - WIARZEMERBBNA
to be realised in the Group’s normal operating cycle. SEIEREERAER -

For the year ended 31 March 2020, additional provision for HE_Z_ZEF=-A=-+—RHILFER
impairment was recognised to reflect the decrease in net realisable REEINRERE - AR

value of the completed properties located in Dalian of the PRC. RNEZEERYETERFE 2R ©

23. INVENTORIES 23. 78

2020 2019

i —T-NEF

HK$’000 HK$'000

THERT THET

Merchandise 2 on -

Less: Provision for impairment B R E RS -

=w} ET
24. TRADE RECEIVABLES 24. B 5 W AR X

2020 2019

—2-%F —T-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000

FTHET THET

Trade receivables B 5 IR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ArE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The aging analysis of the Group's trade receivables as of each

reporting date is as follows:

0 — 180 days TZ180H
181 — 365 days 181 2365H

The Group's trade receivables are denominated in RMB.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the
carrying value of the trade receivables. The aged analysis of the trade
receivables that are not individually nor collectively considered to be

impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired REHARRIE
Less than 90 days past due #HAE90H

24. B 5 BUWER (&)

NEBEFRWEZNESHEBHZE
BROMWT

2020 2019
i —T-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET

AEBZEFRUEFTIAAREHE -

REeEEHEa EERRRE HEK
R BREE - REENRBERESR
EREREZE S REERFRE ST
I

2020 2019
—g-®F —TNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FB FHT
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25.
RECEIVABLES

Non-current assets: FREBEE :

Deposits for acquisition of investment Wi EYHE 2
properties, net (notes i and ii) ReFEMFiIRi)

Current assets: REEE :

Deposits paid, net (note ii) EfREFE (M i)

Prepayments (note iii) TE A~ SR IE (K aiii)

Amount due from the substantial shareholder &Y &= B AR FIA (/7 v)
(note v)

Other receivables, net (note iv) H b EUBR SO 58 (AT ativ)

The movement of the provision for impairment loss on deposits paid
and other receivables (excluding prepayments and prepaid other

taxes) is disclosed in note 5C.

The creation and release of provision for impaired deposits paid
have been included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. Amounts charged to the provision
account are generally written off, when there is no expectation of

recovering additional cash.
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BRX

2020 2019
—EEHF —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THBTT

487,084 1,150,860

614,689 93,154
1,560 2,373

26,583 -
54,668 73,259

697,500 168,786

gEffRe REMERER(TEREEN
RIENEMEHHIR) R EBERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Other receivables, net are denominated in the following currencies:

RMB ARE
HK$ BT
Notes:
0] Properties in Yantian

As at 31 March 2020, deposits paid of approximately HK$267,694,000 (net of
provision for impairment of HK$5,218,000) (2019: HK$292,449,000) were related
to three acquisitions of properties in Yantian where the physical possession of
the properties has been delivered to the Group. According to the supplementary
agreement disclosed in the announcement dated 3 May 2018, the titles of the
three properties should be transferred to the Group before 30 December 2018.
Nevertheless, according to the announcement dated 9 June 2019, the vendor has
still not registered the title of the properties under the name of the Group. The
approval from the PRC government authority for issuing the building ownership
certificate remained pending. In May 2020, the Company received a letter from
the vendor requesting for an extension of the deadline to 31 December 2020 for
handling the ownership certificate matter. The Company has engaged a PRC law

firm to negotiate with the vendor to resolve this matter.

Properties in Beijing

As at 31 March 2020, deposit paid of approximately HK$199,772,000 (net of
provision for impairment of HK$18,558,000) (2019: HK$233,959,000) was related
to acquisition of properties in Beijing. Details are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 28 February 2017.

Naming right of buildings in Shenzhen

As at 31 March 2020, deposit paid of approximately HK$19,618,000 (2019:
HK$21,023,000) was related to naming right of two buildings located in Shenzhen.
In current year, management has reclassified the deposit from current assets to

non-current assets in order to conform with a fair presentation.

25. FESTFIE

BE R EAEWR

ARR (48)
S it IR R HOB RS T 31 1A

iz -

0

2020 2019
—EZEHF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THET
73,129

130

73,259

EmYE

RZZZTF=A=+—H8 ' #9267,694,000
57T (BRI E B 552180008 L8 ) (=%
— L 1 292,449,000 L) 2 B LS EH =18
EMYE IR BRSMECELDHE
ERERXNTAER - REBHAE=-ZT—N

FAAZRAZAMBERZHITmME  Z=H
MEZERAR-_Z—N\F+T-A=1HH
HETAEE - A BEAHR-FT—N
FRATARZAM  EHMRAREES
BENAEMEFEE - BRIEN R
FEMAEEEZPERFHEEDL RN =%
“EERR ARBREEESERERER
BEFEMAREEFENRERME T
ZEF-A=ZT—HHEH - ARFASERE
—HKPBEMEBATETIER - SARRI
=H-

Bt/ ES

RZZEZZTF=A=+—08 " 4199,772,000
&I (M BIRE B 185580008 L) (==
— N4 © 233,959,000/ 7T ) 2 B TR & HUEE
IERYERR - FBEEARERFBARAR=T
—tE-_A=-+NBZAM

FYEFm LR

RZZEZTF=A=+—H " 419,618,000/%
TT(ZZ— L% © 21,023,000 7T) 2 ERES
HREMG RN 2 EF B EER - RAF
B ERECSRLRSHRDEEETHEA
RIEREEE - NERATFEED -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ma

For the year ended 31 March 2020 H & — &

BA AR MY RE

—EEZA=1+RALFE

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(i

As at 31 March 2020, deposits paid were mainly relating to (1) acquisition of
properties in Zengcheng of nil (net of provision for impairment approximately
HK$67,682,000) (2019: approximately HK$71,440,000, net of provision for
impairment approximately HK$1,088,000) and (2) acquisition of properties in
Shenyang (“Shenyang Properties™) of approximately HK$614,053,000 (2019:
HK$624,452,000 classified under non-current assets).

Properties in Zengcheng

The acquisition of properties in Zengcheng was terminated on |8 January 2017.
Based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, the Group recognised a
loss allowance for expected credit loss on the deposits paid (for details, please
refer to note 5C). The Group’s legal advisors has issued demand letters to the
vendor for the repayment of the remaining balance of the paid consideration
related compensation. Appropriate legal action will be taken if the issue cannot be
resolved.

Shenyang Properties

Details of the acquisition of Shenyang Properties are set out in the announcement
of the Company dated 12 October 2017. On 24 April 2019, a termination
agreement was entered into between the vendor and the Group to terminate the
sale and purchase agreement in relation to the acquisition of Shenyang Properties.
The vendor shall refund the total amount of deposits of RMB562,500,000 (the
“Refund Amount”) paid by the Group, together with a monetary compensation of
RMB1 1,250,000 on or prior to 24 October 2019, details of which are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 24 April 2019.

On | November 2019, the Group further entered into a supplemental agreement
with Mr. Li Yuguo, a substantial shareholder, the chairman and an executive
Director of the Company and the ultimate beneficial owner of the vendor pursuant
to which, Mr. Li Yuguo agreed to take up the responsibilities to repay the Refund
Amount and the related compensation and interests to the Group, and provide his
personal assets as securities. The Group agreed to extend the repayment date to
24 April 2020, with an interest rate of 5.25% per annum. Details of which are set
out in the announcement of the Company dated | November 2019.

On 29 April 2020, the Company published an announcement on the event of
default in relation to the payment of the Refund Amount and related compensation
and interest accrued thereon. On 8 May 2020, the Company set up a special
committee, with 3 independent non-executive directors as members, to handle the
repayment and/or the recovery of the Refund Amount. The Company has engaged
independent legal advisors to work with the Special Committee and the Special
Committee will seek other professional advice so as to take appropriate actions
if necessary to recover the Refund Amount and enforce the securities. Details of
event of default and the Special Committee are set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 29 April 2020 and 8 May 2020 respectively.

Up to the date of this report, the Group has received a partial payment of Refund
Amount and related compensation and interest of approximately HK$16,900,000.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (continued)

(i) As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, prepayments mainly comprised prepayment of

indirect cost incurred for properties under development and advertising expenses

for water exploitation operations.

(iv)  As at 31 March 2020 and 2019, other receivables mainly comprised other tax

prepaid in the PRC, advance payments for business related matters and cash

advanced to staff.

As at 31 March 2019, one of the other receivables, from &I I E X% RE
R 2 7], of approximately HK$4,445,000, represented the business guaranty margin
paid for properties redevelopment project situated at 43I T #& 4 [ ¥ (& % 75 4T
ABEEFEFIE. The margin is refundable if all land title owners of 77 2L ABT{E=E
F & agree to transfer their land use rights to AT H I EXEZERBER AR The
management considered that the possibility of getting the refund is remote and a

provision of impairment has been made. Such amount was written off in current

year.

(v)  Asat 31 March 2020, amount due from the substantial shareholder, Mr. Li Yuguo,

represented the compensation and interests receivable relating to the termination

of the acquisition of Shenyang Properties as detailed in (ii).

26. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong at

quoted bid price RMmE

Fair value are determined with reference to quoted market bid price.

25. FESTFIE

26.

REE LN ZBAES

BE R EAEWR

AR (&)
i - (%)

(iii)

(v)

)

RZTEZEFR=_F-—NF=A=+—8"
ENREIEREERPYEEE ZHER
ARKFAREBZEEEBRZEMNHE -

R-B-ZFER"Z-hF=ZA=+—8"
Hi b ER T E0FEN b ERE -
EBHBZBNRRBNTEIZRS -

MZZE—AFE=A=+—8 HP—$Hm
W RERNTHAEXERBERAA
#94,445,00078 7T - AL FORIIT 28 = A E
AN AREEABZDESRIERAZEM
EERES MALAREEAED LM
EEBREBARESHEZ L ERESES
AT HUBXEERERAR  ZREE A
ARE - BEERR  BUSERRZ AR
A B EHRIBE R - XS RRAFEME -

RZTZZZEF=A=+—H BRFEFERR
2 B S A YR IE 48 0 2B (i) BR B Al BRAR 1 R
RS AMMEERERFS -

BNV EFABRZE 2SR

BE

2020 2019
—E-%5F —FNF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TEx THT

4,540

RFETIRETGHREETE ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MBI

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

27. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 27 SRITHEBRRBRE
Bank balances and cash were denominated in the following currencies: IRITHB RIS U T EBE
2020 2019
= —F-NF
HK$'000 HK$000
FTERT FAT
RMB AR 60416
HK$ BT 66,115
Others EHAitb 754
127,285
The remittance of cash and cash equivalents denominated in RMB BEFREELEUAEBAEZIRE RS
out of the PRC is subject to the foreign exchange control restrictions LZEWAREPRBRMAE 2 IMNEE
imposed by the government of the PRC. FR &l ©
(a) Restricted bank deposits (a) ZRFIRITF
As at 31 March 2020, restricted bank deposits of approximately R-E-_ZEF=ZA=+—H %
HK$2,484,000 (2019: Nil) are deposits subject to regulatory FR I 88 1717 3K 492,484,000/ 7T ( —
restrictions and are therefore not available for general use by the T-NF E)AXEERENF
other entities within the Group. o A AEERNEMERE LR
E—M R -
(b) Cash and cash equivalents (b) B RELZEY
2020 2019
—ECEF —E-AF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Bank balances and cash IRTTHEBRNMIRE 46,063 127,285
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

28. TRADE PAYABLES

Trade payables 2 S ER IR

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables at the end of the

reporting period, based on the contract date or invoice date:

0 to 90 days T £90H
91 to 180 days 91ZE180H
81 to 365 days 181 2365H
Over 365 days tBiE365H

The trade payables are non-interest bearing, normally settled within

six month from receiving suppliers’ invoices and denominated in RMB.

28. B 5 B I ERRX

2020 2019
i —T-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET

81,071

RBEHRREAOEMABRAH
BHRMNESREONAOT

2020 2019
—E-EF —T-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTExT FHBT
29,322

3,135

38,614

81,071

ASEAERALE - B—BARKE
PR R R A A REELAAR
WAT1E -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MBI

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

29. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 29. BB BR R R FERTE A
2020 2019
—g-gF —T-hf
HK$’000 HK$'000
TET FAT
Land value added tax payable JE LI (AT 29,609
Accruals JEFTE A 2,205
Other payables EH At ETBR K 82,183
Amount due to non-controlling interests (note i) JE{ JEIEARKEZS FRIA (A7 2ti) 9912
123,909
Other payables and accruals are denominated in the following HEEMNERANEFERU T ST
currencies: B :
2020 2019
—EB-EF —E-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHR FH
RMB AR 12,981
HK$ BT 10,928
123,909
Note: it
(i) Amount due to non-controlling interest is unsecured, interest-free and repayable 0] FERFFERER TR AEREN  ROREKE
on demand. RIEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

30. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
Ordinary share of HK$0.25 each
At | April 2018

Capital Reorganisation 2018 (note ii)

Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each
At 31 March 2019, | April 2019 and
31 March 2020

Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary share of HK$0.25 each
At | April 2018
Subscription of shares (note i)

Capital Reorganisation 2018 (note ii)

Ordinary share of HK$0.01 each
At 31 March 2019, I April 2019 and
31 March 2020

30. IR AR

EE
FAXEE. 258 T2 @Ak
R-ZE—\FMHA—H

ZE— N\EXREMA(MFi)

FREE0OIETTZ EiBAX

R-E—hhF=A=+—8"

“E-AFNUA—HK
—E-EFE=A=+—H

ERITRHARE :
BREE0.2SB I 2 Tk
RZZE—-N\FHA—H

REBAR D (K7aEi)
— NEREL (K i)

EREE0IE Lz TR
RZZE—hF=ZA=+—8"
T—-AFMA—B R
—E-EF=A=+—H

Number of
ordinary shares Amount
EERHE =8
HK$'000
TET
10,000,000,000 2,500,000
240,000,000,000 -
250,000,000,000 2,500,000
6,343,690,000 1,585,923
1,268,000,000 317,000
- (1,826,806)
7,611,690,000 76,117
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IMF

BB ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

30.

31.

SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Notes:

0] On 17 April 2018, Mr. Li Yuguo agreed to subscribe 1,268,000,000 new ordinary
shares at subscription price of HK$0.25 per share. The subscription was completed

on 3 August 2018.

(i) Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special general meeting held on 12
November 2018, the Company implemented the Capital Reorganisation 2018 on
I3 November 2018 which involved (i) capital reduction, pursuant to which the
issued share capital of the Company were reduced by a reduction of the par value
of each issued shares from HK$0.25 to HK$0.01, which reduction comprised a
cancellation of such amount of the paid-up capital on each issued share so that
each issued share were treated as one fully paid-up share of par value of HK$0.01
in the share capital of the Company immediately following the capital reduction
and the credit arising from the capital reduction were credited to the capital
reserve account of the Company; and (i) sub-division of each of the authorised but
unissued shares of par value of HK$0.25 into twenty-five new shares of par value

of HK$0.01 each.

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

On 20 August 2015, the Company issued convertible bonds due on
20 August 2018 with a principal amount of HK$432,000,000, which
is intercomprising 4% coupon rate per annum (the “2015 CB").
The convertible bonds were issued for potential future investments,
including real estate projects and the general working capital of
the Group. The convertible bonds are designated as fair value on
initial recognition and are convertible into fully paid ordinary shares
with a par value of HK$0.25 each of the Company at an initial
conversion price of HK$0.72. The effective interest rate is 15.91%.
The Company will redeem the convertible bonds if the bonds have
not been converted on maturity date. The principal amount of
convertible bonds outstanding was approximately HK$244,800,000
as at 3| March 2018. During the year ended 31 March 2019,
outstanding convertible bonds with principal amount of approximately

HK$244,800,000 were fully repaid upon maturity.
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30. lRAN(48)

Mt -

0] RZZ—-N\FMHNA+LER  ZTEEEERE
LARR IS B AR5 0.2578 TR 1,268,000,000
R imik - ZRER T N\ENA=H
FERK °

iy WEBRZZT-—NF+-A+ZBRITZKRE
FRAAE ERBZRHIARRAR - ARAR
- \F+—A+T=AEBT=-T—\ELE
HESROBRAKNER - BUHEADRGRE
BATIRD 2 EEKE0.25 B TTHIR 2001 BT -
LABPR AR R Z BBITIRA o ILRAHIRE
BEBREEFITROTHEEREZ THR
R EEREBEITRO N EERAHR %
EERRARRAG 2 FREEROIBTL
EHAR o RAHIFFTE £ 2 #RRBERA
RABZERNFER  RG)FHAMEER0.25
BT ERERBERBEITZRNA=TEH
RS - BREERCOIETT ©

3. AR B S

RZZE—RAFENAZ+H ' KAAIET
K% %8 /432,000,000 TR Z T — \F
NAZTBEE  RERSEF4%2T]

mERES ([ —T-—RAFABRERES]) -
AMERESDREEENERBEARNLZ
BEBERRENAEE -REEESM

BT o ATMRES IRV S HEREIET
BIRAFEANE - WA Z0.728 T 2]
FEBEERAARNTEREBELSE
LR TR - ERFIEEI591% -
$/ﬂﬂ%@ﬂ%h%#’ﬁﬁﬁa%
EFREPARELR - RZF—\F
Eﬂ:+*5'ﬁ$ﬂ@2ﬂ@%%
%2 R RBH) 5244,800,000/8 7T © RE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

31. CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED)

Equity component
At | April 2018
Redemption of convertible bonds during

the year

At 31 March 2019, I April 2019 and
31 March 2020

Liability component

At | April 2018

Imputed interest expense charged
Interest paid

Redemption of convertible bonds

during the year

At 31 March 2019, I April 2019 and
31 March 2020

EREHD
R-ZZF—N\FMOA—H
TR R (B AT HR AR (B 55

R-ZZE-hF=A=+—H"

—E-hAFENMNA—HBHR
—§-FF=A=1-F

=Rt
RZZE—-N\FHEHA—H
MEMSZ
EASFLE

G A B B TR AR B 5

R-E—hF=A=+—H "
—E-NAFEA—BK
—E_EF=A=+—H

3. A[ IR B 5 (1)

2015 CB Total
—E—HEF
AR RS #et
HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT TAT
72,561 72,561
(72,561) (72,561)
234,287 234,287
14,322 14,322
(3,809) (3,809)
(244,800) (244,800)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E VB ERARME

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T -ZHE=A=+—HI|IFE

32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 32 IEFERIREE
The components of deferred tax liabilities recognised on the REBEE-ZZE-_EFR=-FT—-—NF=A
consolidated statement of financial position and the movements =t+—HIEFERN  REETBRIK
during the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019 are as follows: HRBELCHEABENERDY REH)
wmr

Deferred tax arising from: THSBEREENELESE :
At | April 2018 RZZE-N\FMA—AH 36,354
Credited A
— to profit or loss —1Ex (17,553)
— to other comprehensive income —Hir2E = (2,349)
At 31 March 2019 and | April 2019 RZZE-—NF=ZA=+—HK
—T-NEFEMA—A 16,452
Credited A
— to profit or loss —E& (4,904)
— to other comprehensive income —HEtEEKas 971)
At 31 March 2020 R-E-_Z2FE=H=+—H 10,577

Net deferred tax liabilities in the consolidated — R4EA B FEAA N R EVIEETL 1B

statement of financial position BEFE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

BB ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

33.

SHARE OPTIONS

The Company's share options scheme adopted on |4 January 2002
(the “2002 Share Option Scheme”) for the purposes of recognition
of significant contribution of and for the provision of incentives to any
directors, employees (whether full-time or part-time), consultants,
customers, suppliers, agents, partners or advisors of or contractors
to the Group or affiliates (“Eligible Persons™). On 12 July 2011,
the Company had granted 140,500,000 share options to directors,
employees and other affiliates under the 2002 Share Option Scheme.

The 2002 Share Option Scheme has been terminated on 9 August
2011 and a new share option scheme (the “201| Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted by the Company on 9 August 201 I.

The 2011 Share Option Scheme is adopted for the same purpose of
the 2002 Share Option Scheme.

33.

BRE
ARTER=TE_F— A +MAR
MR ([ =2 - T BRI

g BEERTAKEIBEAR T
MEE RE(TWEBIERRE) B

B8P #HER RIEA GBAXK
BRARARE([EERATFAED
ZEEER - WHESREEE - N
T——FtA+=H  AREERE=
TE_FEREFIMNES  EERHA
BB A B)% H 140,500,00017 BE A o

TR _FEBREEICR T ——F
NARNBEILE MARAR-ZT——F
NANBRA—IEFHBRETE(=F
——FERERE ) -

T FRERERERE T
FRERE S ZER B ORR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

BB ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

33.

SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

Under the terms of the 201 | Share Option Scheme, the Board of
Directors of the Company may for a notional consideration of HK$ |
grant option to the Eligible Persons to subscribe for shares in the
Company at a price no less than the higher of (i) the closing price
of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotations sheet on the date of offer of the option (which must
be a business day); (ii) the average closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of offer of the option.
Options granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme must be
taken up within 28 business days from the date on which the offer
is made by returning a written acceptance of the offer signed by the
Eligible Persons together with the payment of HK$ | per option (the
“Acceptance Conditions”). Options granted and accepted may be
exercised at any time for |0 years commencing on the date on which
an option is accepted in accordance with the Acceptance Conditions
under the 2011 Share Option Scheme (the “Option Period"”).
Options granted under the Scheme will be exercisable in the Option
Period notwithstanding that the scheme period of the 2011 Share
Option Scheme does not prescribe any minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can be exercised and has not specified

that the exercise of an option is subject to any performance target.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the 2011 Share Option Scheme
cannot exceed 0% (the “Limited”) of the issued share capital of the
Company at the date of adoption of the 201 | Share Option Scheme,
excluding any options lapsed in accordance with the terms of the

2011 Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

nVT\

BB ERRMEE

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

33.

SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company shall
not, in aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue
from the time to time. Option will not be granted to any Eligible
Persons if the exercise in full of all options, including any unexercised
options and shares already issued under all previous option granted,
would in the [2-month period up to and including the date of such
further grant enable that relevant Eligible Person to have shares
exceeding 1% of the issued shares of the Company for the time being
unless separate approval by the shareholders in general meeting is

obtained.

2002 Share Option Scheme

As at 31 March 2019, the number of shares in respect of which share
options remained outstanding under 2002 Share Option Scheme was
220,000, representing 0.003% of the shares of the Company in issue
at the reporting date.

As at 31 March 2020, the remaining share options under 2002 Share

Option Scheme were fully lapsed.

33.

EREGE)

R R B R AR R 7 1 E A P AR T
IR 2 B A R AT 0 2 M R T
BE PRI ZROBE - B AHTE

BB TEFEE BTG B8 230% ° iR
BEEMBEZE—SETFTZAHZ 12
BEMEmEITFE 2 BERE(RETM

WARTT R Z B RRIEAAEBER
ZEREMBET RN BHEMNEE
BALTHBERRRER 2 BHITRNE
BI% - BB T ERTERAER
AT BIFERBRERE LBSKRRS
TTHEE - RUBBHISN -

—EE_FERETE
W_ZE—NF=A=+—8"
:ﬂ%ﬁﬂ%%%ﬂlﬁﬂﬂﬁcnffiﬁﬁz,ﬁ\%ﬁx
H Mo D 8B £220,0000% - 15A A
RIS A AR 817819 20.003% °

—E=E

R-F-FFZA=+—H —FF-
F R R T 2 8 TR D
PN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
E VB ERARME

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T -ZHE=A=+—HI|IFE

33. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 33. B AE(AE)
2002 Share Option Scheme (continued) —EE_FERETE ()
During the year under review, the details and movements in the share REBEEERN  — ST - FERETE
options granted under 2002 Share Option Scheme are as follows: ETERIBERENGIBRESETI N
T

Category I: Directors 12 July 2011 12 July 2011 = 1 July 2021 1,775 140,000 (140,000) -
Bi- g% - “I—HtATZRE
+A+ZH “E2--EXAT-H
Category 2: Employees 12 July 2011 12 July 2001 = 11 July 2021 |.775 80,000 (80,000) -
BH= R - “I—HtATZRE
+A+=H “E2--E4AT-H
Total for all categories 220,000 (220,000) -
FARRI S
Weighted average exercise price (HKS) 1.775 1,775 -
g E(ET)
Note: The closing price of the Company’s shares quoted on the Stock Exchange on the Bt RA R IR B BB S FTAT IR 2 W
date of grant was HK$0.071 (adjusted to HK$1.775 upon capital reorganisation BROOTIBT(REREEAN T —ZFX
became effective on 3 June 2013). AZBHERERERI7758T) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

33. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)

2002 Share Option Scheme (continued)
The fair value of the share options granted were priced using the

Trinomial model. The inputs into the model share option type.

33.IBIRAE(E)

— T _FRRENE(H)
REERE D TETER =B
EEEAEE - ZEABRRER S
INK

2002 Share

Option

Scheme

—EECF

BRESHE

Grant date share price R BERE HK$0.07 1 7T

Exercise price 7B HK$0.07 | 7T
Adjusted exercisable price after Capital RZT—=ZBREMRE 2 IERARITEE

Reorganisation 2013 HK$ 177587

Expected volatility TEARR I8 78.743%

Expected option life T8 HAER R 4 4F 5P 10 years®F

Dividend yield fi% B =& 0%

Risk-free interest rate 42 1 g 1) 2= 2.796%

2011 Share Option Scheme —E——FERETE

On 31 August 2018, an ordinary resolution was duly passed
by the shareholders at an annual general meeting of the
Company, approving, inter alia, to refresh the scheme mandate
limit under the 2011 Share Option Scheme of the Company
adopted on 9 August 201 1. The refreshed scheme limit as at
31 August 2018 was 761,169,000.

As at 31 March 2019, the number of shares in respect of which share
options remained outstanding under 201 | Share Option Scheme was

99,400,000, representing |.31% of the shares of the Company in issue.

As at 31 March 2020, the remaining share options under 201 | Share

Option Scheme were fully lapsed.

%‘f-)\i/\ﬂ =+—H —HEHLA
RERNARRZREBEFRE LER
RIEXBB  AHE(EFBFE)EH
ARaR—_E2——F NANBEREKZ =
T FERETEIET 28 EER
HoRZZE—N\FNA=+—HZEE
FaTEIBREEA761,169,00017 ©

—NEF=ZA=+—H RBE=F
—— FBREEIE T DARITE ZER
W 2 IR B £99,400,0008% - {h
RARBBITRDZ1.31% °

EFE%HﬂEJEUIETZ%Tﬁ%Hx%E S
S
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M T

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

33. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED) 33. BIRFE(E)
2011 Share Option Scheme (continued) —E——fFEREE(E)
During the year under review, the details and movements in the share NREREEEAN — T ——FEIRESTZ
options granted under 201 | Share Option Scheme are as follows: ENEEEEREZFEREFHET
Number of share options
FRENE
Date of Exercisable Exercise  Outstanding Lapsed  Outstanding
grant period price per at | April during at 3| March
share 2019 the year 2020
RiHR% i i i
“E-0E “RC%F
& mA-A ZR=1-A
k| HATE  REARN GESH
HK$
AL
Category |: Directors 26 August 2014 26 August 2014 -
il 8% 25 August 2024 0352 400,000 (400000) -
“T-IE ZE-MENAZT/AZ
NA=17A “Z2-PE\A-tEH
3 October 2014 3 October 2014 -
2 October 2024 0520 2,000,000 (2,000,000) -
“E-METAZA “2-METAZRE
ZE-RETACH
20 April 2015 20 April 2015 -
19 April 2025 0395 28,000,000 (28000,000) -
ik “E-1§MA-THE
BAZ1A “Z-RFMATAR
18 September 2016 18 September 2016 -
27 September 2026 026 63,000,000 (63,000,000) -
“BRF “E-AEAAZTNRE
ARZT/A “EORFAAZTLA
Category 2: Employees 26 August 2014 26 August 2014 -
Bi— E& 25 August 2024 0352 500000 (500000) -
“2-[F ZE-MENAZTARE
NAZ17A “E-mENACTEA
3 October 2014 3 October 2014 -
2 October 2024 0520 1,000,000 (1000000) -
“2-METAZR Z2-METAZRE
“E-mETR-A
18 September 2016 28 Septerber 2016 -
27 September 2026 026! 4500,000 (4500000 -
i SRS ZE-RENACTARE
ARZTNR “EREAACTLA
Totalfor allcategories FrRERI s 99400000 (99400000) -
Weighted average exercise i JIETSSTE(E
(HKS) (B7) 0307 0307 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR IR AR M T

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

33. SHARE OPTIONS (CONTINUED)
2011 Share Option Scheme (continued)

The fair value of the share options granted were pricing using the

Trinomial model. The inputs into the model were as follow:

Grant date share price
Exercise price
Expected volatility
Expected option life
Dividend yield

Risk-free interest rate

BRHRASKRE
T8
AHIRIE
BHRREFS

fREx

BE BN

2011 Share Option Scheme Granted on

28 September
2016
“E-RE
NA=tNR
HK$0.255/8 7T
HK$0.26 17T
75.617%

9.995 yearsF
0%

0.884%

33. fm B iE (7E)
—E-—FEREE (A

REBREZ AFESER =B HE
EERAEE  ZBEAZBABENT -

—E--FRRESERLAN

20 April
2015
“B-HF
MAZtH

HK$0.39578 7T
HK$0.39578 7T
73.37%

10 years

0%

4%

3 October
2014
—E-mE
+A=H

HK$0.520/ 7T
HK$0.520/8 7T
71.741%

10 years

0%

1.969%

Annual Report 2020 ¥

26 August
2014
—B-JE
NR=+XH

HK$0.34578 7T
HK$0.35278 7T
71.09%

10 yearsF

0%

1.919%
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34. CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Net debt reconciliation

M. BEREER
B YR

Liabilities from

financing activities

REMEETBH2EE
Lease Convertible
liabilities bonds
HEAE AR E S
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
Net debt as at | April 2018 RZZE—N\FMHA—HZ
ET5FER - 234,287
Cash flows Remne - (248,601)
Other non-cash movements HihIER & #E) - 14,314
Net debt as at 31 March 2019 RZE—hF=ZA=+—HZ
E5%aR - -
Adoption of HKFRS 16 as at | April 2019 RZZE—NFMNA—BERMN
EEMBIMEELE 655 5,542
Cash flows ReEmE (2,934)
Other non-cash movements HAb 3R & 28 293
Net debt as at 31 March 2020 R-ZB-ZF=A=1+—H®W
B FE
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For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

35. GAIN/LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(a) Disposal of China Value Assets Limited and

Merit Development Limited

On 12 July 2018, the Group has entered into a sale and purchase
agreement in respect of the sale of 100% share equity of China
Value Assets Limited and Merit Development Limited at a

consideration of HK$33,000,000.

The net assets of subsidiaries at the date of disposal were as

follows:

Consideration received

Net assets disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables
Bank balances and cash
Other payables and accruals
Income tax payable

Gain on disposal before release of translation reserve
Release of translation reserve

Loss on disposal of the subsidiaries

Satisfied by:
Cash

Net cash inflow from disposal:
Cash consideration

Bank balances and cash disposal of

For the period from | April 2018 to the date of disposal, the
above subsidiaries were engaged in properties investment in
Hangzhou and iron mining in Indonesia. The subsidiaries did not
recognise any revenue but a loss of approximately HK$212,000

35. HEMB A RWE H18

(a) & China Value Assets

Limited K& Merit Development
Limited
RZE-N\FLA+T=ZH KAEHE
Bt tH £ China Value Assets Limited &
Merit Development LimitedZ | 00%8%
BRI B Stk - K {E87333,000000
BTT

ZEMBARINEERRZEEF

BT -
HK$'000
FAT
ERE 33,000
EHEEEFE
Y - BE k& (27,173)
TERFIA « e RE M ERARFR (579)
RITAEBREIRE (87)
Hib R R ET & A 201
JERT P15 B 2
PR IR EE S R AT 2 H B W 5,364
R RR 2 BE K (9,903)
HEZEMBARERE (4,539)
BRI FAEA
Rne 33,000
EESHEZRERAFRE :
HeNRE 33,000
EHERITEBRNE S (87)
32913

BE-Z-N\FMNA-HBREZEHER
HAEEARS - AP A RN B
EYERERNEDEN EHBERR
R-BE_T-NF=A=1+—H

has recognised in the Group's loss for the year ended 3| March EFE  ZEWBARIWEERE

2019.

AU A - BRAEE Z E1E+ R
#)212,00078 7T 2 &5 18 o
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35. GAIN/LOSS ON DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)
(b) Disposal of RENBERBREFRERETE LA

On 21 September 2018, the Group has entered into a sale and
purchase agreement in respect of the sale of 100% share equity
of REAMERBALIRAFMREE AT at a consideration of
approximately HK$4,820,000.

The net assets of the subsidiary at the date of disposal were as

follows:

35, ﬁﬂ’%ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂ&ﬁ?&/&ﬂé
II‘E
(b) HEBRTMNERBERER

EEAT
R-ZE—N\FALA-+—8 K&
Bt L EREME R BERERE
FAREZ I00%IRIERT LB B ek
R (B 494,820,000/ 7T °

ZMBARNHERARZEEFE
o

Consideration received

Net assets disposed of:
Property, plant and equipment

Bank balances and cash

Gain on disposal before release of translation reserve

Release of translation reserve
Gain on disposal of the subsidiary

Satisfied by:
Cash

Net cash inflow from disposal:
Cash consideration

Bank balances and cash disposal of

For the period from | April 2018 to the date of disposal, the
above subsidiary was dormant. The subsidiary did not recognise

any revenue but a loss of approximately HK$465,000 has

HK$'000
FHETT
BURIE 4,820
BHEEEFE
Y~ BB R )
IRITAEBRKRIRE (4,558)
Rk IE SR BT 2 BB I ES 255
i B 2 B 5 1 383
HEZH B A a e 638
BT FAZA
e 4,820
HESHEZRERAFE
BeRE 4,820
EHERITEBRERS (4,558)
262

B-Z-/\FOA-REEHEHR
G Tt B b = N i
X-BE_T-NF=A=1+—H

recognised in the Group'’s loss for the year ended 31 March IEFE - KR A A3 AR
019 WA - BRI EE 2 BB R
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36. RESERVES

(a) Capital reserve

36. 1
(a) EXtEE

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special general
meeting held on 31 May 2013, the Company effected the capital
reorganisation (“Capital Reorganisation 2013") which became
effective on 3 June 2013 and involved (i) the consolidation of
every twenty-five issued and unissued shares with a par value
of HK$0.05 each into one consolidated share; (ii) the reduction
of issued share capital whereby the par value of each issued
consolidated shares will be reduced from HK$1.25 to HK$0.25
by cancelling the paid-up capital to the extent of HK$1.00 on
each of the consolidated shares to a reduced share of HK$0.25
each; (iii) transfer of the credit arising from the capital reduction
to the capital reserve account of the Company; (iv) the sub-
division of each unissued consolidated share into five reduced
shares of HK$0.25 each.

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at a special general
meeting held on 12 November 2018, the Company
implemented a capital reorganisation (“Capital Reorganisation
2018") on 13 November 2018 which involved (i) capital
reduction, pursuant to which the issued share capital of the
Company were reduced by a reduction of the par value of
each issued shares from HK$0.25 to HK$0.01, which reduction
comprised a cancellation of such amount of the paid-up capital
on each issued share so that each issued share were treated
as one fully paid-up share of par value of HK$0.01 in the share
capital of the Company immediately following the capital
reduction and the credit arising from the capital reduction were
credited to the capital reserve account of the Company; and (ii)
sub-division of each of the authorised but unissued shares of par
value of HK$0.25 into twenty-five new shares of par value of
HK$0.01 each.

BER—_Z—=FRAA=1+—HE
TZRRFINARE BB 2RI
BER O ARANEBITEREH(ZZE
—ZEBABEHDIR=ZT—=FX
A=BEREFIEHEB-_THERS
MREE /0058 T 2 B 81T MR E
TIRGE MR —RE RS ¢ (i)El
BB BEITIRA - Bt - SREZT
EHRGO 2 EEREBTHERE
PR 2 BEIR A 100 TEF K
TH {8 730.2578 7T 2 & HIRUAR 17 1 B
1258 TTHR Z0.257%8 7T ¢ (iii) ¥ A
BRI EE A 2 s BR B AR R A
ZERBEE  (VEREKEITAM
B ARAREREER02SHE
TLZESHIRR D ©

BERZZE—NF+—A+ZAE
TZREFRARE L@iB 2 FhA
HE ARV -_ZE-NE+—A
T=RETEAEH(ZZE—NA
REH]) - LS ROBRAKERE - &
IARARERE FHITRD 2 EER
0258 TLHEIMZ0.01 8 7T » LABIR
KRR ZBEEITRA o fLIRAHEIR
BRETEREFETROZTHEEH
E2EHRAE  FEREETRN
BB R HR & EAR R IR
Kpr BREEARCOIBILZES
B An o R AN B AT R A 2 i BR BE B
ARRR 2 BRI R (i) HF 48
EEALSB T ERERERRK
BOIZBRDAE-ZTRARTRG &
REEA0.0IEIT »
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36. RESERVES(CONTINUED)
(b) Special reserve
The special reserve of the Group represents the excess of the
nominal amount of the shares of the subsidiaries at the date of
the group reorganisation over the nominal amount of the shares
issued by the Company as consideration for the acquisition of

the subsidiaries.

Details of the movements of the Group'’s reserves are set out in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 78.

Details of the movements of the Company’s reserves are set out in

note 43 to the consolidated financial statements.

37. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessee

Within one year —F LR
In the second to fifth years inclusive RE_ZFRF
(BEERMSF)

From | April 2019, the Group has recognised right-of-use assets
for its operating lease, except for short term leases, see note |8 for

further information.
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36. fRfE (1)
(b) 1FH5I# R
AEBZERMEENEEEEAY
B B 2 7 2 R 1D B A A A
EAREHBARZ AEBRET
RDEEZ S -

AEERBEEDFBENESAZEA
BREHX -

ARRREREBFBHINGEPBHER
PiEE43 -

37. KEHE RS

AEBFESBAEN
2020 2019
—EEHF —E—NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THBTT
2,788
3273
6,061

B-ZEZ-NFHEA—BE AEED5
HigaHE(EHMBESERIN ERERE
BE EREMER NS -
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38. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the following

capital commitments:

38. EARIE
RIREEIR - REEF FHERAE

Contracted but not provided for: BRTAMEREEE -
Acquisition of investment properties (Note) W BBIS & W (K at)
Property development expenditure MEBRFX
Construction in-progress for mRKFEEEE) 2

water exploitation activities in Hunan EETRE

Note:

As at 31 March 2019, the capital commitment of acquisition of investment

properties included the following main acquisition.

On 12 October 2017, the Group entered into the sale and purchase agreement
with HEREEXEHBR A A (the “Vendor”). The Group agreed to acquire
properties located at Shenyang from the Vendor at the consideration of
RMB625,000,000. The Vendor is beneficially owned by Mr. Li Yuguo, who
is a substantial shareholder, the chairman and the executive Director of the
Company. As at 31 March 2019, the Group has paid RMB528,763,800 for the
transaction and committed to settle the remaining amount, RMB96,236,200,
in accordance to terms in the sale and purchase agreement. For details of the
transaction, please refer to the announcement of the Group dated 22 January

2018.

However, on 24 April 2019, the Group entered into a termination agreement
with the Vendor to terminate the sale and purchase agreement. For details of the
termination agreement, please refer to the announcement of the Group dated 24

April 2019.

2020 2019
i —T-NEF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FET
157,937

149,008

677

143,037 307,622

R-ZZE—h&E=A=+—0 KEKREY
EWERFEBDEUT EZUE -
RZZ—tF+A+=8  AEEREFEEF
REBXERAR(IEAFDILEER
FoAEEREEBETREBLRES®
Wz - R{EAARM6250000007T © B
FHRARBEERRREERANTESS
FREEEEE - RZT—NF=A
=+—H FEEERRFIFTARE
528,763,800 7T M & 75 1R B B i 2 R HE
R EARE6,236,2007T - HEAR 5
WS BLEAKERANA-T—N\F
—RB=Z+ZBZz2f -

R RZF-AFOA—+ME - K&
BEESRI AL TR 0 AEIEZE
Eind o BRRLEHHEZFE  F2HK
SEAPA-Z-AFOA-FTMAZRA
e o
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39. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES
As at 31 March 2020, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
RNEBIMEHBRAA (“KEEIF"), incorporated in the PRC,
provided corporate guarantees to third parties amounting to
approximately RMB 100,000,000 (2019: RMB200,000,000), detailed as

follows:

(1) On 17 April 2014, KiZ&IF provided a corporate guarantee
to KEBIRITE—HPOTIT (“REIRTT(—)") for a recurring
bank loan of RMB50,000,000 granted to a third party, Ki#EE
EMERWARDF (AERE". In 2017, KERIT(—)
took a legal action against A3 % for the recovery of the
aforesaid loan. On 21 December 2017, BEEA KEMHFRAR
7B (the “Court”) ordered KIEHRH to repay the loan to X
#H#R1T7(—), together with relevant legal cost and interest. Since
another independent guarantor of the loan, XiEEJEEE X B R
N (“REEE") has pledged its properties to AZEIRFT(—)
for this loan, it is believed that Xi##E#R1T(—) can fully recover
the loan and interest from the sales proceeds of the pledged

properties.

(2) On 23 May 2014, K &I provided a corporate guarantee
to K#E#8R7T(—) for a recurring bank loan of RMB50,000,000
granted to a third party, KiEEREWEBR AR (AEERE").
In 2017, K#ERTT(—) took a legal action against A iEH[E
for the recovery of the aforesaid loan. On 28 December 2017,
the Court ordered R E[E to repay the loan to KiEIRTT
(—), together with relevant legal cost and interest. Since A&
B has pledged its properties to A #RTT(—) for this loan,
it is believed that RiE#R1T(—) can fully recover the loan and

interest from the sales proceeds of the pledged properties.
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39. KEREE
MN-BE-ZTHF=A=+—0 X2FTR
PR 2 2 E M B AR AEAIA
EMARAF([KERIF D MEBE=HIE
HABEREF L AR 1000000007T
—E—h%F : AR#200,000,0007T) °
ESIYINNE

() RZZFE—EFOA+ER - KEE|
Mg REIRITE —F L7 ([ KiE
BIT(D)DMEZFRNERBEME
B ARAR (I KERME])BER
2 fEIR R 7T E 5K A R # 50,000,000
T RERARER c ZT—LFH
M KERT(—)HRERBERD
SEERFRE - LABE EMER - R =
E—+F+-_A=-+—08  EEZL
REMHRBARZER ([ER )
SRERBAAEET(—)EEER
;o ERMBEEERBEREAE - B
RERH S — BB ERAKEIE
EBEARAR(IREIEE]E
UL BT E YRR T RERT
(—) - Bt ERERT(—)AT A
WIHERRYEZEBRIERLE
WEIEHREFE -

Q) RZE—NMNFRA=Z+=8 'K
HAMBEARERIT(—)ME=ZA
RNEEEMEBR DA ([ KEE
BDEBZERBITERARE
50,000,0007C * #EEH A RIER - B
ZE—EF - KERT(—)HKX
HEEERLAEFD - B E Lt
ERXR -RZZE—tF+=ZA=Z+N
H xR a2 A E M) RGERTT
(—)EEEN  EREENEES
AEME - AR KEIBSEERILE
PO EFEER T RERIT(—)
E It AB{E R RTT(— ) AT LATESH &
EIRYE L FTERIBERE2EREE
HEFIE o
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39. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES

(CONTINUED)

©)

*)

On 19 August 2014, KiEEIF provided a corporate guarantee
to Ri#IRIT(—) for a recurring bank loan of RMB50,000,000
granted to a third party, XKZEERE H AR N A (AEER").
In 2017, Ri#ERIT(—) took a legal action against K& ZEHf
for the recovery of the aforesaid loan. On 21 December 2017,
the Court ordered K32 to repay the loan to AKEIRTT
(—), together with relevant legal cost and interest. The loan
principal of RMB50,000,000 has been repaid by X:i&E2H on
30 December 2017. Since A& has pledged its properties
to AE#R77(—) for this loan, it is believed that A& iR 7T
(—) can fully recover the outstanding interest from the sales

proceeds of the pledged properties.

On 13 July 2015, K # £l 0 has pledged a land use right
recorded as properties under development (note 21) to provide
a guarantee to AGERITE = O TIT (“KREIRTT(=)") fora
recurring bank loan of RMB50,000,000 granted to a third party,
REBESHFMHBERAR (AREBEE"). In 2017, KER
77(=) took a legal action against X:EH{Z for the recovery of
the aforesaid loan. On 25 January 2018, the Court ordered K
&15 to repay the loan to KiEIRTT(=), together with relevant
legal cost and interest. During the year ended 31 March 2020,
this loan and its outstanding interest was repaid by BI#Z i (X
E)BMRAF(BIEHRE") and pledge of the land use right was

released accordingly.

9. M EREE(E)

)

)

RZZE—MFENATIE - KEE
M RERIT(—)MB=FREE
BESERQR([KEERE]) BN
Z R RTT E 5 A K% 50,000,000
T RHARER RZT—t
FoRERIT(-)HREZHRE
R ERR - WBR EMER - B
—T—+F+-A=+—8 " Ak
meAREERMAAERT(—)E
BEEX  EREBZEERART
BoRZE—+HF+-A=+H"
REZHOEEERZASARE
50,000,0007T © F A KEIEEE 5t
ILEREEMERMR T RERT
(—) - Bt ERERT(—)ATA
WIEERFMEZFAEHREPEE
WE R EEZFS o

RZE—RAFLA+=0  KEE
ML ARERITE =L IT([KE
BT (D) DAEZFAREBESH
FMEAER AR ([ RKEEE])EN
ZBIRIRIT E 5 A K % 50,000,000
T BREERPYWEFN—EL
HofE PR (M RE2 1 ) AFREEIER - R
ZE—tF  KERIT(Z)HKE
BRI ARFR > LER FRE
HeRZE—NF—A=Z+FHAH "

Ehrm e REBERAERT(Z)
BEER  ERBBENERZERR

FE -BEZE-_TEF=-A=+—
HIEFE @ gliEmE(RE)BRA
A([ElEE ] EEELERRE
REZEFE - MEETRZ L ER
B EARERR
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For the year ended 31 March 2020 BlZE =T -TF = A=+—HILFE

39. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES 39. UBIEREE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(5) On 23 November 2015, X # B] # provided a corporate (5) Eﬁii*£¢+*ﬂ —+=H" XK
guarantee to A #& #f 7 ( = ) for a recurring bank loan of HAABAERT(Z)ME=AK
RMB50,000,000 granted to a third party, XiEFE/GHERTE EEERERIBRARAA (I KE
BRAT (KEEE). In 2017, RERTIT(Z) took a legal B8R DERCBRRRITERAR
action against A& % /8 B for the recovery of the aforesaid #£50,000,0007T * #EH D FEAR o
loan. On 25 January 2018, the Court ordered K&/ to RZTE—+F - RERT(Z)HEK
repay the loan to RiERIT(=), together with relevant legal iﬁ/iﬁ’zﬁﬂj/ffi.ﬁ-’\ C LAEE F
cost and interest. Another independent guarantor of the loan, MEF - EA_f J\E A=-+#H
£l 3 H#b EE pledged its properties to R IR1T (=) for this NG T 2GR AGE R
loan. During the year ended 31 March 2020, this loan and its ﬁ( —)EEE @H*ﬁ RAH) L2
outstanding interest was repaid by Bl and the corporate BRAMME - t‘Jﬁa-%\ij—“ﬁ_L
guarantee provided by A EIF] was released accordingly. BERABZEMECRILETHEY

EEMTRERT(Z) - BEZT
“EE-_A=t—HLFERIE
ECERILERREREENS
AR ARz A RERD AR

JERRRR -

Correspondingly, X2 &IF1 obtained counter-guarantees by Bl3E D MFEH - KEAIFI B AEERESRIE
EE. BIZEHBE undertook any legal disputes and economic losses that R e IMNARERIFFEFFA it 2 AR HER
may be suffered by A &IHN in relation to all the aforesaid corporate AR E S AR RSBEREK -
guarantees and pledge. Bl I EE S — JRHE o

On 27 December 2017, a restructuring loan agreement was signed RZZBE—+F+-_A=++H " K&EIE
by RENEE with KEHRTT. Under this agreement, a new loan of EELRERITE L EAE R E - RIB
RMB245,000,000 was granted to Xi&E|IB)% for the repayment of the B - AR %245,000,0007T 8 3 B &
loans, interests and other cost stated in (1), (2) and (3) and then IR T REIEEAEZE() ~ (2) &(3)
the corporate guarantee provided by KiZEEIH will be released. it ED - MEREMER - BB
However, the procedure to release the corporate guarantee is still in Bl AEAFFTIRMER AR EER - A
progress. - R A AR AR F DA T -
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39.

40.

FINANCIAL GUARANTEE LIABILITIES
(CONTINUED)

The Directors are closely monitoring the situations and will continue
to use their best endeavor to resolve the remaining corporate
guarantee above. The Directors are also assessing the legal position of

the Group and may consider taking legal actions if appropriate.

Up to the date of this report, the Group did not suffer any loss
from the above corporate guarantees and pledge. Having considered
the counter-guarantees provided by BI3EHIEE, pledge of valuable
properties by A B and BIZEHBE and subsequent settlement
arrangements as stated above, in the opinion of the Directors of
the Company, the fair values of the financial guarantee contracts are
insignificant at initial recognition as the probability of suffering any
significant loss by the Group from the above corporate guarantees

and pledge is low. Accordingly, no provision has been made in the

consolidated financial statements for these guarantees.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEMES

The Group’s qualifying employees in Hong Kong participate in the
Mandatory Provident Fund (the “MPF”) in Hong Kong. The assets of
the MPF are held separately from those of the Group in funds under
the control of trustee. The Group and each of the employees make

monthly mandatory contributions to the MPF scheme.

The employees of the PRC subsidiaries are members of the
state-managed retirement benefits scheme operated by the PRC
government. The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a certain
percentage of their payroll to the retirement benefits scheme to fund
the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with respect to the
retirement benefits scheme is to make the required contributions

under the scheme.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income of approximately HK$ 1,309,000 (2019:
HK$796,000) represents contributions payable to these plans by the

Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

39.

40.

MREREEE)

EXITVEREEBN Y elE
RAS NG LT 2 RRER
ENEHEREBEERAR - XL EE
BEHRECGEE RERITE -

#
° &

BEAREAS AKEYTRBR LA
NREERMERNRZEMER - &F
BEEMERENRER - KEIBE
BlEEABENYEERR bz H
BREBELHR  ARREZTRAR/MBE
RELHD R FERNAEREL AEX -
ARAEER LA BEREERTNSR
REFMEABROEESE ) - Bt -
B FRRNEAMBRRPTIER
=

EBIAREREE
REBRBEZEEREELARTEZ
wEM A ([RER]) - BEECE
ERERNEEZEESFFE  BXEA
THs ESEIE - AEBEREBMUEES
AmgfEe e sl ftaR o

FEMEBARZEEITEBRARYZ
l%ﬁ BRAREHEEINE - HEMNE

AIAMERARENGEENEHFEET
Emﬁzhm'uﬁﬁhﬁﬂ2§u°
REEERREH 82— RERRA
At Bl PTRR K o

BAZARSRABRZARTIOA
1,309,000/ 7T ( =& — JL4F : 796,000
L) DASEZEERAEE X
FERS 52 55T 8l 2 AR o
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41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

Transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which
are related parties of the Company, have been eliminated on
consolidation and are not disclosed in this note. Save as disclosed
elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, details of
transactions between the Group and other related parties are

disclosed below.

(A) Transaction relating to a substantial shareholder
(i)  During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group
terminated the agreement to acquire properties located

at Shenyang from the BEEREZEEXHFR A A (the
“Vendor”). The Vendor is beneficially owned by Mr. Li

Yuguo, who is a substantial shareholder, the chairman and

the executive Director of the Company. For the details,

please refer to note 25(ii). Relating to the termination of

the acquisition, compensation and interest income are

recognised as follows:

Compensation relating to termination RIEWREES Y E C HE
of acquisition of Shenyang Properties

Interest income relating to termination of BIEWBEGME 2
acquisition of Shenyang Properties FBUA

(i) On 4 April 2019, the Group entered into a supply
agreement with the associate, EPIRKITBRERER A
A], pursuant to which the associate has agreed to supply,
and the Group has agreed to procure the bottled water
products. During the year ended 31| March 2020, the total
consideration paid by the Group was RMBI,418,340 (2019:
Nil). Details of which are set out in the announcement of
the Company dated 4 April 2019.
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R - wRE R B
BRI :

2020 2019
—E-EF —T-hEF
HK$°000 HK$'000

TART FAET
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR IR AR M T

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

41. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(B) Compensation of key management personnel
The remuneration of key management personnel during the year

was as follows:

Short-term benefits

Retirement benefit scheme

REHIRE A
RIRAERIF B

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Group’s material subsidiaries at the end of the reporting

period are as follows.

Name of subsidiaries

WEARER

Adco Rich Limited

Asiaciti Investment Limited

B REERAH

Century Strong Limited

Continental Joy Limited

East Dynasty Group Limited
REEEBRAF

Place of
incorporation/
operation

HEMRL,/
B

British Virgin Islands
EBELES

Hong Kong
'R

British Virgin Islands
RBEIES

British Virgin Islands
RBEIES

British Virgin Islands
RBEIES

Class of

shares/

registered
capital held

Fisse,/
EMERER

Ordinary
LRR

Ordinary
LRR

Ordinary
LRR

Ordinary
TRk

Ordinary
2R

4. ERREALRZ (&)

(B) TEEEANEZ#HHH
TEERABRAERZH N

™

2020
SE L
HK$°000
TR

42. B A RES
MRS - AEE Y X EHEA A

Fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital

HERE
HREKR

US|
ES

HKS |
177

US|
E

US|
EH

US|
EH

BT -

Proportion of nominal
value of paid capital/
registered capital
held by the Company
KRAREZ
BRAREAEE/
AMEAZED
Directly Indirectly

B f:

100% -
100% -

100%
100%

100% -
100% -

100% -
100% -

100% =
100% -

2019
—E—NF
HK$'000
FABT

3,077
121

3,198

Principal activities

TEER

Investment holding

RAZR

Property investment

NERE

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REZR

Investment holding

REZR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)
Class of

Place of shares/
incorporation/  registered

Name of subsidiaries operation capital held
LAY iR,/

WEARER geny EmEREH

Good Union (China) Limited Hong Kong Ordinary

JEB (R E)BRAT] &R LAk

King Lotus Limited British Virgin Islands  Ordinary
RBRAES EBR

Man Lee Management Limited Hong Kong Ordinary

ENEREARAA & BBk

World Land Development Limited  British Virgin Islands  Ordinary

ERERERLT RERKES EBR
World Metro Investment Limited ~ Hong Kong Ordinary
NEREBRAH & gl
TMNEEERORYNEBRRDR  The PRC Registered
(note) H i
STHEEEE(RINBRAT
(W)
ERHERER(RY)ERAT  The PRC Registered
(note) i il
ERHEREE (R ERATF
(W)
NERIREBR D R (note) The PRC Registered
NERMERARDR (ML) = A
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42 B A TFE(E)

Fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital

BERE/
ZMEX

HK$ 1,000
1,000 T

US$ |
E

HK$2
BT
US|

E

HKS|
17T

RMB60,000,000
AE#60,000,0007T

RMB60,000,000
AE#60,000,0007T

HK$205,000,000
205,000,000 7T

Proportion of nominal
value of paid capital/
registered capital

held by the Company

FRARAELZ
ENRAEE/
305 A

Directly Indirectly

E& &

- 67%

- 67%

100% -

100% -

- 100%

- 100%

100% -

100% -

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

Principal activities

ITERHK

Investment holding

REER

Investment holding

RERR

Management services and
secunities trading

ERRBEREFES

Investment holding

RAER

Investment holding

RAER

Investment holding

RERK

Investment holding

RERK

Property development

NEER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR RR M

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

Class of
Place of shares/
incorporation/  registered
Name of subsidiaries operation capital held
MR,/ Frm e,/
WEARER R EMERER
BRESFZFMORINERRE  The PRC Registered
(note) HE Rl
BRERFER(RI)ERAF
(W)
REEBFACRYNERRT  The PRC Registered
(note) - H Al
REEEFARINBRA
(W)
Rl EEEERERAF  The PRC Registered
(note) i Gl
ALK BEXRERARLA
(W)
HEFAERBRKARRAF  The PRC Registered
(note) i il
HEHAERER AR
(Hrit)

42. B AR5 (&)

Fully paid
share capital/
registered
capital

BERE/
ZMEX

RMB3,000,000
AR #3,000,0007T

RMB3,000,000
AR #3,000,0007T

RMBI,000,000
ARH1,0000007T

HK$30,000,000
30,000,000 7T

Proportion of nominal
value of paid capital/
registered capital

held by the Company

KARREL
ERREEE/
afERzED

Directly Indirectly

B &

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 100%

- 67%

- 67%

Principal activities

ITERHK

Investment holding

RERK

Property investment

ESIE

Property investment

ESIE

Production and sales of
bottled water

FERHERKK
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R R M T

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES 42. B AR5 (&)
(CONTINUED)
Class of Fully paid  Proportion of nominal
Place of shares/ share capitall  value of paid capital/
incorporation/  registered registered registered capital
Name of subsidiaries operation capital held capital  held by the Company Principal activities
FRARAELZ
LAY iR,/ BRRE/ ENRAEE
WEAREH genk fE AR EmER AMERZED TEEH
Directly Indirectly
E# F:
R E AR The PRC Registered HK$10,000,000 - 100%  Dormant
(note) i Bl 10,000000%7C - 100%  EEEX
RYREREEAERAR
(Hit)
RYFHEREERERAF  The PRC Registered RMB100,000 - 100%  Property investment
(note) e Hf AEH100,0007 - 100%  MERE
R EREERBRAA
(W)
S RBELEEERAR The PRC Registered RMB20,000,000 - 100%  Trading of bottled water
(note) H i AK#20,0000007T - 100%  BEKES
TREEHEERAA
(W)
HEWEREARAR The PRC Registered RMB500,000 - [00%  Trading of bottled water
(note) H Eail} AR 5000007 - 100%  J|EKES
TEMEREERAR
(W)
Note: The subsidiary was an indirectly wholly foreign owner enterprises established in the Wit ZWBRRRRP B BEIINEEE
PRC. B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ArE SRR MR
For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

None of the subsidiaries had any debt securities outstanding at the

end of the year, or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Group, which in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the result or assets of the
Group. To give the details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion

of the directors, result in particulars of excessive lengths.

The table below shows details of non-wholly owned subsidiaries of

the Group that have material non-controlling interests:

Proportion of ownership

Place of interest and voting
incorporation/ rights held by non-
Name of subsidiary operation controlling interest
EMRL FERERBFEZ
WEARER e BERERRREECADL
2020 2019
ZRIRF —TNF
% %
PT. Damper Indonesia -
Golden International e
Good Union (China) Limited Hong Kong 33
B (PE)ERAF BB

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group'’s
subsidiary that has material non-controlling interests is set out below.
The summarised financial information below represents amounts

before intragroup eliminations.

42 B R RFE(E)

RERFFAEMMER - HERRHE
ERAREEZBEHES

BEERRLERIMZAKEZHE AR
BARBEZRENEEREEFE - &
ERREINEMMBRARZFEEER
fRBRITE

TREIANEERBEAFIE S

FEEMBRRIZFE -
Loss allocated to non- Accumulated non-
controlling interest controlling interests
FERER 23t
itz B8 FERER
2020 2019 2020 2019

“EZEE —“T-NF ZBEF —ZT-NF

HK$’000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HK$'000
TET THET TERT TAL

59

694 102,189 118,690

AR ARESABEANIERER 2 M
BRBZMBERMEHINNT - AT
MHENBERTEERNEHEAZE
%’EO
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MR

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

42. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Good Union (China) Limited

Summarised statement
of financial position

Current assets
Current liabilities

Current net liabilities

Non-current assets
Non-current liabilities

Non-current net assets
Net assets

Accumulated non-controlling interest

Summarised statement of
comprehensive income

Revenue

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Loss allocated to non-controlling interest

Summarised cash flows

Net cash inflow from operating activities
Net cash outflow from investing activities
Net cash inflow from financing activities
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
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BRI R E

FEREBEE
FREBEE

FRBDEEFE
BEFE

RET IR R

EAL S E T

YA

REE R
H it 2 E U E

EHWEARE

IR R R 1R

RERBE

42 B R RFE(E)

B (hEDBRATF

2020
—E-FF
HK$’000
FTERT

350,419

350,419

309,669

102,189

2020
—E-%F
HK$’000
TER

2020
—B-%F
HK$’000
T

Al

(26,872)

386,545

386,545
359,673

118,690

2019
—FE-NF
HK$'000
TET

(2,107)
(348)

(2,455)

(694)

2019
—T-NEF
HK$'000
FET

10,891
(11,743)

3

(849)



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
R B IRAR R

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

BA AR R E R

FINANCIAL POSITION INFORMATION OF

43. SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF 43. %’Z\\ﬂ

THE COMPANY

Summarised statement of financial position information of the RN BRI E B R 7 B FS AR O 38 B kL
Company at the end of the reporting period includes: ZHE
2020 2019
—B-BHF — N
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET TET
Non-current assets FREEE
Interests in subsidiaries =N = _
Property, plant and equipment W - BB REE 25 36
Right-of-use assets EREEE 2,469 -
2,494 36
Current assets REBEE
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERRIE - EZe Rk 901 897
/\’rﬂlﬂgﬂﬂlﬁﬁm
Amounts due from subsidiaries TEU B A B 7k 18 1,843,147 2,408,972
Bank balances and cash RITESBRRE 12,324 8,593
1,856,372 2,418,462
Current liabilities RBAE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEATF B A B FRIE 31,624 3719
Other payables and accruals HibEM R M ERTE R 1,051 965
Lease liabilities HERE 1,889 -
34,564 4,684
Net current assets REBEEZFE 1,821,808 2,413,778
Total assets less current liabilities EELERRBAEE 1,824,302 2,413,814
Capital and reserves BEXRK#E
Share capital % Ax 76,117 76,117
Reserves G 1,747,640 2,337,697
1,823,757 2,413,814
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Lease liabilities HERE 545 -
1,824,302 2,413,814
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by PHBmERER _E_EF A=+ 1A
the Board of Directors on 29 June 2020 and signed on its behalf by: KE $Aﬁt/ﬁjf?ﬁ% Iz - WHTIA
:Hki%x%ﬁﬁm

Mr. Li Yuguo Mr. Liu Yan Chee James
FERAE BEHBEE
Director Director
EF EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR MBI

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

43. SUMMARISED STATEMENT OF 43, A B 2 B AR R 2% 2 R E
FINANCIAL POSITION INFORMATION OF E(E)
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Share-
Convertible based
Share Share notes  Capital payment Exchange  General Accumulated
capital premium  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve losses Total
Wk A
TR BN
B BRGEE REGHE EFERE XARE EXRE -REE  ZHER g
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKF000 ~ HK$000  HK$O000  HK$O00  HK$000
Tén TEr TEn  TEn  TEn  TEr  TEr  TEn  TER
At 1 April 2018 RZE-N\FmA-A 1585923 1597179 72561 198350 62,65 7180030 (1,580,683) 2116043
Loss for the year AEZER - - - - - - - (199 (1929)
Total comprehensive income AEERENE
for the year g - - - - - - - (1929)  (19.9)
Lapse of share options BIRELN - - - - (4708) - - 46,708 -
Redemption of convertible bonds B AR fES - - (7250 - - - - TSl -
Capital Reorganisation 2018 “F-\EKEH (1,826,806) - - 1826806 - - - - -
Transactions with owners in EEBREATHOEEA
their capacity as owners: ERS:
lssue of ordinary shares BITERR 317000 - - - - - - ~ 317000
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=1-H 76117 1597179 - 20515 15948 7180030 (1,480,643) 2413814
Loss for the year rEEBR - (590,057) (590,057)
Total comprehensive income AEREENE
for the year a3
Transfer B
Lapse of share options BRERN

At 31 March 2020 RZE-FF-A=1-A 16,117 1,597,179 - 1,025,156

- 180,057 (2.054,752) 1,823,757
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR IR R AT
For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

44. DIVIDENDS

The directors did not recommend the payment of any dividend for

the year ended 31 March 2020 (2019: Nil).

45. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
(a) On 24 April 2020, the extended repayment deadline, Mr. Li

Yuguo (“Mr. Li"), a substantial Shareholder, the chairman and
an executive Director of the Company, has not yet repaid
Refund Amount relating to the termination of the acquisition of
Shenyang Properties and the related compensation and interests
to Asiaciti Investment Limited (BRI E AR 2 A), an indirect
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company. The Company issued
a debt collection letter to Mr. Li on 28 April 2020.

On 8 May 2020, the Company set up a special committee, with
3 independent non-executive directors as members, to handle
the repayment and/or the recovery of the Refund Amount.
The Company has engaged independent legal advisors to
work with the Special Committee and the Special Committee
will seek other professional advice so as to take appropriate
actions if necessary to recover the Refund Amount or enforce
the securities. Details of the event of default and the Special
Committee are set out in the announcements of the Company
dated 29 April 2020 and 8 May 2020 respectively.

Up to the date of this report, the Group has received a partial
payment of Refund Amount and related compensation and

interest of approximately HK$16,900,000.

44. IR B

45.

EETRBERNBEEZE-_S-_FF=A
=t RALFEEZEMEE(ZF—A
: E{) o

/s

HERREE
(@ RZZE-TFMOMA-_+THABE(ER

ERBR)  ARABRETERR - x
FERATEFFTEEELE([FE
EDHAEERRL I LKBESS
M ZRRE T KBRS E N A
BPARRZEEZENBARE
RREBRAR - ARBER=F
“EFEMA-tNBRFELEEH
TEFREK ©

RZZEZZTFRANAB  ARAIK
UERZEEE(KNER=RBIUIE
HWITEE)  UERBEER K
CEREHE - ARAREDEREBEY
FERBEREFRNEZEEAE - T
ZEelsSkEMEEE R UM
W B3R 3 & FE 2k R BN 1T B R 1R
KBREENTH(WNFE) - BH
BHEMHRENEZE® 2FED A
FRARABHAZZTS-_ZFNA
—t+thABR-ZZE-FEERANBZ
NI

HEARSHE - AEBEEWEIE
DEFRCEMEEBRELNED

16,900,000/ 7T, °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e PR ERR M

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

45. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) On 26 May 2020, New Jumbo Group Limited ([EE &

BBR2AF]) (“the Purchaser”), a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, Mu Linlin (“the Vendor"”) and Chi Sheng
Trading Company Limited (BB E S HBRAF]) (“the Target
Company"”) entered into a sale and purchase agreement,
pursuant to which the Purchaser conditionally agreed to acquire,
and the Vendor conditionally agreed to sell, the entire issued
share capital of and the shareholder’s loan advanced to the
Target Company in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the sale and purchase agreement. The Target Company,
through#T)I F/KEEER @AM A A (Zhejiang Shangshui
Jieyun Food Co., Ltd.), indirectly holds, inter alia, a two-storey
industrial building located at BT A & E X T FEHE
JLAT (Chen Village, Shanghua Street, Lanxi City, Jinhua, Zhejiang
Province, the PRC), which is currently leased to tenants for
rental income. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 26 May 2020. The acquisition was
completed on 24 June 2020.

46. AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE OF

45. HERRBE(AE)

(b)

R-ZZ-_ZTFRA-+H AR
AZEENBRAREEEEERA
AITERD - FM(TER ) BEE
BRESBRAR(BEAAETAL
—IHEEm® Bt REZEE
W2 BR RGNS - BEA B GEH
AEREMEABREHLRELE
BERRzE2HEBITRARKE
A 2ER - BEQARSBEMI L
KEERMAERARMERF (K
FEE)MRPBNNTIE S ERE
WEEGELNN —RMELEE
FEAEETHEPAERMES
WA - FBEBL2EARRERAS
E-EFRAZHARBEZAM - I
BER-ZZ-EFA-TNEART
B o

46. BT B RS IR K

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised

for issue by the Board of Directors on 29 June 2020.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

I EE

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T - ZTHF=F=+—HILtFE

Results

Revenue

Loss before taxation

Tax (charge)/credit

Loss for the year from continuing
operations
Loss for the year from discontinued

operations
Loss for the year

Attributable to:
Equity holders of the Company

Minority interests

ES |

WA

BRI ATE 1R
BE(FEAR)/HER

RERFELE
XHZER

AERDKLE
XHZER

REFER

FE{E -
ZNNSIE: S5 2PN
DEBR

Year ended 31 March
BZE=A=1t—HLEE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
“EXF —Z—+tF T\ —ZT-NF ZB-EE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$’000
FHBIT FHBT FET FHIT FET
4,454 6,651 - 32,760 m
(141211 (90321)  (132,720)  (170811)
(1,664) 317 8,576 17,530
(142,875) (90,004)  (124,144)  (153,281) BELLRFL)S
50,111 (3,800) (1,454) (6,112) =
(92,764) (93804)  (125598)  (159,393) BELLNFL)]
(76,205) (92,794)  (123989)  (158,640)
(16,559) (1,010) (1,609) (753)
(92,764) (93804)  (125598)  (159,393)
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

LB S TS

For the year ended 31 March 200 HiE — T -ZHE=A=+—HI|IFE

Assets and liabilities

Total assets

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ funds

BEERERE

BERBE 2,560,721 2433016 2,860,646 2720466 | ohllla k]
BfEeE (520,853)  (557.950)  (606,082)  (388,168) PELAIAFA)
RERE S 2,039,868 1875066  2,254564 2332298 | LAk AN
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